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Corporate Profile

oods” or the “Company”) is a subsidiary of
") and listed on the main board of The Stock

delicious and quality food. Currently, the Company’s product portfolio
includes a number of well-known brands, such as “Greatwall” wine, “t&f&F9”
consumer-pack edible oil, “Le Conté” chocolate and “ & £ ” Shaoxing rice
wine. As a strategic partner of The Coca-Cola Company in China, the Company

also bottles and distributes Coca-Cola beverages.
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REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
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EBITDA FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

HEKE X EBITDA
(HK$’ million) (A8#T) 1,306

1,003

- +30% f

2014 2015

EARNINGS Z
(HK$' million) (B &7 7T)

(225)

79

2014 2015

* Mainly affected by decrease in exchange revaluation reserve.
*TEAER EMEE TRTE -

TOTAL ASSETS #2& =
(HK$' million) (& 8% 7T)

9%¥

® Current

Vi)

2014 2015

ASSET TO LIABILITY RATIO
EESGEHR

55.5% 57.5%
+2.0ppt @ 4

2014 2015

NET ASS E_TS PER SHARE (Owners of the Parents)
BREEF sramsn
(HK$/share) (7T, &%)

2.10

/H\ 6% 4

2014

@ During the year 2015, dividend was declared by a non-wholly owned subsidiary of beverage segment. If dividend payable to minority interest was excluded, asset to

liability ratio would have been 55% as at 31 December 2015.
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Major Events of China Foods in 2015 =
FEIRM2015FE KB ©

Greatwall wine was served at the state
banquets attended by heads of state and
other political leaders of various countries,
such as Boao Forum for Asia, reception
of the 3rd September Victory Day military
parade and 66th Anniversary of National
i Day, which further enhanced its “National
wine” status, and underpinned it as a “fine
wine label” of China.
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The imported wine business division has launched “Five major
business models of COFCO Wine & Wine to deepen the market
penetration. It formed “alliances” with major regional white wine
¢ distilleries and traders to achieve complementarity of edges,
and new co-operation models with 1919, Shandong Jingzhi and
Henan Yunfei were formulated and implemented. Meanwhile, it
adheres to developing branding business in broad cooperation
with first-tier foreign suppliers. Contracts were signed with
international brands, such as Penfolds of Treasury from Australia,
Freixenet from Spain and Redeberg from Germany. The “Dream

Team” of cobranding has shown its strength.

DR DEESHEL PR e B ERATEER )  RLTER
M BREABEABMAETKELEHN AR TRER
B1919 - IURRZ - AMERNIMENXSE  ANEFER
MAEERAR - BB —RHEREZAE  RORNEERE -
FEIE T SEENYT - R RERERRARE - M2 2K]E
| REES -

Greatwall wine ranked first in terms of market share in the industry for twelve
consecutive years. The brand influence has increased continuously. Its products
also repeatedly won awards in important domestic and international competitions,
such as Brussels and Decanter.
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Major Events of China Foods in 2015
FERM2015FRER
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During Chinese New Year, Fortune and CCTV together launched a large-scale blessings and couplets collection activity

tin 2015, “Blessings to Thousands of Homes”, welcoming the harmonious festivity of Chinese New Year. Fortune’s

national brand image and strategic products of high quality were promoted nationwide and to the world through the

authoritative platform of CCTV.
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Fortune’s R&D and innovation
efforts were recognized. The core
technology of Fortune’s core
product, Golden Original Maize Qil,
won the scientific technology award
from Chinese Cereals and Oils
i Association, which is the highest
honour in maize oil production.
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COFCO Coca-Cola won a landslide victory in the China System
Conference of Coca-Cola, winning twelve out of all sixteen
awards, which include the three most important awards. In
2015, sales revenue of COFCO Coca-Cola exceeded RMB10
billion, ranking the first in the China region in terms of sales
growth in two consecutive years. The growth rate in operating
profit was even higher than those of sales and revenue.
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Major Events of China Foods in 2015
FERM2015FRER

7.

Contracts were signed and foundations
were completed in merely two months for
Central China bottler and Northern China
bottler of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited. The number of its bottling plants
will increase to fourteen.
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China Foods and JD.com has reached a

i consensus on an in-depth strategic co-operation
of e-commerce channels for the coming three
years. Leveraging on the JD platform, the [ 3COFCO CERISTMA
e-commerce business division launched a j :F ﬁi i E
cross-category integrated marketing activity, " w, EEMRLICARI0E
: “COFCO Day”. It substantially increased the -
sales of various product categories through JD

i e-commerce channels.
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9.

China Foods has met with senior management of retailers such as Carrefour, Walmart, China
Resources and Beijing Hualian for enhancing strategic co-operation in all product categories in
order to lower expenses and increase efficiency, achieving a win-win situation for all parties.
RERMEEHERLERE  ARS  EH IR ERESTERRESEER  2nEEBaE
TEVR(E - BRBIER - BKZ R o

10.

In order to reduce loss of the Company, focusing on core businesses and deployment
of resources, and to create more value for shareholders, the board of directors of
China Foods decided to divest the confectionery business, and the Company entered
into an equity transfer and debt assignment agreement with Tops Properties Limited,
a connected person of the Company, on 31 December 2015, whereby the Company
shall dispose its 100% equity interest in Prized Developments Limited, the ultimate
investment holding company of the confectionery business, and shall assign the
shareholder’s loan due to it from Prized Developments Limited.
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2015, China Foods continued to adhere to the spirit of
entrepreneurial dynamism, focused on improving corporate
management standard, business operational efficiency and market
competitiveness and endeavored to overcome the difficulties caused
by the deteriorating macro-economic environment and fierce
industrial competition, which enhanced the quality of the Company’s
operation and continually improved its results. On behalf of the board
of directors (the “Board”), | wish to extend my whole-hearted thanks
to our shareholders for their unshakable faith and support.

In 2016, in order to adapt to the new environment of developing the
Chinese economy and reforming state-owned enterprises, our Board
and management team will further strengthen the Company’s strategic
positioning, promote our business and continue to initiate a focused
strategy to attain our goal of “Quality Improvement and Efficiency
Enhancement”. Meanwhile, we will expedite the implementation of
reform, grow the enterprise with vigor, optimize our business mix,
enhance assets efficiency, focus our resources on the development of
core business, promote brand repositioning, raise our brand equity,
refine our management approach and improve the standard and
operational efficiency of supply chains and channels, so as to strive for
continuous improvement in our operating results.

As the largest shareholder of China Foods, COFCO will continue to
support China Foods in implementing its focused strategy, various
reforms and operational management measures. COFCO will also
support China Foods in filling the Company with new vitality for its
business development through innovative mechanism, in order to
speed up business organic growth, enhance its core competitiveness
and achieve healthy and rapid growth.

| believe that by leveraging the combined efforts of the Board and our
management team, building on the improvement of results achieved
in the past, China Foods will make breakthroughs in its business
development in 2016, succeed in driving better business performance
and create greater values for our shareholders.

Ma Jianping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Dear Shareholders,

2015 REVIEW

In 2015, the economic growth in China slowed down and the food
and beverage industry only recorded single digit growth. However,
food and beverage enterprises took more innovative moves and new
products were continuously introduced to the market. Meanwhile,
imported food and beverages have accelerated their penetration into
the PRC market, as a result industrial competition became more
vigorous.

Faced with severe external challenges, the Company continued to
promote “Secondary Entrepreneurial Culture” and implemented
a series of initiatives to develop internal potentials, enhance the
quality of operation and improve operational efficiency. To achieve
this, we (1) developed comprehensive channels and expanded
points of sales, speeded up the development of new channels
such as e-commerce, expanded the sales channels and market
coverage, strengthened distributor management and services,
enhanced sales execution and improved the sales performance
at the point-of-sale; (2) strengthened product refinement and
innovation and increased product competitiveness; (3) increased
investment in brand marketing and raised brand image to boost
sales; (4) optimized performance evaluation system, rationalized
incentive schemes and enhanced team execution; (5) strengthened
our management, promoted entrepreneurial culture and applied
benchmark management tools to improve operational efficiency
and reduce costs; and (6) entered into relevant agreement for the
disposal of inefficient assets relating to the confectionery business.
After a year of strenuous efforts, with significant improvement in
operational management efficiency and quality of our businesses and
the continuous enhancement of our results, the Company started to
be on track for sustainable business development.

Statement from Managing Director
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Statement from Managing Director
EREKIB RN

2016 PROSPECT

In 2016, the Chinese economy will still face enormous pressure.
Unfavourable factors such as intensified competition in the food
and beverage industry and depreciation of the Renminbi will
bring greater uncertainty to our business. On the other hand, with
the young generation becoming the main consuming group and
innovation of network technology and business models, social
consumption will maintain its rapid pace of growth, which provides us
with new business opportunities. China Foods has to overcome the
external difficulties and grasp the opportunities, and strive for new
breakthroughs in its business development.

The Group will continue to adhere to the spirit of entrepreneurial
dynamism, strengthen its management, refine its management
approach, improve the quality of its operation, enhance operational
efficiency, actively launch market-oriented reforms, optimize its
performance evaluation system, strengthen reward and punishment
system, enhance team execution, achieve business breakthroughs
and continually improve our operating results.

During the past two years, the Group focused on streamlining its
organizational structure. Our internal management was strengthened
resulting in improved operational efficiency and product quality. In
2016, the Group will focus on optimizing our business mix, promoting
focused business operations and brand repositioning. The Group will
put more efforts in sales and marketing, improve brand value, focus
on core SKU (Stock Keeping Unit), develop star products, continue to
increase channel penetration, develop more sales channels catered
for the mass public such as e-commerce, convenience stores and
community stores. In addition, we will further refine our management
approach and improve the efficiency of supply chains.

n
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We believe that following the implementation of the above initiatives,
China Foods will achieve breakthroughs in its business development
and gain improvement in overall operational quality and efficiency
in 2016, entering into a new stage of sustainable and healthy
development. On behalf of China Foods, | wish to thank each
of our shareholders for their trust in and encouragement to the
management. | would also like to thank each of our business partners
for their understanding and support, and express my heartfelt
gratitude to each of our staff members for their unrelenting efforts. Let
us join hands to create a better future for China Foods.

Jiang Guojin
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016

Statement from Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2015, we took active steps to address negative factors faced

by the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), to improve

internal management and operating efficiency, and enhance brand

competitiveness of the Group. The beverage business maintained a

steady growth in operating profits, while both wine and kitchen food

categories achieved significantly better operating results. As a result,

the Group was successful in achieving a turnaround in profitability,

compared with a loss attributable to the Owners of the Parent in 2014,
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (the “year”).

Following is a summary of the performance of the Group for the year

as compared with 2014:

Note:

Revenue from continuing operations increased by 6.1% from
HK$26,239 million to HK$27,842 million.

EBITDA” from continuing operations increased by HK$303
million from HK$1,003 million to HK$1,306 million.

Operating Profit* from continuing operations increased by 92%
from HK$324.24 million to HK$623.85 million.

The above stated amount of revenue, EBITDA" and Operating Profit* exclude
relevant figures of the confectionery business segment, a business segment
categorized as a discontinued operation pursuant to the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 5. The revenue, LBITDA" and Operating Loss* for the year
of the Discontinued Segment, were HK$389 million (2014: HK$503 million),
HK$61 million (2014: HK$119 million) and HK$99 million (2014: HK$163 million)
respectively.

Profit attributable to Owners of the Parent was HK$79 million,
consisting of a profit from continuing operations of HK$178
million and a loss from discontinued operation of HK$99 million,
as compared to a loss attributable to Owners of the Parent of
HK$225 million in 2014 (consisting of a loss from continuing
operations of HK$62 million and a loss from discontinued
operation of HK$163 million).
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A EBITDA (LBITDA) represents earnings (loss) before finance costs, income tax
expense, depreciation, amortisation of other intangible assets, recognition of
prepaid land premiums, impairment related to available-for-sale investments,
items of property, plant and equipment and receivables, provision against
inventories and share of profits of associates.

* Operating Profit from continuing operations represents the aggregation of segment
results from continuing operations less corporate and other unallocated expenses,
while the operating loss of the Discontinued Segment represents segment loss of
the confectionery business segment.

Note: The results in RMB for the year were translated at the weighted average exchange
rate for 2015 of HK$1: RMB 0.81333, while the results in RMB for 2014 were
translated at the weighted average exchange rate for 2014 of HK$1: RMB
0.78755. The results reported in HKD terms for the year, when compared to the
results for 2014, include a 3.2% translation effect attributable to the devaluation
of RMB.

During the year, the Group continued to take a series of initiatives in
order to improve its operational quality and efficiency. We promoted
the development of channels with a focus on the e-commerce
channel, increased channel penetration into county-level markets
and expanded market coverage. Specific incentive measures
were deployed to encourage product innovation and research and
development, strengthen brand communication with consumers and
experiential marketing, as well as improve the cost-effectiveness of
marketing expenses. In addition, supervision and audit of execution
at point-of-sales were strengthened, with shortcomings identified,
and successfully addressed.

In terms of management, the Group continued to foster and
strengthen its “entrepreneurial culture”. The performance evaluation
system was optimized and more specific incentive measures were
deployed. In addition, the internal control system was further
strengthened to reduce operational risk. Training for business teams
was improved, and a benchmarking project was conducted by each
business and the best industry practices were adopted in order to
enhance supply chain and sales managements.

n
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During the year, the Company reviewed the strategy in relation
to its loss-making businesses in order to enhance returns to our
shareholders. As a result, the Company has decided to exit the
loss-making confectionery business in order to focus its resources
on other core businesses. On 31 December 2015, the Company
announced the decision of its board of directors (the “Board”) to
enter into an equity transfer and debt assignment agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Top Properties Limited, a connected person of
the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
pursuant to which the Company shall transfer its equity interest
in Prized Developments Limited, the investment holding company
of the confectionery production group companies and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the shareholder’s loan due
to the Company by Prized Developments Limited, to Tops Properties
Limited for a total consideration of RMB611,000,000. Details of the
Agreement and transactions contemplated therein were disclosed in
an announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2015.

In 2016, the Group will focus on repositioning of Greatwall brand,
optimization of the Group’s portfolio of businesses and development
of core businesses. All addition, the Group will also actively seek for
strategic investment opportunities and strive to enhance operational
efficiency in order to provide an improved return to the shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BEVERAGE BUSINESS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

e  The beverage business of the Company is primarily carried
out by COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL"), an
entity jointly established by the Company and The Coca-Cola
Company, in which the Company holds a 65% interest.

e  CCBL has the exclusive right to manufacture, market and
distribute Coca-Cola products in 15 provinces, municipalities
and regions including Tianjin, Hebei, Beijing, Shandong,
Hunan, Jiangxi, Guizhou, Hainan, Gansu, Ningxia, Qinghai,
Tibet, Inner Mongolia, Xinjiang and Guangdong (Zhanjiang
and Maoming). CCBL has minority equity stakes in Coca-
Cola bottling companies located in Guangdong, Zhejiang and
Jiangsu.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The strategic goal of CCBL is to build a world-class bottling group
with an admired professional team, to build the most valuable sales
and distribution network, and to become the most efficient beverage
industry player in every region in which we operate. To this end, CCBL
has been implementing the following strategies:

° Insistence on commitment to food safety and quality;

e  Continuing to improve our product offering to the trade by
ensuring that our core products have enduring appeal to
consumers, and by introducing new higher margin products.
At the same time, we will seek to develop strategic cooperative
relationships with, and to raise gross margin for, both CCBL and
its distributors through a reasonable margin sharing model, and
speed up the inventory turnover at point-of-sale;

e  Strengthen our relationship with participants in our outlet
delivery partners program, and provide support for the growth
of customers through product category management, and
the application of route-to-market strategies in the sales and
distribution network;

n
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° Focus on further improving retail execution as this is our contact
point with consumers;

e  (Constantly and effectively control costs and improve efficiency;
and

° Encourage creative concepts and innovative ideas in business
processes, marketing and management systems.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

According to industry data for the year, the principal beverage
categories and their relative share of the overall soft drinks market
(excluding white milk and bulk water) in China are Packaged Water
(33.7% share), Milk Beverages (excluding white milk) (15.2% share),
Sparkling (12.6% share), Juice (10.0% share), and Ready-to-drink
Tea (9.4% share). Among these main product categories, CCBL is a
major player in the Sparkling, Juice and Packaged Water categories.

In terms of volume growth, the overall soft drinks market (excluding
white milk and bulk water) grew 4.1%, while the growth rates of the
Sparkling, Juice and Packaged Water categories were 1.5%, -7.1%
and 7.2%, respectively.

According to relevant ACNielsen’s data in
2015, in relation to certain key channels
within the franchise territory of CCBL,
market share by volume in each of our
main product categories (consisting of
Sparkling, Juice and Packaged Water
categories) increased and as a result,
we ranked first in overall, both in terms
of absolute increase in share and growth
rate, compared to competitors within the
franchise territory. Our market share in
Sparkling category, in which we were
already the market leader, increased
by 4.2 percentage points, giving us
a share more than twice that of our
closest competitor. In the Juice category our share increased by 1.5
percentage points to put us virtually at parity with the market leader.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

]

2015 ANNUAL RESULTS

Reported segment profit in HKD terms increased by 12.7% from
HK$616.6 million to HK$695.2 million. this was achieved through
overall volume growth of 8.8%, with continuing growth in core product
categories, especially the Sparkling category. The principal drivers for
this growth were increased consumer preference for our products,
expanded channel coverage and enhanced sales execution. However,
there was a change in sales mix as a result of growth in sales of
Packaged Water category while, at the same time there was a decline
in volume of our Juice category. As a result, while sales revenue in
RMB grew slightly, reported revenue in HKD terms declined by 1.2%.

Benefiting from falling raw material prices, and the favourable impact
of having moved, as part of a strategic cost reduction strategy, more of
the production of Packaged Water category in house, our gross profit
margin increased by 1.4 percentage points.

Meanwhile, the ratio of selling and distribution expense to revenue
rose by 0.8 percentage point, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in storage and delivery costs for wider channel penetration,
as well as increases in marketing expenses to achieve more effective
communication with consumers in view of intensifying market
competition.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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It seems challenging that the 2016 beverage industry growth rate
will be any higher than in 2015. It is expected that the beverage
market will continue to be highly competitive. Marketing expenses
will continue to grow while greater channel penetration will lead to
increases in storage and delivery costs. To cope with this, we will
endeavour to improve its package mix in order to raise the average
per unit selling price, and enhance the efficiency of marketing
expenditures. We are confident of being able to maintain the
operating profit margin of this segment.

e  The Group's wine business is based on its famous Greatwall
brand, which has a fine tradition and has long been a leader in
the China wine market. Various types of wines are produced by
us currently, which include Cabernet Sauvignon, Merlot, Pinot
Noir, Cabernet Franc, Shiraz for red wines; and Chardonnay,
Riesling, Sauvignon Blanc for white wines. We also produce
brandies and sparkling wines.

e The Group offers single varietal wines, as well as blended wines
using different grape varieties. The majority of the grapes that
we use come from vineyards that are either managed by us,
or from sources with whom we have cooperative agreements.
Production, aging and storage are carried out at our wine
production plants and four wineries in China, namely Huaxia
Wine Manor at Changli in Hebei, Chateau Sungod at Huailai in
Hebei, Chateau Junding at Yantai in Shandong and Chateau
YunMo in Ningxia, together with two overseas wineries, namely
Sas du Chateau de Viaud in France and Vifia Santa Andrea Ltda
in Chile.

e The Group also imports wines in collaboration with a number of
well-known international wineries for distribution in China.
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The Group will raise the competitiveness of its products in a

systematic way as described below:

Position our Greatwall brand as a leading brand and to
strengthen the brand image of Greatwall wine as a national wine,
by emphasising its credibility as “the designated wine for serving
at state banquets”, and focusing on brand promotion during
both political and economic conferences or forums, as well as
launching impactful advertisements;

Continue to strengthen direct communications with consumers
through promoting experiential marketing activities such as wine
tasting, winery tours and showroom visits at community and
office buildings, as well as point-of-sales;

With a goal to provide more value-for-money products, we
will further strengthen our product management and promote
systematic processes in our product research and development,
quality upgrade and production. Also, we actively promote
innovation of new products that better meet consumers’
demand under existing market trends;

Penetrate into downward distribution channel while streamlining
its comprehensive sales and distribution system, enhance
point-of-sale coverage, and to establish closer relationships and
cooperation with distributors and actively build relationships
with new distributors; and

To strive for lower costs of supply chain management system
through the use of benchmarking.
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In 2015, the volume of the China wine market showed signs of
recovery, with increasing contributions from both on premise and at
home consumption. On the whole, the growth of the high-end wine
category remained weak. Domestic consumers tended to favour
better value-for-money wine products. Industry growth is currently
being driven by wines that are attractively priced so as to offer good
value for money to general consumers.

Currently, domestically-produced wine is the mainstream of the wine
industry. However, imported wines are growing strongly and taking
up a bigger share of the overall market in China, through competitive
pricing. As a result, the composition of the domestic wine market is
still changing with no individual imported wine brand dominating the
market. In response to this development, domestic wine producers
need to upgrade the quality and branding of their wine products.

In 2015, as reported in HKD terms, we were successful in achieving
a turnaround from a segment loss of HK$115.5 million to a segment
profit of HK$124.5 million. Our sales volume grew by 12% and
reported revenue in HKD terms by 6.6%, mainly as a result of the
execution of our development strategies, particularly improvement
in product category management and enhancement of channel
penetration. Confidence of distributors to replenish stocks was
restored.

Gross profit margins grew 5.5 percentage points, mainly due to
improvements in product mix and a drop in raw wine cost.

By entering into jointly developed distribution plans with distributors,
better guidance given in promotion planning and better supervision of
promotional events, we successfully reduced promotional expenses
and increased promotional efficiency. Meanwhile, we have continued
to optimize supply chain management and reduce logistic costs.
As a result, the ratio of selling and distribution expense to revenue
declined by 5.5 percentage points.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

OUTLOOK

In 2016, we will focus on repositioning of Greatwall brand and
continue to implement our development strategies, so as to
systematically improve the competitiveness of our products, our
brand and channels. Our target is to boost sales via both offtake at
retail and on premise. We will strive for the continuing growth of our
wine business as well as improvements in our segment results.

KITCHEN FOOD BUSINESS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Kitchen Food business covers the sale, distribution and
marketing of edible oil which is the key product category, as well as
the sale, distribution and marketing of sugar, soy sauce, vinegar,
MSG, seasoning sauce and cereals. “Fortune” brand is a well-known
consumer-pack edible oil brand in China and is ranked number two
nationwide in terms of market share.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Group’s strategic objective in the Kitchen Food business is to
maintain its position as a strong player in the market. To this end, we
will pursue the following strategies:

o Focus on top-tier, high-margin oil types, promote the “Fortune”
brand name, focus on “Golden Family Series” sunflower seed oil
and corn oil products, enhance market coverage and channel
penetration and monitor inventory turnover at point-of-sale,
improve market share, and increase overall gross profit by
benchmarking with key competitors so as to improve business
performance;

o Focus on important markets, channels and points-of-sale, with
higher contribution of sales revenue, and spend marketing and
promotion expenses tactically so as to enhance efficiency; and

o Increase the efficiency of supply chain and improve the

productivity of the workforce so as to reduce operating costs and
administrative expenses.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2015, while the commodity price of bulk oil, the key raw material,
fluctuated at a relatively low price level as compared with past few years,
the distributors were cautious in replenishing stocks in order to control
inventory holding risk. Key industry players increased their spending on
online and offline media, thus intensifying competition in the market.

As for product types, large-share common oil types such as blended
oil and soybean oil continued to show a declining trend while other
oil types got more shares. Volume growth of corn oil slowed down
after high-growth in past few years, while sunflower seed oil, as an
alternative healthy oil, started to pick up growth. Also, volume growth
of both peanut oil and rapeseed oil began to rise.

As for consumers, they tend to prefer a wider variety of oils, with lower
loyalty of specific oil product and brand.

2015 ANNUAL RESULTS

Reported segment profit in HKD terms increased significantly from
HK$29.3 million to HK$117.1 million. This was achieved through
increase in overall sales volume by 33.1%. However, due to a general
decline in selling price in the domestic edible oil market, the overall
segment sales revenue in HKD terms only increased by 14.4%.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT
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Although the sales volume of the low-end non-Fortune brand
consumer-pack edible oil products decreased compared with
2014, the sales volume of consumer-pack oil under Fortune brand
increased by 5.6%, mainly attributable to increasing market coverage
and channel penetration, as well as effective communication of the
Fortune brand under the main theme of “Golden Family Series”. The
overall sales volume of consumer-pack edible oil was nearly the same
as compared with 2014,

For strategic development, since the second quarter of 2015, we have
further expanded our sales and distribution of large-pack edible oil
(8-20 litre per container) to meet the growing demand of the catering
industry in China. Given the large scale of the business, sales revenue
of large-pack edible oil increased sharply by 90%, and accounted for
approximately 18% of the segment’s revenue.

Although the gross profit margin of consumer-pack edible oil
recorded a slight increase, the overall gross profit margin dropped by
approximately 1.6 percentage points due to low-margin large-pack
edible ail in its developing stage.

Under keen competition, we increased our advertising expenses
significantly, but we were successful in saving delivery costs by
enhancement of supply chain management. As a result, the ratio
of selling and distribution expense to revenue declined by 2.3
percentage points.

E =
% China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

BEEmMFBERM] AENERESESR
2014 F LB AL T 0% - [1RERPT ) AR/
BEREZDRALLIERS 6% T ERAEB
SRt [fBERPT] MIRERE - BREEERKRR
P ER BNTMISEERESBERIE -
NEERRARBEHEENE2014F L KNE
o

RBEERSEN  B2015FF5 _FEH
e BfE—FRATHEeEH (82078
K)HERDHEBARRERNERE A
BENTL - AR haEBRIERKA - &
HEBRAKRIFIERI0% * (50 HBEEHER
A#I18% °

HRFRREL NEER AR A ERN R L EE R
s BRBEMENEREE - HEMNX
BIE REEEMNXALTROLERD
= e

ERREBEFIRIZT - WAIINATH SRR -
BN ERBARZIEN - BRBIRSHER
EEMERIDFEERRA - Bt - HEK
DIHERRE23EEDE



OUTLOOK

It is expected that supply and demand in the international and
domestic markets will be stable despite overcapacity in domestic
production and the commodity price of bulk oil will fluctuate at
a relatively low price level as compared with past few years. The
expected selling prices and margins of consumer-pack edible oil
products will remain relatively stable. Competition in the consumer-
pack edible oil market is expected to remain keen.

To cope with these factors, we will continue to improve our
product mix, focus on core regions, enhance brand image, adopt
appropriate marketing strategies, increase spending and enhance
the effectiveness of our marketing campaigns. Meanwhile, we will
continue to implement effective expense controls so as to improve
operational efficiency.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

CONFECTIONERY BUSINESS

2015 ANNUAL RESULTS

In 2015, the confectionery business adjusted its channel strategy
by focusing on the development of third-and fourth-tier markets but
the benefits had not yet been realized. Under the effect of intensified
competition in the industry and increased spending on online and
offline marketing expenditures by leading brands in the industry, the
segment revenue dropped accordingly. Therefore, the confectionery
business cut marketing and administrative expenses in order to
control its loss. As a result, reported segment loss in HKD terms
dropped from HK$163 million to HK$98.5 million.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERIT
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Supplemental information to segment results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 with comparative figures, are set out

below:

REBEZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFE D
BHHAERERLBBFEIMT

For the year ended
31 December

BZE12A31HLFEE

2015 2014
20154 20144
% %
CONTINUING OPERATIONS REEET
Growth of revenue by Segment: EOHED 2 WAKEER
— Beverage — R -1.2 9.6
- Wine —BmiE 6.6 16.5
— Kitchen Food —BERM 14.4 -85
— Others —HAb -2.7 36.6
Segment results to revenue ratio: DEPFEEEURALL K -
— Beverage — R 5.6 49
- Wine —BmiE 5.4 5.4
— Kitchen Food —EHERR 0.9 0.3
— Others —HAth 3.2 25
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIEREET
Growth of revenue: AR
— Confectionery —KER R -22.8 15.8
Segment results to revenue ratio: DEPHEEEURALL K -
— Confectionery —KER R -25.3 -32.4

During the year, revenue from continuing operations amounted to
HK$27,842 million, increased by 6.1% from HK$26,239 million,
mainly contributed by Kitchen Food segment and Wine segment.

With respect to the Kitchen Food segment, the overall sales volume of
consumer-pack edible oil nearly the same for the year. For strategic
development, since the second quarter of 2015, we have further
expanded our sales and distribution of large-pack edible oil (8-20 litre
per container) to meet the growing demand of the catering industry in

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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China. Given the large scale of the business, sales revenue of large-
pack edible oil increased sharply. Due to a general decline in selling
price in the domestic edible oil market, the overall segment sales
revenue increased by 14.4%, lower than the increase of 33.1% in the
overall sales volume.

With respect to the Wine segment, as a result of the execution of our
development strategies, the confidence of distributors to replenish
stocks was restored. Our sales volume grew 12%, mainly attributable
to improvement in product category management, sales growth of
value-for-money products and enhancement of channel penetration,
while our revenue in HKD terms grew 6.6%.

With respect to the Beverage segment, it achieved an overall volume
growth of 8.8%, with continuing growth in core product categories,
especially the Sparkling category. The principal drivers for this growth
were increased consumer preference for our products, expanded
channel coverage and enhanced sales execution. However, there
was a change in sales mix, with volume contribution of our Packaged
Water category increased while that of our Juice category decreased.
As a result, sales revenue in RMB grew slightly while sales revenue in
HKD terms declined by 1.2%.

With respect to the Others segment, sales revenue in RMB remained
a low-single-digit growth under keen market competition while sales
revenue in HKD terms slightly decreased by 2.7%.

The overall gross profit margin from continuing operations decreased
from 23.3% to 22.8%, mainly attributable to drop in gross
profit margin of Kitchen Food segment, which offset the margin
improvements in Beverage segment and Wine segment.

With respect to the Kitchen Food segment, although gross profit
margin of consumer-pack edible oil increased slightly, the drop
in overall gross profit margin of 1.6 percentage points was mainly
attributable to the low-margin large-pack edible oil in its early stage of
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B BRI

With respect to the Beverage segment, benefiting from falling raw
material prices and low production costs, and the favourable impact
of higher self-production ratio of Packaged Water category under a
cost reduction strategy, the overall gross profit margin increased by
1.4 percentage points.

With respect to the Wine segment, gross profit margins grew 5.5
percentage points, mainly due to improvement in product mix and a
drop in raw wine cost.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES/
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Aggregated amount of selling and distribution expenses and
administrative expenses from continuing operations was HK$6,010
million, decreased slightly by 0.8%, mainly due to management’s
ongoing efforts to optimize supply chain management, enhance
promotional efficiency and control expenses, in the midst of
additional spending in advertising and marketing expenses in view of
intensifying market competition.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs were HK$65 million, decreased by 7%, mainly due to
lower outstanding loan balance on average, compared to 2014.

SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates were HK$72 million, decreased by
23%, mainly attributable to drop in profitability of Beverage segment’s
associates.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expense was HK$286 million, increased by 28%, mainly
due to the improvements in segment results of Beverage segment,
and taxable profits of certain wineries of Wine segment.
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The Company’s treasury function operates as a centralized service
for:

e reallocating financial resources within the Group;

e procuring cost-efficient funding;

e managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks; and

e  targeting yield enhancement opportunities.

The treasury function regularly and closely monitors its overall cash
and debt positions, proactively reviews its funding costs and maturity
profiles to facilitate timely refinancing, if appropriate. Cash pooling
is applied in mainland China for more efficient utilization of cash.
Also, the treasury function formulated financial risk management
procedures, which are subject to periodic review by the senior
management of the Company.

During the year, EBITDA from continuing operations increased by
HK$303 million to HK$1,306 million, which is mainly attributable
to the turnaround in segment result of Wine, while LBITDA from
discontinued operation reduced by HK$58 million to HK$61 million
due to tight control of marketing and administrative expenses of
Confectionery segment.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s unpledged cash and cash
equivalents totalled approximately HK$899 million (31 December
2014: approximately HK$1,356 million), mainly due to the repayment
of certain interest-bearing bank borrowings during the year. Net
current assets dropped to approximately HK$189 million (31
December 2014: approximately HK$2,111 million), mainly due to
reclassification of certain interest-bearing bank borrowings (with
aggregate amount of HK$1,400 million) from non-current liabilities
to current liabilities due to maturity and recording of certain dividend
payable to minority interests as a result of dividend declaration by
CCBL during the year. Refinancing will be arranged in advance of
loan maturity in 2016.
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Having considered (i) the consideration received from the disposal
transaction according to the announcement dated 31 December
2015 by the Company, (ii) the existing banking facilities available
to the Group, (iii) budgeted cash flow from operating activities from
continuing operations and (iv) existing financial resources and
gearing level of the Group, the management believes that the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to fund its debt payments, day-to-
day operations, and contracted capital expenditures of approximately
HK$344 million as at 31 December 2015.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015, the total
number of issued shares of the Company remained unchanged at
2,797,223,396.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of approximately HK$2,610 million (31 December 2014:
approximately HK$3,425 million). Bank borrowings carried annual
interest rates ranging between 0.92% and 5.66% (31 December
2014 between 0.68% and 6.72%). Majority of bank borrowings
carried at floating rates. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had
other borrowings of approximately HK$38 million (31 December
2014: approximately HK$36 million), carried at fixed, annual interest
rate of 5.6% (31 December 2014: 5.60%).

Maturity profile of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings is
analysed as:

° HK$1,648 million borrowings repayable in 2016; and

e HK$1,000 million borrowings repayable in 2017.

As at 31 December 2015, net assets attributable to owners of the
parent were approximately HK$5,516 million (31 December 2014:
approximately HK$5,888 million) and net borrowing position of the
Group (interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less unpledged
cash and cash equivalents) was approximately HK$1,748.5 million
(31 December 2014: approximately HK$2,104.5 million) and the net
gearing ratio (ratio of net borrowing position of the Group to net assets
attributable to owners of the parent) was approximately 31.7% (31
December 2014: approximately 35.7%).
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by charges over certain buildings, land use rights and time
deposits of the Group with aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$188 million (31 December 2014: approximately HK$316
million).

Majority of monetary assets, monetary liabilities and transactions of
the Group were principally denominated in Renminbi and recorded
in the books of subsidiaries operating in mainland China (functional
currency as Renminbi), while majority of bank borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and recorded in the book of the
Company and a subsidiary operating in Hong Kong (functional
currency as Hong Kong dollar).

For consolidated financial statements reporting of the Group
(reporting currency as Hong Kong dollar), foreign exchange
differences, arising from translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries operating in mainland China, are directly recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

The foreign exchange risk exposure at the operational level is not
significant. Nevertheless, the currency mismatch by using Hong Kong
dollar borrowings to finance assets and businesses denominated
in Renminbi, is exposed to risk of unexpected cash outflow for
repayment of such borrowings by realization of assets and businesses
denominated in Renminbi, if any.

Although the Group has not used any financial instruments for
hedging purpose, the treasury function actively and closely monitors
foreign exchange rate fluctuation, particularly the exchange rate of
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollar. Appropriate measures, including
but not limited to entering of hedging agreements, will be critically
considered to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk exposure.
Upon the maturity of existing bank borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, the Group will consider to gradually repay and/or
refinance them by certain Renminbi financing, if it's appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERIT

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Results and business operations are subject to different kinds of
risk and uncertainties which are directly or indirectly associated with
the Group’s business. Major risk factors identified by the Group are
summarized as follows:

1. Brand managing risk

Reasons and impact: In view of changes in the nation’s macro-
economic policies and changes in channel strategy brought
about by industry changes, the Company may not be able
to follow closely the changes in the market so as to develop
and market effective brands in time or has over relied on
the existing brands of our products. This may in turn led to
untimely product development, products and services may not
be able to satisfy our customers’ needs or consistently exceed
our customers’ expectations. As a result, sales will decline,
competitive edge will be lost and market share will be reduced,
all of which will limit the development of the Company’s
business.

2. Competition risk

Reasons and impact: China Foods is the major sales and
distribution platform for branded fast moving consumer goods
under the group of COFCO. Products of our respective business
are facing keen competitions from renowned brands of the
international and mainland markets. In addition, the market
shares of our major competitors are also close to or exceed
those of the Group.
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Reasons and impact: Without a mechanism for hedging
against risk in the procurement of raw materials and commaodity
prices are hard to predict due to market volatilities and policy
factors. For these reasons, profit will still drop in spite of growth
in sales volume. In addition, inappropriate procurement will
result in backlogs in inventory, declines in cash flow efficiency
and a rise in capital ratio and cost for inventory management
and even losses in inventory. Unjusticed logistic methods will
also increase product wear and tear, resulting in rising in cost
and reducing in profits.

Reasons and impact: In 2015, the domestic or international
economic environments remained difficult. For this reason,
considerable changes are expected in macro-economic
policies in China or countries around the world or economic
policies of local governments. As a result, the operation of
China Foods will somehow be affected and this will reduce our
opportunities for corporate development as well as our profits.

Reasons and impact: Given an insufficient channel penetration
and a need to strengthen channel management, the market
performance in various regions of the country may differ.
Currently, the Company’s core business model is cooperating
with distributors and our response to changing market
conditions is relatively slow and often without a clear rationale
in terms of formulating sales policies, matching production
and sales demand, and preparing inventory for customers.
In addition, the marketing expenses for the fast moving
consumer goods industry are made up of different categories,
and therefore making it hard to manage according to different
product features and weakening cost efficiency.
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Reasons and impact: Food safety risk involves every step
along the entire supply chain, from plantation, raw and
supplementary materials received and stored, production and
processing to product delivery, storage and sales. Food safety
risk can arise in any part of the process. Without efficient
control measures and a system to trace and monitor the
entire production process, food safety risk may give rise to
material impact as a corporation is likely liable for significant
potential compensation. Meanwhile, food safety incidents may
bring about negative information dissemination and cause
considerable damage to corporate reputation.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 17,325 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2014: 17,285).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided with
management and professional training.

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO scheme
or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as life
insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland China are
provided with basic social insurance and housing fund in compliance
with the requirements of the laws of China. Details of these benefit
schemes are set out in the “Other employee benefits” under note
2.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies” to the financial
statements in this report.
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The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on 21 November
2006 for a term of ten years for the purpose of rewarding eligible
employees of the Group (including executive directors and non-
executive directors of the Company) based on individual merit.

As at 1 January 2015, a total of 25,700,000 share options of the
Company remained outstanding. During the year, a total of 620,000
share options lapsed. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2015, a total
of 25,080,000 share options of the Company remained outstanding.

CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

During the year, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Changsha named COFCO Coca-Cola Huazhong
Beverages Limited which is engaged in beverages bottling
production, sale and distribution; and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
named COFCO Coca-Cola Huabei Beverages Limited which is
engaged in beverages bottling production.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China, France and Chile while the
Company itself is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the mainland
China, France, Chile and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report, as far as the
Company is aware, save for a delay in disclosure of major transactions
of the Company and failed to dispatch the information circular
required under the Listing Rules as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 March 2015, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China, France,
Chile and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In view of the Board, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
year. Details of the Company’s work in corporate governance during
the year are disclosed in the corporate governance report on pages
68 to 87 of this report.
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CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
EERFYITES

MR. MA JIANPING

MR. MA JIANPING

Mr. Ma, 52, is currently a non-executive director of the Company
and was appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of
the Company in August 2015. Mr. Ma joined COFCO Corporation
and/or its subsidiaries (together but excluding the Company and
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “COFCO Group”) in
1986 and is currently a vice president and the director of the
strategy department of COFCO Corporation. Mr. Ma holds several
directorships in certain subsidiaries in COFCO Group, including
the deputy managing director of COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited,
the chairman of COFCO Meats Investments Limited and a director
of COFCO International Limited. Currently, Mr. Ma is also a non-
executive director of Joy City Property Limited and the chairman
of the board and a non-executive director of China Mengniu Dairy
Company Limited, both of which are listed in Hong Kong; and a
director of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed in
Shenzhen. Mr. Ma served as a deputy manager of the Company from
June 2003 to February 2008 and was an executive director of the
Company from March 2007 to March 2008. Mr. Ma also was a non-
executive director of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited from
August 2009 to March 2014.

Mr. Ma graduated from University of International Business and
Economics in Beijing with a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, and he has extensive experience in strategic
planning, corporate finance, investment and M&A, and business
management.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BITES

MR. JIANG GUOJIN
IEEEE

MR. JIANG GUOJIN

Mr. Jiang, 48, was appointed as the managing director and an
executive director of the Company in September 2013 and is
currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jiang
is also the chairman of the board and a non-executive director of
Jiugui Liquor Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shenzhen. Mr. Jiang
joined COFCO Group in 1989 and was the general manager of
COFCO Malt (Dalian) Co., Ltd. from December 1995 to August 2000,
the general manager of the Malt Division of China Foods (Beijing)
Company from August 2000 to December 2007 and a deputy general
manager of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong, as well as the general manager of the Brewing
Materials Division of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited from
December 2007 to July 2008. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Jiang was the general manager of COFCO Meat Investment Company
Limited.

Mr. Jiang graduated from Beijing Institute of Light Industry (now
Beijing Technology and Business University) with a Bachelor’'s degree
in engineering and holds a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School and
has extensive experience in food business and general management
with strong performance record.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENERERAEGN

MS. WU WENTING
KRYFRL

MS. WU WENTING

Ms. Wu, 52, joined the Company as a non-executive director in March
2007 and was re-designated as an executive director of the Company
in March 2014. Ms. Wu is currently also the executive deputy general
manager and the chief financial officer of the Company and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wu joined COFCO Group
in 1992 and was the director of the Audit and Discipline Department
of COFCO Corporation from 2006 to March 2014. Ms. Wu has
also held various positions in COFCO Group, including the deputy
general manager of the Finance Department of China Liang Feng
Grains Import & Export Company from 1994 to 2000 and the general
manager of the Finance Department of COFCO Oils & Grains Co., Ltd.
from 2000 to 2006.

Ms. Wu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from Beijing
Technology and Business University and a Master of Arts degree
in professional accounting from Central University of Finance and
Economics and has extensive experience in financial management
and auditing.
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MS. LIU DING
MTz+

Ms. Liu, 61, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in March 2011. Ms. Liu joined COFCO Corporation in April
2005 and is currently a director and the head of the Communist Party
Discipline and Inspection Team of COFCO Corporation. Ms. Liu is also
a vice-chairwoman and a non-executive director of China Mengniu
Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Prior to
joining COFCO Corporation, Ms. Liu was a deputy director of the
Propaganda and Education Bureau of the Propaganda Department of
the Communist Party of China.

Ms. Liu graduated from Beijing Normal University with a Bachelor’s
degree in history and holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business and has more than 20 years of experience in legal affairs,
general management, government relations, public relations,
corporate culture development, organization development and
propaganda and education.
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MR. WANG ZHIYING
IzBRE

Mr. Wang, 45, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in November 2014. Mr. Wang is currently the head
of human resources of COFCO Corporation and holds several
directorships in certain subsidiaries in COFCO Group. Mr. Wang
joined COFCO Group in 2009 and was a deputy general manager
of the Company, with responsibility for strategy management, food
safety, production safety, and innovation, research and development,
from September 2009 to February 2011. Mr. Wang also acted as an
executive director and then a non-executive director of the Company
from April 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Wang was a non-executive
director of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a listed company
in Hong Kong, until November 2014. Prior to joining COFCO Group,
Mr. Wang worked in China Agricultural University and a government
department in the areas of training and education, human resources
development, project management and general management
and involved in various human resources development and talent
development projects and in charge of the planning, design and
management of various education institutions.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Sociology from Peking
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School and has extensive
experience in organization development, talent development, strategy
planning, benchmaking management and general management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BAFHITES

Directors and Senior Management Profile
EEREREBEABGEN

MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK
FTuELEE

MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK

Mr. Clark, 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in January 2005. Mr. Clark is a joint
managing director of The Anglo Chinese Investment Company,
Limited, the chairman of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and a
member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission, a former director of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute and has served as an alternate member of the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Clark has extensive experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Clark holds a joint honors degree of Bachelor in history and
history of art from the University of Nottingham in England and a
degree of Master in Business Administration from the University of
Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, South Africa.
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MR. PAUL KENNETH ETCHELLS
BRI EE

MR. PAUL KENNETH ETCHELLS

Mr. Etchells, 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Etchells is currently
also an independent non-executive director of each of Samsonite
International S.A. and Swire Properties Limited, both of which are
listed in Hong Kong, and an adviser to Cassia Investments Limited.
Mr. Etchells was employed by The Coca-Cola Company from July
1998 to June 2010, and worked in the U.S.A., Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Mr. Etchells has held various positions at The Coca-Cola
Company, including the deputy group president of Pacific Group of
The Coca-Cola Company from 2007 to 2010 and the president of
China Division of The Coca-Cola Company from 2002 to 2007. Prior
to joining The Coca-Cola Company, Mr. Etchells was employed by the
Swire Group in Hong Kong from 1976 to 1998.

Mr. Etchells graduated from the University of Leeds in the United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts degree in political studies, and holds
a degree of Master of Arts in Asia Pacific Studies from the University
of Leeds. Mr. Etchells is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED
EDF s

MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company in November 2008. Mr. Li was a member of each of the
Takeovers and Mergers Panel of the Securities and Futures Commission
and the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and an expert member of the Finance Committee of the Kowloon Canton
Railway Corporation and an executive director and the chief finance
officer of Hang Lung Group Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and
sociology from The University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland. Mr. Li has
more than 30 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. YUEN TIN FAN, FRANCIS

Mr. Yuen, 63, has been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 1993. Mr. Yuen is currently also the independent non-
executive deputy chairman of Pacific Century Regional Developments
Limited, a company listed in Singapore; an independent non-
executive director of Agricultural Bank of China Limited, a company
listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong; and an independent non-executive
director of China Chengxin International Credit Rating Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Yuen was a chief executive of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited from 1988 to 1991 and an independent non-executive
director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed
in Shanghai and Hong Kong until June 2013.

Mr. Yuen holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from the
University of Chicago and is currently a member of board of trustees
of the university. Mr. Yuen is also the chairman of the board of
trustees of Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research, a member of
Shanghai People’s Political Consultative Conference and a member of
the board of trustees of Fudan University in Shanghai.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BREEAE

MR. WU FEI
RFKE

MR. WU FEI

Mr. Wu, 45, is a deputy general manager of the Company and the
general manager of wine category management department. Mr. Wu
joined COFCO Group in 1992 and has held various management
positions in the Company since 1999, including the general manager
of the wine business unit and sales management south center, and
also an assistant general manager of the Company. Mr. Wu has
over 20 years of experience in corporate management and wines
business. Mr. Wu graduated from University of International Business
and Economics in Beijing with a Bachelor’'s degree in Business
Administration.

MR. CHEN GANG

Mr. Chen, 44, is a deputy general manager of the Company and
the general manager of the kitchen food category management
department. Mr. Chen joined COFCO Group in 1994 and has
held various management positions in the Company since 2008,
including the general manager of each of the confectionery business
unit, kitchen food business unit, chief legal counsel, procurement
department, sales management east center and an assistant general
manager of the Company. Mr. Chen has also served as a deputy
general manager of the oilseeds processing unit of China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chen has over 20 years of experience in oils and oilseeds processing,
edible oil trading, brand marketing, business model innovation and
corporate management. Mr. Chen graduated from Peking University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in law, and from Tsinghua University
with a Master of Business Administration degree. Mr. Chen also
held a doctorate degree from Institute of Population and Labour
Economics, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
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MR. ZHANG JIXIANG
REMAE

MR. ZHANG JIXIANG

Mr. Zhang, 53, has been the general manager of the beverage
business unit since February 2011 and an assistant general manager
of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Zhang joined COFCO Group
in 1987, and has served as the deputy general manager of Hainan
COFCO Coca-Cola since 1996 and the general manager of that
company since 1999. In 2002, he was appointed as the general
manager of Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Company Limited
and was appointed as the general manager of Beijing Coca-Cola
Beverage Co., Ltd. in 2010. Mr. Zhang has extensive operations
and management experience and has more than 20 years of
experience in the beverage industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from
China Agricultural University and holds a Master of Science degree in
agriculture.

MS. XU FEI

Ms. Xu, 41, is a deputy general manager of the Company and the
general manager of human resources department. Ms. Xu joined
COFCO Corporation in 1997 and has been the deputy director of
human resources department of COFCO Corporation. Ms. Xu joined
the Company in October 2013 and has served as an assistant general
manager of the Company. Ms. Xu has extensive experience in human
resources management. Ms. Xu graduated from Beijing International
Studies University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics,
and from Hochschule Pforzheim University with a Master degree in
€conomics.

China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

MS. XU FEI
WIERL

R AT

SRS 5358 0 B 201152 A HEEERH
FEHAKE - RBE2013F5 AREER
NEARLTEBNIE - FRIEEN 1987 FINAF
REE - 81996 FEERER PR O
LR ARDFRBLIE - HEN1999F
PEAEZ A BAREIE - 12002 FHEAE M
MRER AR 2R BRABAKE I
R 2010 FEEERIL A O AT LR AR D
AR - REEBRFREZNEE NEEL
B EREHTERRE —TF&R - REE
EXNTREREAR  BRBWBELEM -

WwELL

Rt AlE > RARBRIBEERAN
BIRAPARLLIE o IR TN 1997 FINAF R
SEARAT - BEECTEEEBRAFA
NERABRIEES - RX TN 20134 10 A0
ARRE BHERKATBLIEEE - 15
LETHEANEREBTEEGFLEELR - 17
LEREMNIERE SNEERR - EEHER
B84 AREXNEELTHBEREEX

2 REESRTSEM -



MR. LU XIAOHUI
BRgELE

MR. LU XIAOHUI

Mr. Lu, 38, is an assistant general manager and the general manager
of the audit and supervision department of the Company. Mr. Lu
was an executive director during September 2013 to August 2015
and served as the chief financial officer of the Company during
September 2013 to March 2014. Mr. Lu joined COFCO Corporation
in July 2008 and prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lu was the
deputy general manager of the Performance Audit Division of the
Audit and Supervision Department of COFCO Corporation and the
deputy general manager of the Finance Department of China Grain
and Logistics Corporation. Prior to joining COFCO Corporation, Mr.
Lu worked at Vocation International CPAs (now known as Baker
Tilly International) for more than six years. Mr. Lu has extensive
experience in the area of accounting and auditing.

Mr. Lu is a senior accountant, a PRC registered accountant and a
PRC registered tax adviser as well as a member of China Institute of
Internal Auditors (authorised by the Institute of Internal Auditors).
He graduated from Tianjin Open University with a college diploma in
Finance and Securities Management, and subsequently graduated
from Peking University with a Bachelor’'s degree in Economic.

MR. ZHENG YI

Mr. Zheng, 37, has been the chief legal counsel of the Company
and the general manager of the legal department since July 2014.
Mr. Zheng joined COFCO Corporation in 2001 and has served as
the general manager of contract and corporate law division of the
legal department of COFCO Corporation. Mr. Zheng has extensive
experience in legal practice and management. Mr. Zheng graduated
from Sun Yat-sen University and China University of Political Science
and Law with a Master of Arts degree in laws.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

INTRODUCTION

China Foods Limited (the “Company” or “China Foods”) regards

corporate social responsibilities as inherent in the sustainable

development of our business and the society to which we belong.

We fulfill our corporate mission and responsibilities by “offering

nutritious, healthy, delicious and quality foods and seek to realize

maximum value for our customers, shareholders and employees”.

This report summarizes various social responsibility programs across
four important aspects in food safety, environmental protection, staff
care and development, and social commitment of the Company

and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) in 2015.
This report will help readers understand our practices, efforts, and
improvements we have undertaken during the year.

1. FOOD SAFETY

a)

Quality and Safety Management System

In 2015, the Company continued to carry out the tasks
set out in the “China Foods Quality and Safety Work Five-
year Plan 2011-2015". Over the years,
and efficient quality and safety management approach

“an innovative

involving senior management and employee participation
throughout the entire operating process” has formed. In
addition, a quality and safety culture was promoted and
remarkable results were achieved.

Through comparing and studying different industry
standards, the management process for safety and
quality of food has been constantly upgraded. With the
participation of quality and safety professionals in the
design of admission management processes, several
key processes were established, including assessment
of new products, new projects and new raw materials
as well as admission of new suppliers, new OEM
factories and new warehouses. We have put into force
the following key steps, including participation from all
employees, evaluation throughout the process, linking
up quality and safety accountability with performance,
putting in place a control system that includes third party
audit (by DNV and SGS), inspections by COFCO and
internal audits, and further improving the complaint and
handling mechanism of China Foods.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

Quality and Safety Management System (continued)

Establishing a system that monitors the source of
risk from the base.

“The China Foods Quality and Safety Management
Standard of Vine Base” was formulated based
on the original systematic policies, including
unification of planning, technique, plantation
and procurement as well as the pesticide residue
and fertilizer lists, applied by in the seven main
production areas of Greatwall wine and under
supervision of management at vine base. The
quality and the indicator of residual pesticides
during the plantation process and before the
harvest period were being monitored in real-time to
ensure 100% passing of the supervisory random-
checking on quality and safety of the wine and
the level of pesticides and heavy metals within a
controllable range.

Establishing a product design evaluation and
admission system.

During 2014 and 2015, the duties of product
development staff at different levels were reviewed,
the review process for product development was
standardized, the headquarters’ quality and safety
management department and legal department
participated in all new quality and safety (including
label) reviews. The prescription is managed by the
BOM of SAP to prevent the risk of using excessive
additives or beyond the range.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

a)

Quallty and Safety Management System (continued)

Improving the terminal quality management system
continuously.

Pursuant to the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”, the
standards of terminal quality management and the
standards of evaluation were established to regulate
the management of transportation, warehouses and
channels, and quality supervisory positions were
established in major sales regions. In 2015, an
aggregate of 38 qualities and safety training sessions
for warehouses were conducted, 43 supervisory
reviews on warehouses and 11 admission reviews of
new warehouses were conducted and 202 hidden
problems were found and resolved. Meanwhile,
on-site investigation and evaluation in relation to
appearance deficiency or inadequacy of kitchen
food, wine and confectionery categories products
was carried out in 38 key cities with a total 224
hypermarket inspections completed. Completed
152,000 data analysis and respective feedback
were given to the product category management
departments and major sales regions. Progress
has been made in quality and safety management
approach which involving all employees and
processes.

Allocating internal and external resources to
improve risk monitoring systems.

After 3-years of effort, the monitoring platforms
of hygienic indicators of wine and edible oil have
been basically completed. In regard to precision
instrumentation and the training of professional
inspectors, satisfactory results were attained at
this stage, in which, RMB8 million was invested
in wine monitoring platform, 52 test functions for
pesticides were established in wine factories; risk
monitoring for edible oil was implemented, an
aggregate of approximately RMB3 million has been
invested in the company’s meticulous laboratory to
establish all-rounded tests for edible oil indicators.
In 2015, edible oil has been tested for 150 batches,
realising real-time control regarding risk monitoring
and quality improvement.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

a)

b)

Quality and Safety Management System (continued)

V.

Conducting safety production.

Works were carried out based on the Group’s
annual working plans and requirements. Security
checks for electric works, ammonia refrigeration,
leased warehouse, fire safety etc. so as to rule out
hidden risks and improve safety performance.
In 2015, no safety incident severer than serious
injuries were recorded. All indicators met the
requirements of the State and the local government.

Supply Chain Environment and Social Risks Related

Policies and Contents

In 2015, the Company enhanced safety supervisions

covering all levels of suppliers. Stringent controls over

qualifications, training and grading evaluations were

implemented. Management regulations were formulated
and key audits were conducted, significantly reducing
food quality and safety risks.

Based on top of the existing Information System
for Supplier Relationship Management (“SRM”),
the Company continued to invest several hundred
thousand Renminbi to complete the system
upgrade. Four functions have been added, including
recognition of new suppliers and new materials,
regular on-site reviews and supplier performance
evaluations. Through such management platform,
we have realized a supplier management method
with standardised procedures and criteria under joint
monitoring of factory, product category department
and headquarters. Through the application of relevant
functions in SAP and SRM, an open, fair, objective
supervisory and management system that chooses the
best and eliminates unqualified suppliers is realized.
In 2015, we implemented standardized recognitions
for new suppliers, adopted on-site reviews,
rectification and acceptances, product inspections
and production trials in order to improve and verify the
ability of quality assurance of suppliers, so as to control
the risk at-source stringently. Currently, China Foods’
suppliers are of the premier category reached 68%.
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1. FOOD SAFETY (continued)
b)  Supply Chain Environment and Social Risks Related

Policies and Contents (continued)

Establishing comprehensive product recall and
traceability procedures. Implemented product
recall and traceability drilling annually, verified
response sensitivity and product traceability
standards of the recall system, ensuring that
product recall drillings will be completed in 2
hours. The response to product recall procedures
was rapid and the operation was effective. In 2015,
no recall of unqualified products was recorded.

c) ResponS|b|I|ty to Customers and Consumers

In 2015, China Foods held distributors management
(TTT) training sessions as well as provided training
to distributors of different product categories,
according to their management status and needs in
order to enhance business support and boost the
Company’s results, strengthen the bonds between
distributors and China Foods, create a stable and
solid sales channel as well as enhance the standard
of business management of the distributors.

In 2015, China Foods’ customer centres continued
to enhance service quality and make use of the
“One Hotline, One Mailbox” system. We thoroughly
processed customer complaints procedures based
on closed-loop process by transferring cases
to appropriate departments, following up the
progress and giving feedback to the customers.
The settled complaints handling rate increased
steadily to 97% with a 98% satisfaction rate.
A variety of other convenient services, such as
computerised message taking and feedback within
12 hours, were introduced to improve the customer
complaint system and maximize customers’
satisfaction and experience.

In 2015, there was no major incident of product
safety or customer complaint.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

d)

External Recognition

COFCO “Fortune” brand was awarded the titles
of “China Food Safety Annual Conference 2015-
Outstanding Contribution Enterprise” as well as the
award of “China Food Safety Annual Conference —
The Best 20 Cases of Innovative Management”;

The Group’s China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd.
(“China Great Wall”) was awarded the title of
“Provincial Safety Enterprise Model” and COFCO
Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd. (“COFCO Huaxia
Greatwall”) was elected as “Provincial Grade A
Credible Enterprise on Safety”;

The plants of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
(“CCBL"), a company within the Group, in Tianjin
won the honorary title of the “Excellent Enterprise
in Food Safety and Quality in Tianjin 2015". The
plants in Hebei, Inner Mongolia and Zhanjiang
were elected as Class Il Enterprise in Standardized
Safety Production. The plant in Inner Mongolia was

awarded the title of “Safety Enterprise Model in
Food and Medicine 2015".
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

China Foods is committed to the development of low carbon
and environmental protection concepts, vigorously promoting
low carbon economy, exploring a sustainable development
model with low energy consumption, low pollution and low
emission. Every plant was driven to the improvement of energy-
saving and emission reduction techniques, which mainly
involved disposable treatment, equipment retrofitting, recycling
economy and research and development in new techniques.
Increased efforts were made in the enhancement of energy
saving techniques and the establishment of a recycling
economy management system.

a) Further Intensifying the Construction of Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction System,
Improving Management And Control Standards
i COFCO Greatwall Sungod Chateau (Huailai)

Co., Ltd. (“Greatwall Sungod Chateau”), a
company within the Group, strictly processed
grape production according to the standardized

In 2015, it

successfully passed the certification of GAP (Good

plantation management system.

Agricultural Practice) and certification of organic
product. A drip system, which saved 50% water
compared to the flooding method, was used for
grape irrigation in the entire vineyard. Techniques
for shredding, decaying and reusing grapevines
as fertilizer were explored in order to avoid the
traditional burning approach that affects air quality.
In order to reduce the emission of polluted gas,
new energy boilers were used instead of coal-fired
boilers.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)

Further Intensifying the Construction of Energy

Conservation and Emission Reduction System,

a)

Improving Management And Control Standards
(continued)

In 2015, COFCO Huaxia Greatwall continued
to update and improve documentations for
environmental, occupational and health safety
management, including “Environmental
Factors Identification and Evaluation Process”,
“Evaluation Process on Laws and Regulations
and Compliance”, “Safety Management System
on Hazardous Chemicals”, “Management
System of Safety and Environmental Equipment
and Facilities”, “Management System on Safety
and Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects”, “Management System on Sewage
Treatment”, “Management System on Energy
Saving and Emission Reduction”, “Management
System on Solid Waste” and other related
documents. The Company upgraded Multi-
Disk Screw Press to steadily control the COD in
the water discharged below 100mg/L; changed
the way of cleaning and the water used for
cleaning decreased 2,760 tons compared to
last year; collected more than 50 suggestions
regarding environmental improvement from
employers, saved electricity of 122,500 KWH
and at the same time, eliminated the use of high
consumption and outdated electric equipment
and completed the enhancement of energy saving
techniques for transformers to lower the losses of
electricity transformation, resulting in a saving of
approximately RMB150,000 for the entire year.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)

Further Intensifying the Construction of Energy

Conservation and Emission Reduction System,

a)

Improving Management And Control Standards
(continued)

At the end of 2015, China Great Wall completed
the certification renewal of environmental/
occupational health safety management system
of 1ISO14001 and OHSAS18001. In July 2015,
the third round of clean production project was
completed under the cooperation and assistance
of a third party consulting company at the request
of the Hebei Province Environmental Protection
Bureau. By implementing the mid-high-low fee
solution, approximately 130,000 kilowatt-hour of
electricity and 32,200 tons of water were saved
annually and the emission of pollutants like COD
and ammoniacal nitrogen were reduced, achieving
satisfactory results on energy saving and emission
reduction. Meanwhile, the Company actively
prepared for the transformation of coal-fired boilers
and planned to complete the elimination of coal-
fired boilers and reduce the emission of greenhouse
gases, ashes and sulfur dioxide in 2016.

COFCO Greatwall Winery (Yantai) Co., Ltd., a
company within the Group used natural gas instead
of coal as fuel by the transformation of factory
boilers to reduce effectively the emission of air
pollutants and that 3 tons of sulphur dioxide are
reduced annually.

The plant of CCBL in Hunan has changed the
construction of fire pipelines and underground
running water grids to above ground and 7,200
tons of water are saved per year; the plant in Tianjin
saved 252,000MJ of energy by adopting rooftop
daylighting transformation programs; and the plant
in Zhanjiang saved 140,000MJ of energy by the
transformation of pump voltage regulation and
frequency conversion of the reverse osmosis (RO)
system.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)
b) Actively Developing the Recycling Economy and

Improvmg Resource Utilisation Rate

China Great Wall continued to improve mechanize
and scientific management and hire professionals
to initiate a series of reforms on planting including
the use of color-stripe fabric machine for soil
covering and digging and integration of drip
irrigation and water soluble fertilizer. The rate of
mechanization and automatization reached 70%.
Labor costs decreased 22.4% and the rate of
water saving is 50%. The dripping system in the
vineyard, and the drainage system water reuse
project have increased working efficiency and the
rate of utilizing fertilizer significantly. The accurate
management for the water soluble fertilizer is
not only able to control the output of the grapes,
but an assurance for increasing the quality of
the grape, and ultimately the quality of the wine.
The project achieved water saving of 520 tons
per mu in vineyard, and is being promoted to the
3,000 mu grape plantation base of Chateau YunMo
of Greatwall.

COFCO Huaxia Greatwall insists on water recycling.
In 2015, 70,000 tons of sewage has been treated.
The quality standard of the sewage after treatment
is even higher than that of the State’s standard
for farmland irrigation. We insisted on zero
discharge of sewage and the treated water was
used to water vine between spring and autumn
and was stored in the reservoir during winter. An
automatic dripping system was introduced in grape
plantation to fulfill zero discharge of sewage and
attain an environmental energy saving recycling
economy and a win-win situation in efficiency and

environmental protection. The Company recycled
and reused solid waste and recovered a total of
RMB290,000.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)

b)

c)

Actively Developing the Recycling Economy and

Improvmg Resource Utilisation Rate (continued)

The plant of CCBL in Hebei put into use a drainage
system which can treat 430,000 tons of water
and 170,000 tons of reverse osmosis. The sewage
after treatment, being tested by a third party
testing facility, Pony, completely complied with the
“Urban Varied Use Water Standard”. The plant in
Shandong saved 33.5 tons of coal annually by CAN
RO cooling and the recycling of heat cans and LED
projects.

Advocating Environmentally-Friendly Office Concepts
that Start from the Smallest Things

The Company promoted paperless office. No
signed paper documents are needed for various
procedures; all the printers’ default setting of the
Company is duplex printing; low consumption
products were chosen when purchasing electronic
appliances.

CCBL and its plants conducted environmental
protection social welfare activities such as “Earth
Hour” and “Afforestation”. Internally, it created an
amicable energy conservation and environmental
protection promoting sentiment, and externally,
established a good social image.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(continued)
c)  Advocating Environmentally-Friendly Office Concepts

that Start from the Smallest Things (continued)

China Great Wall encourages its staff travelling to
or from work by public transport, by bike or on foot
and awards those performing well. At the same
time, shuttles are offered to encourage staff use.
COFCO Huaxia Greatwall organized activities, such
as walkathon and hiking, several times to promote
the idea of health and environmental protection.
Meanwhile, timer and thermostat to the central air-
conditioner are installed to regulate the on/off time
and temperature.

All the staff of COFCO Shaoxing Winery Co., Ltd.,
a company within the Group, participated in the
“Golden Idea for Green Office” activity and 24
effective suggestions for green office were received,
such as inspecting the form layout of all forms,
strictly executing duplex printing, setting upper and
lower temperatures limits for the air conditioning
systems, and implemented.

d)  External Recognition

The “Water Pollution Control and Integrated
Usage” program of Greatwall Sungod Chateau,
the “Reduction of Emission of Water Pollution”
program of China Great Wall were recognized by
the States and the related environmental bureau
of Hebei Province, and financial assistance for
environmental protection has been obtained.

The plants of CCBL in Hebei and the other
seven plants were awarded the title of “Excellent
Enterprise in Energy Saving” by the Association of
China Beverages Industry. The plants in Tianjin
and other seven plants were awarded the title
of “Excellent Enterprise in Water Saving” by the
Association of China Beverages Industry.
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STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2015, the Company persisted on its “people-oriented” concept,

responding positively to staff demand and fully protecting the

interest of its staff. In addition, the Company has provided

comprehensive training programs for its staff and offered them with

a good development platform, fostering development for both the

Company and its staff. A working theme “Stay Fit” was established,

from strengthening the team to the establishment of the system,

which enable them to attain strategic targets and operational
results of the Company.

a) Protectmg the Interest of Staff

The Company has strictly complied with the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Labor Contract Law and other relevant laws and
regulations, achieving a 100% labor contract
signing rate for full-time employees.

We are committed to equality for all employees,
ensuring that there are no race, age and
gender discriminations, prohibiting child labor
employment and labor compulsions of any kind.

Competitive remuneration was offered to its
staff, emphasizing recognition and reward of
staff's contributions to the Company, guiding and
promoting staff development.

All employees are provided with five social
insurances and one housing provident fund,
commercial insurance and annual medical
checks, enhancing the quality of life of its staff
and increasing their sense of belonging to the
Company.

In 2015, on the basis of the Company’s social
security and medical insurance programs,
assistance was offered to seven employees with
serious illnesses and sudden deaths, with an
aggregate amount of RMB146,490, according to

the “Employee Supporting Methods of China Foods
Limited”.
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STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

b)

Promoting Staff Development

The Company has formulated “Rules for Talented
Team Building in China Foods”, which clearly
showed concepts and plans for the future
progression of talented staff. Different plans were
custom-made for the development of its staff,
including “Star Plan”, “Dawn Plan”, “Starlight
Plan” and “Sunlight Plan”.

The Company continued the program of
“Entrepreneurship Star” to attract and nurture new
comers. A 6-day concentrated training and 2-week
factory internship were organized for the first batch
of 185 new employees, namely entrepreneurship
stars, were commenced to work in 2015. Through
at least two rounds of job shifting in two different
product category departments, they were assigned

with appropriate positions at the end of the year.
In 2015, 29 campus talks to 5,813 students were
held and 11,012 resumes were collected.
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3. STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT
(continued)
b)  Promoting Staff Development (continued)

In 2015, various training courses conducted by
China Foods were equivalent to 125,819 person-
time, representing about 784,502 class hours.

In 2015, the Company’s remuneration and
performance management standard was fully
upgraded by setting up performance management
system for different levels of staff, so as to strengthen
the foundation of staff performance management
system. The performance management standards
was upgraded through innovative methods. The
performance management concepts were changed
through training and guidance; and the incentive
efficiency was enhanced by a variety of incentive
policies.
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3. STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

b)

c)

Promoting Staff Development (continued)

V.

Vi.

In 2015, the Company conducted a contest
named “Star of Entrepreneur” based on its
entrepreneurial culture. An aggregate of 462 “Star
of Entrepreneur” were elected including “Star of
Service”, “ Star of Innovation”, “ Star of Sales”, “
Star of End User”, “Star of Quality” and “Star of
Efficiency”, in the entire year. At the same time,
the Company made known of their achievements
through different channels such as mail, posters
and Weixin to advocate a practical and aggressive

entrepreneurial culture.

An internal platform of talent exchanges was
established, promoting suitable talent exchanges,
conducting internal recruitment, and providing
staff with ample career development opportunities.

Honours and Recognition

CCBL was awarded the title of “The Best Employer
2015” and the Hebei plant of which won the “Best
Employer Award” in Hebei Province.

The Hunan plant of CCBL won the “Best Employer
Award” in Hunan Province, China for two
consecutive years.
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT

a)

b)

c)

Organised donation activities such as “Spreading Love by
Old Clothes” which gave out more than 1,400 clothes to
poor areas like Xinjiang.

In 2015, the Company made active donations to schools
to help education development for children. The Company
helped poor students to complete their education and
support their healthy growth through projects like “COFCO
Fortune Education Fund” and “Dandelion Philanthropy”.

In October 2015, Zhanjiang Guangdong was severely
affected by typhoon “Rainbow”. The plant of CCBL in
Zhanjiang sent relief supplies at once to the affected
regions, helping the people to overcome difficulties and
started the water purification 24 rescue plan to provide
72,000 bottles of water to the severely affected areas
in time. Meanwhile, CCBL also provided drinking water
to help the victims in places suffered from floods and
earthquakes such as Hunan, Jiangxi, Guizhou and
Xinjiang.
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4. COMMUNITY SUPPORT (continued)

d)

e)

Devoted attention to campus safety. In 2015, training
programs named “Safe Campus”, which focused on
students’ safety in campus, were conducted in the
operational areas of CCBL to help students increase their
ability of self-protection through both class training and
practical exercises. An aggregate of 153 training courses
were conducted in 131 schools, benefitting over 120,000
students in the entire year.

Devoted attention to clean drinking water for children. In
2015, the CCBL water purification plan continued to be
implemented in operational areas and water purification
equipments have been installed in 300 schools. As a result,
over 130,000 students who were previously threatened
by water safety can now get clean drinking water. On
31 October 2015, the plant of CCBL in Hunan hosted
a walkathon named “Walk for Love” in Changsha. Over
3,000 runners finished 36km under the rain for the water
purification plan. Over RMB900,000 was raised, enabling
12,000 kids to have clean water.
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CONCLUSION AND OUTLOOK

In 2015, China Foods regarded food safety as its key responsibility
while developing its own business in creating value for the society. We
operated with integrity and in accordance to law, helped promote the
development and progress of the community and actively participated
in social welfare activities and fulfilled our social responsibility. In
2015, the Company did not encounter any significant incident of
non-compliance. We endeavored to take initiatives to participate
in various social welfare activities as a corporate citizen. Looking
forward, China Foods will further promote and manage its corporate
and social responsibility and continue to improve its ability in fulfilling
responsibilities and its performance, thereby achieving a win-win
development for the enterprise and stakeholders.
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China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is committed to achieve high
standards of corporate governance. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) recognises the importance of maintaining a
good corporate governance standard and practices for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the interests of our shareholders,
investors, customers and staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the Code Provisions throughout the year ended 31
December 2015.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Following
specific enquiries by the Company, all directors of the Company
(“Director(s)”) confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based on
the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees in the
securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are required to comply with the
Employees Trading Code in respect of their dealings in the securities
of the Company. The terms of the Employees Trading Code are no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and seven
non-executive Directors of whom four are independent as defined
under the Listing Rules. Independent non-executive Directors
constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
assessed their independence and concluded that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
definition of the Listing Rules.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in Directors and
Senior Management Profile on pages 36 to 47 of this report. To the
best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors are involved in
any relationship as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The
Company has also maintained on its website (www.chinafoodsitd.
com) and the HKExnews website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk) an
updated list of its Directors identifying their roles and functions.
Composition of the Board, by category of Directors, is explicitly
identified in all the Company’s corporate communications.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in August 2013.
When determining the composition of the Board, the Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, work and professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All appointment of the members
of the Board will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. The ultimate decision will be based
on merits of the candidates and the contribution they will bring to
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying and
nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board and, in carrying out this responsibility,
will give adequate consideration to the board diversity policy.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)

At as the date of this report, the Board comprises nine directors, two
of them are women. The educational background of the directors
cover accounting, business management, economics, sociology,
social science, history, engineering and political studies. The
Company considers that the current composition of the Board has
the characteristics of diversity, whether from perspectives of gender,
professional background and skills.

Board Meeting and General Meeting

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board meetings as
and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings are
sent to Directors or Board committee members at least fourteen (14)
days prior to such meetings and Directors or Board committee members
can include matters for discussion in the agenda for such meetings if
the need arises. For ad hoc meetings, shorter notice may be given.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or other
committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for meeting
proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to the Directors at
least three (3) days before the intended dates of Board meetings or
Board committee meetings.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings have
recorded in sufficient detail matters considered by the Board and
Board committees, decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings and/or Board committee meetings are
sent to Directors or committee members (as the case may be) for their
comment and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after the meetings. The decision of the Board can be made by
written resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
kept by the company secretary and are available to all Directors for
inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to enable them to
discharge their duties effectively, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The cost of procuring these
professional services will be borne by the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a Director, such matter will be discussed through
an actual meeting and will not be dealt with by written resolutions.

Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will
be present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

During the year, other than resolutions passed by means of

resolutions in writing of all Directors, a total of seven Board meetings

and an annual general meeting at which the external auditors

attended were held and the attendance of such meetings by each

Director is set out below. In the following table, the figures in brackets

means the total number of meetings held during each Directors’

tenure throughout the year ended 31 December 2015:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERERRE

=2 (&)

EEERRREAE (H)
HWEBRRAEECEEFTEHTEEZER
TEENRER  FREERSNEREE L
A AN EAEERFET RS - EHH
EEPYENGER B LIFRITESHE
HEEERBNEERET 2% °

AEEAR  BHEBREEFIRBNI IR
@ KBTI ERER SR NBINERE
B ENRRESF S  BUEENZEE
FZHFEBERETAT - TRME - E5R
ANEFIENE R 2015F 12 A31 B I FEH
BEESTHMRRITHSHEN

Annual General

Meeting
Board Meetings* (Note 5)

Name of Director EEfE EEged BRERFERE

(H1#5)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Jiang Guojin TS %A 5/(7) 1/(1)
Ms. Wu Wenting RN g4 5/(7) 0/(1)
Mr. Lu Xiaohui (Note 1) EEEE A (1) 3/(4) 0/(1)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) (Note 2) SEFEE (EE)(K72) 5/(7) 0/(1)
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 3) BRERAE(WE3) 1/7) 0/(1)
Mr. Yu Xubo (Note 4) TR ST (it 4) 3/(7) /(1)
Ms. Liu Ding T 2+ 147) 0n(1)
Mr. Wang Zhiying TFrREAE 3/(7) 1/(1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFBTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark IRVA St 71(7) /1)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A 71(7) 0/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred IS 6/(7) /1)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANSEE 7/7) 0/(1)

During the year, there were three out of the seven board meetings related to

continuing connected transactions and connected transactions, in which non-

executive Directors and/or executive Directors who were deemed to have interest

and had abstained from attending and voting at that board meetings.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting and General Meeting (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lu Xiaohui resigned as executive Director with effect from 26 August 2015.

2. Mr. Ma Jiangping was appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from
26 August 2015.

3. Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 15
February 2016.

4. Mr. Yu Xubo ceased to be the chairman of the Board with effect from 26 August

2015 and resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 15 February 2016.

5. The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 2 June 2015, and
more details are set out in the circular dated 30 April 2015 and the poll results
announcement dated 2 June 2015.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies, reviewing
and monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system, supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group, and approval
of matters or transactions of a material nature or those requiring
disclosure under the Listing Rules.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation of the strategies and
policies set by the Board to the management under the leadership of
the managing director.

During the year, the Company arranged a market visits for Directors
including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors in Chengdu as better understand the Company’s business.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
function such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report contained in this report of the Company.

Appointment and Re-Election/Election of Directors

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) were appointed for specific terms of three years. Pursuant
to bye-law 111 of the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), each
Director (including those appointed for specific terms) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
the retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Director who is
appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director
to the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to election at such
meeting pursuant to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws.

All current Directors have signed formal appointment letters with the
Company with respect to their directorship with the Company.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman or executive Directors’ briefings on the operations and
business of the Group and an induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding on his responsibilities under the relevant
statues, laws, rules and regulations.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development (continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. From
time to time, the company secretary disseminates information on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to the Directors to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
The Company will organise seminars on specific topics of significance
or interest for Directors and management staff and sponsors Directors
to attend professional development seminars or other programmes
where necessary.

During the year, a training session provided by external lawyer on the
topics of regulatory and compliance update which covering corporate
governance, disclosure and managing risk aspects was organized for
the Directors.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of

training received by the Directors during the year is set out below:
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Attending briefings,
seminars, conference and/or
reading materials relevant
to the director’s duties

and responsibilities

S HEEHRE - FIE -

AREEER HEEHE
Name of Director EEMSR EERERBEEENER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Guojin TS %A v
Ms. Wu Wenting RXELZ L v
Mr. Lu Xiaohui (Note 1) EEES A (1) v/
Non-executive Directors FETES
Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) (Note 2) SREFLE (EE)(K72) v
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 3) BRERE(WiE3) v/
Mr. Yu Xubo (Note 4) TR S E (Kit4) v/
Ms. Liu Ding T 2+ v
Mr. Wang Zhiying TrREE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS v
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI v
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred BB E v/
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANTEE v
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lu Xiaohui resigned as executive Director with effect from 26 August 2015.

2. Mr. Ma Jiangping was appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from
26 August 2015.

3. Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 15
February 2016.

4. Mr. Yu Xubo ceased to be the chairman of the Board with effect from 26 August

2015 and resigned as non-executive Director with effect from 15 February 2016.

Directors’ Insurance
During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are segregate and
discharged by different individuals. Currently, the chairman of
the Board is Mr. Ma Jianping, while the managing director of the
Company is Mr. Jiang Guojin. Mr. Ma was appointed to replace Mr.
Yu Xubo who ceased to be the chairman of the Board with effect from
26 August 2015.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring all significant and key
issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a
timely manner.

The managing director of the Company is delegated with the authority
and responsibility to manage the businesses of the Group in all
aspects effectively, implement major strategies, make day-to-day
decision and coordinate overall business operation and regularly
report to the Board.
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ERERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee, to oversee corresponding aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company have
defined terms of reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee currently consists of two executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Guojin who is the chairman of this
committee and Ms. Wu Wenting. Mr. Lu Xiaohui, a former executive
Director, ceased to be a member of the executive committee upon his
resignation took effect from 26 August 2015.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available on
the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com). The primary
responsibility of the executive committee is to deal with and supervise
the day-to-day business operations, management and administration
of the Group. There is no minimum meeting requirements and this
committee shall meet as and when necessary for proper discharge of
its duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee currently consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark who is the
chairman of this committee, Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, Mr. Li Hung
Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on the
website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the HKExnews
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). The duties of the
audit committee are mainly to review the financial information and
reporting process, internal control procedures and risk management
system, audit plan and relationship with external auditors and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and the

attendance by each committee member is set out below:
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EREEE (R)
AEENBITTRREH  SUEEERE
2B ERBIIIT -

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member EEGREHR HIEEERE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Chairman) — #TSf&5c4 (F/&) 2/(2)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TR EE 2/(2)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANSEE 2/(2)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit

committee during the year:

° reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2014,

° reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim financial statements for

the six months ended 30 June 2015;

° reviewed matters relating to the Group’s financial and

accounting policies and practices;

° reviewed continuing connected transactions;

° reviewed external auditor's management letter;

° reviewed the internal audit results and the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control and risk management systems;

° approved the internal audit plan for the year 2015;

° reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources, qualifications

and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, financial
reporting function and internal audit function, and their training
programs;

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
the external auditors of the Company;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

° reviewed updates on the improvement of the Company’s
finance function;

° reviewed the audit fee proposal (including audit and non-audit
services) for the Group for the year 2015; and

° met with the external auditors to discuss the general scope
of their audit work for the financial year ended 31 December
2015.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee currently consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Yuen Tin Fan, Francis who is the chairman of this committee, Mr.
Stephen Edward Clark and Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells and two non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ma Jianping and Mr. Wang Zhiying.
Mr. Ma was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 26 August 2015 and Mr. Yu Xubo, a former non-
executive Director, ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee upon his resignation took effect from 15 February 2016.

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on the
website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the HKExnews
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). The duties of
the remuneration committee are mainly to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual non-executive Directors.

n
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
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EERERRE

FMESS (&)

During the year, the remuneration committee held three meetings KEERNRITT=RE:  BUEEEKE
and the attendance by each committee member is set out below: ZHREEREINAT
Attendance/
Note Number of Meetings
Name of Committee Member EEGREHR Bt HIE SRR
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Chairman) RANTE(EE) 3/(3)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MBS A 3/(3)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A 3/(3)
Mr. Yu Xubo FrE& s 2/(3)
Mr. Ma Jianping BEREE 1 0/(1)
Mr. Wang Zhiying FeREE 3/(3)
Note: F5E -
1. During the year, Two out of three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were 1. REER - HFMEEE = RGEMNEFMIIE

held prior to the appointment of Mr. Ma Jianping as a member on 26 August
2015.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the remuneration
committee during the year:

° reviewed the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management;

° reviewed the Company’s senior management compensation
incentive plan;

° made recommendation to the Board on the 2014 Bonus
Proposal for executive Directors and senior management; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the 2015 executive
Directors and senior management pay adjustment proposal.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee currently consists of three members,
including a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Ma Jianping who is
the chairman of this committee and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan,
Francis. Mr. Ma was appointed to replace Mr. Yu Xubo who ceased
to be the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 26
August 2015.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). The
duties of the nomination committee are mainly to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors; make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and review whether non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are spending enough time to fulfill their
duties annually.

During the year, the nomination committee held three meetings and
the attendance by each committee member is set out below:

REZEES (&)
REZECNHBESEZD TIERAR RS
uh (www.chinafoodsltd.com) KBS Ffr 2 [
52 5 1435k (www.hkexnews.hk) - IR ZE B8 &
CEEBEABHEFTSIRE  RERK
BHE UHBMESS2ANEZREEIE
PHBEZ  UEEARRZDERE )
BBATUETARES  ESEZ RIS
EMETUARETTENESTSREERSE
Z o RFHMEBMIERTES 2B UK
FWTEF(REBUIENTES) RS
BN BBITEBEEFETE -

AEFRBITTZREH  BUZEEXE
ZHFEEREINT -

Attendance/

Note Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREHSR et HEEERE

Mr. Ma Jianping (Chairman) BEFLLE(EE) 1 N/A 73 A

Mr. Yu Xubo T e 3/(3)

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred R hE 3/(3)

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis AL 3/(3)

Note: PEE -

1. The meetings of the Nomination Committee were held prior to the appointment of 1. REZEGEHRIEBTEFLER2015F8H26

Mr. Ma Jianping as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 26 August
2015.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the nomination
committee during the year:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and reviewed whether non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) were
spending enough time to fulfill their duties;

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
an independent non-executive Director; and
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

° made recommendation to the Board on the change of the
chairman of the Board and Nomination Committee and
member of the Remuneration Committee.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is committed to presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s affairs to its
shareholders and the public in accordance with all applicable
statutory requirements.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Company on a going-concern basis.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s
external auditors are set out below:
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REZEE (#)

c REFERRAZEEIE URF
MEBGRENBEAEESRNE
M3 -

B RE
EFGUNRBAAEROEIRE - HA
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B R 2 E Ao o

E=VTNBEREAEHFHBERANEAT
BEMAREH AR RRELENENELS
RESE - At EFCRBREEEEER
SRR B EVERE MIEHK -

B AT &
REER - AR ANINEZEENE X 5

FE )& RESIT

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered Frig iy AR A% B ENANER

HK$'000

FAET

Audit services EET RS 3,227

Non-audit services* I RIS * 922

Total &5t 4,149
* Such services included, among others, interim review and compliance review

relating to continuing connected transactions.

* FZERGEFOEP RS EH RS ERERS
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system and for reviewing its effectiveness,
in particularly in respect of controls on financial, operational,
compliance and risk management, to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The management is primarily
responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal controls system, while the audit committee, on behalf of
the Board, assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group by reviewing the work of the audit and
supervision department and its findings.

A sound system of internal controls is designed to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Company’s internal control system was developed based on
the principles of the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) for internal controls, and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment; Control
Activities; Information and Communication; and Monitoring. In
developing our internal control system based on the COSO principles,
we have taken into consideration of our organisational structure and
the nature of our business activities.

The audit and supervision department (“ASD”) conducts regular and
independent reviews of the effectiveness of the internal controls of the
Group and risk-based audits on the business operations of the Group
in accordance with the annual audit plan approved by the audit
committee at the beginning of each year. The ASD communicates
with the management the audit findings and recommendations
for remedial actions, and performs follow up to confirm that the
implementation of remedial actions by the management occurred.
The audit committee reviews the findings and opinion of the ASD on
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
and risk management semiannually and reports any material issues
to the Board.

The audit committee, as delegated by the Board, reviews the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and audit and supervisor
functions, and their training programs and budget on an annual
basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)
In respect 2015, the Board has reviewed, through the Audit

Committee, the work of the ASD and audit findings in relation to
internal controls (including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions) of the Group and
considered that internal control system is effective and adequate
and the Company has complied with the code provisions on internal
control of the CG Code. The Audit Committee also considers that the
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting,
financial reporting and audit and supervisor functions, their training
programmes, and the budget and resources available to these
functions are adequate

In addition, an email link was set up for employees to express their
opinion or concern about the Group’s operations directly to the
managing director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update her skills
and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-law 68 and section 74 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, shareholders shall have a right to request
the Board to convene a special general meeting of the Company
(“SGM"). Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-
tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company may send a written
requisition to the Board to request for convene a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three (3) months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders (continued)
A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(a) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the total voting rights of all the members of the Company; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than six weeks
before the general meeting (in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution) or not less than one week before the general meeting (in
case of any other requisition). The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangement once a valid requisition is
received.

Procedures for Director’s Nomination and Election by Shareholders
If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the head office of the Company at 33/F.,
COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,
(a) a written notice signed by such shareholder (other than the
proposed person) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
of his/her intention to propose such person for election and (b) a
written notice by the proposed person indicating his/her willingness
to be elected together with the personal information of the proposed
person as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and consent
of publication of his/her personal information.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Director’s Nomination and Election by Shareholders
(continued)

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given shall be
seven days (or such other period as determined and announced by
the Board). Such period will commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, once valid
notice is received.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company attaches great importance to communicate with
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and the Shareholders
Communication Policy was adopted by the Company on 30 March
2012 to ensure the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with the Company’s information in a timely and effective manner.

The means to communicate with the shareholders and the
investment community used by the Company including the following:

i. corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are
available on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.
com) and the HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk);

ii. corporate announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the website of the Company and
the HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange;

iii.  corporate information is made available on the website of the
Company;

iv.  annual and special general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and management executives; and

V. Tricor Progressive Limited, the Company's branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment
and related matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together with
his/her contact details, such as postal address, email address or fax
number, via the company secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., COFCO Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-Laws during the financial year 2015. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-
Laws is available on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.
com) and the HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

With a view to ensure the Company’s sustainable development and

to enhance shareholder values, the strategic objectives of investor

relations function have been clearly defined as follows:

Strategic objectives:

1)  to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant in
the branded consumer foods industry in China, that is in line
with our strategic positioning within the COFCO Group;

2)  tobuild a long-term and trusting shareholder base;

3)  toenhance the knowledge of our investors about the Company;
and

4)  to understand the key concerns of the investment community
and provide timely feedback to our management.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued) REEBR (1E)

Interactions between the Company and the investor community: RARIERER 2 HHNEE -

We believe effective communication and fair information disclosure RMBEERRERM AT EEIEELEAR
builds investor confidence, and also facilitates constructive BEENAEL  WHEBESENRE(RER
feedbacks for continuous improvement. BERE o

In 2015, apart from disclosing transparent and fair financial and 20154 » (BT HEFRMPFREIFESR
operational information in annual and interim reports and having MATHFEREEREE J«/{&Eﬂxﬁjﬁ/\
direct communicate with shareholders at annual general meeting, FEREEEIRIN) BIIIMNEBRUTRE
we have also effectively bridging the Company and the investment BRI AR A B BN B SRR R
community through:

. Interactive communications between our management and o ERBHRIREE DITMAEEEED

investors/analysts directly at post-results briefings, investor He - &ﬁ%@%fﬂmﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂxé%@
conferences and regular investor meetings; and EPEEREERN

. Collection of market feedback, such as research reports and o WEmS O (MR REMTIHE
market views, for the review of our management. E)HREIREEE] -

»-
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7% REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
S EEERE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015, which were approved by the Board
on 22 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries and associated
companies operates four principal businesses involving beverage,
wine, kitchen food and confectionery.

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into an equity transfer
and debt assignment agreement (the “Agreement”) with Tops
Properties Limited (“Tops Properties”), a connected person of the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
pursuant to which the Company will transfer its equity interests and
shareholder’s loan, each relating to Prized Developments Limited, the
holding company of the product base company of the confectionery
business and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Disposal”). Upon the completion of the Disposal, the principal
activities of the Group no longer include confectionery business.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business, are set out
in “Chairman Statement”, “Statement from Managing Director”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Social
Responsibility Report” and “Notes to Financial Statements” sections
of this report. These sections form part of this report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the

state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 244.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent (2014: Nil) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2015, subject to the approval obtained at the annual general meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 1 June 2016, and there was no interim
dividend declared for the six months ended 30 June 2015 (30
June 2014: Nil). The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015 will be distributed on or after Thursday, 7 July 2016
to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Thursday, 16 June 2016.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement made on 9 June
2013, the Company received the approvals of State Administration
of Taxation of the People’s Republic of China which confirmed that
(i) the Company is regarded as a Chinese resident enterprise; and
(i) relevant enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to
the Company starting from 1 January 2013. Thus, the Company
will withhold 10% enterprise income tax when the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is distributed to non-resident
enterprise shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 31 May 2016 to Wednesday,
1 June 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 30 May 2016.
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For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 15 June 2016 to Thursday, 16 June 2016, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
The ex-dividend date will be Monday, 13 June 2016. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 14 June 2016.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 245. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 November 2006
(the “Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the resolution passed by the
Board on 28 March 2011, the vesting and exercise periods for the
options granted under the Option Scheme have been modified. The
following are the principle terms of the Option Scheme:

1.  Purpose of the Option Scheme
To attract, retain and motivate senior management personnel
and key employees of the Company, and to provide eligible
participants with an opportunity to acquire interests in the
Company so as to encourage eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

g =
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2.

Participants of the Option Scheme

Participants of the Option Scheme include (i) any executive or
non-executive directors (excluding independent non-executive
directors) of any members of the Group; (ii) any senior
executives, key technical staff, professional staff, managers
and employees of any members of the Group; or (iii) any other
individuals as may be proposed by the Board.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme
and the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under any other share
option schemes of the Company (if any) are in aggregate equal
to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Option Scheme, i.e. 178,508,197 shares.

As at 31 December 2015, a total of 25,080,000 shares may be
issued by the Company if all share options which were granted
under the Option Scheme have been exercised, representing
approximately 0.9% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Option
Scheme

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any grantee (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
(the “Individual Limit”) at the relevant time. Any further grant
of options in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Period within which an option must be exercised

The directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which an option may be exercised, save that in
any event such period of time shall not exceed a period of seven
years commencing on the date of acceptance of the option and
expiring on the last date of such seven-year period, subject to
early termination thereof as provided in the Option Scheme.

BB
2.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

%E“#E“EJ (ifﬁ)

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

An option must be held for a minimum period of two years from
the date of grant before it can be exercised.

The first batch of share options, which were granted on 27
September 2007, has lapsed on 27 September 2014 due to the
expiry of the exercised period.

The options granted after 28 March 2011 are subject to the
following new vesting schedule:

BRETENLARE ZREHR
BRENTEAABRY AHERSE
R MR e

122007 F9 A 27 B HHE —HEEE X
RRTERRERZ N 201459 A 27
EFSIE

720114 3 A 28 H AR & L eV B AR i
AIZBSIA T H R B KRR

Maximum percentage
of options which
may be exercised

Periods BRZA{TE

]| BREZBESHL

— Upon and after the second anniversary of the grant - BRNBHRE AT 20%
until the third anniversary of the grant LEBEE=ZFAF

— Upon and after the third anniversary of the grant - BRN BB E=ZATF 40%
until the fourth anniversary of the grant LEBEFENEF

— Upon and after the fourth anniversary of the grant - B AR E N EF 60%
until the fifth anniversary of the grant LEBREERRT

— Upon and after the fifth anniversary of the grant -BRH BB EREAT 80%
until the sixth anniversary of the grant LEBEFEREF

— Upon and after the sixth anniversary of the grant - B BT ENET 100%
until the seventh anniversary of the grant LEBEELEFT

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance
of the option

The offer of an option made pursuant to the Option Scheme
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer and
the amount payable on acceptance of the option is HK$1.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
offer; (b) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer;
or (c) the nominal value of a share.

L3
% China Foods Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
L

EMBREZBRRENRE

REBREAIRLBEEZEZNOLD
ARBHHBET T N\RRNER
o MR ABRERNFKIARLE
JC °

EETHEEZEE
TRERESEEEE  YARUT=
Rz &eE  (REBENEREBBA
RHMBRAR (B ZRRE
RFTEBOETHE - (D) RERELHA
HIpThEE X AB e HRERMNA
FA D 2 FHWHE - k(c) B zmE
R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEeRE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) ﬁﬂ“jfg“l';J (&)
9. Duration of the Option Scheme BREE 2B
The Option Scheme is valid until 20 November 2016. RERRRERT & 2 BN 2016511 20
B °
10. Movement of share options 10. BBREZ2H
Details of the movements in the share options during the year HZE2015F12A31HIEFE - B
ended 31 December 2015 are as follows: FEZEB)FEEMT ¢
Number of share options
BRENEE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise Exercise
Name or category Date of grant of 01.01.2015 during during during 31.12.2015 period of price of
of participant share options R2015% the year the year the year R2015% share options share options
SRARARER REBRERS 1518 ERRd Ehfrfe ER%H 128318 RRETHS ERETEE
HKS
o
Directors
£
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 1) 29032011 740,000 - - - 740,000 29032013 4910
ERERE () 803018
Ms. Liu Ding 29032011 600,000 - - - 600,000 29032013 4910
Tt 28032018
Mr. Ma Jianping 29032011 600,000 - - - 600,000 29032013 4910
SRk 28032018
Ms. Wu Wenting 29032011 600,000 - - - 600,000 29.03.2013- 4910
RNELT 28032018
Other employees 29032011 23,160,000 - - (620,000) 22,540,000 29.03.2013- 4910
L (Note 1) 28032018
(Mx1)
Total 25,700,000 - - (620,000) 25,080,000
iy

Note: BisE -

1. Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 1. FERELECHIERTES - 52016
15 February 2016. F2R 15 HBAER -

2. During the year, 440,000 vested options lapsed upon the expiry of 2. AEERN - BIEBEERETE KR
stipulated period in accordance with the term of the Option Scheme, while 440,000 B 55 8 B0 B8 IR 1T AT AR TE 1) I
180,000 unvested options lapsed upon the resignation of an employee of Fi P e 2R 28+ 7 180,000 19 7K 57 88 # f
the Company in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. REIEA AN R —% B B BB M R
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in notes 31 and 44 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to approximately HK$6,063,636,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 5% of the Group’s total sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers. Approximately
69% of the Group’s total purchases were attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers, with the largest supplier accounting for
approximately 49%.

Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, COFCO
Corporation (“COFCQ”), which is one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the other four largest suppliers
or the five largest customers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Jiang Guojin
Ms. Wu Wenting
Mr. Lu Xiachui Mete D

L3
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ma Jianping o2 (Chairman)
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Nete3)

Mr. Yu Xubo MNete®

Ms. Liu Ding

Mr. Wang Zhiying

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

Notes:

1. Mr. Lu Xiaohui resigned as an executive Director with effective from 26 August
2015.

2. Mr. Ma Jianping was appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from 26
August 2015.

3. Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as a non-executive Director with effective from 15
February 2016.

4, Mr. Yu Xubo ceased to be the chairman of the Board with effect from 26 August
2015 and resigned as a non-executive Director with effective from 15 February
2016.

All Directors including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors are appointed with specific terms.

Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by bye-law 111(A) of the Company’s
bye-laws. Accordingly, Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, Mr. Ma Jianping
and Ms. Wu Wenting will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and that a confirmation of independence has
been received from each of them.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGMENT
PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company’s Directors and Senior
Management are set out on pages 36 to 47 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the Group’s business to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is authorised by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The directors’ emoluments
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation by
the remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their
job complexity, workload and responsibilities and the Company’s
remuneration policy.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into
or existed during the year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
OPTIONS

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
issued any convertible securities, warrants or options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”) as recorded in the register of interests of the Company
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
the “Discloseable Interests”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EERROREBRO 2EZR
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued) %& (&)

15 February 2016.

(A) Discloseable interests in the shares and underlying shares of (A) RAEQXTzZBRHOREBERKRAZEHE

the Company e

Total number Approximate

Number of of shares and percentage of

underlying underlying issued shares

Capacity/ Number of shares held shares held HEBT

Name of Director Nature of Interest shares held Jiieeiilc FRRAR RH

EEpE B/ RREME FRRHEA RBHAE HERRGEE BAEL

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)

(F&E1) (F3E2) (FzE3)

Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 4) Beneficial Owner - 740,000 740,000 0.03%
EEEL (IE4) ERBEEA

Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 426,000 - 426,000 0.02%
TESEE ERBEEA

Ms. Liu Ding Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
W7 zx ERBEEA

Mr. Ma Jianping Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
BRVEE ERBEEA

Ms. Wu Wenting Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
R¥fert ERBEEA

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells Beneficial Owner 200,000 - 290,000 0.01%
BB EE ERBEEA

Interest of Spouse 90,000 -

L 5o

Notes: PfeE -

1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity derivatives 1. ANEIIRG 2 5F B (BRASTE T AEER
such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. - SRR S IR ESRIN) o

2. Long positions in the underlying shares of the Company under share 2. RBERETEMESRLOEREET
options granted to Directors pursuant to the Option Scheme. NAREBERO MR -

3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares 3. Ao TIBEBEARARR20156F 12 A31H
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2015, i.e. 2,797,223,396 2 BRI B SR 2,797,223,396 %A%
shares. M)FHE -

4. Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 4.,

ERBELEREIIFFNMTES - B2016%2
H 15 BRRER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

(B) Discloseable interests in the shares and underlying shares

of an associated corporation, China Agri Industries Holdings

EERROREBRD 2ERR

.

xR ()

(B) R—RMEBEE (hEREZERERA
B[ EEHm ) 2RO RAEBRD 2

Limited (“China Agri”) AR EER
Total
number of Approximate
Number of shares and percentage of
underlying underlying issued shares
Capacity/ Number of shares held shares held HEBT
Name of Director Nature of Interest shares held FristaRs sk R i)
BEEHE a7/ ERtE  FRBRAHE ROBE  HERGEH BAED
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(MEED) (FzE2) (P3E3)
Mr. Ning Gaoning (Note 4) Beneficial Owner - 636,000 636,000 0.01%
ERELAE (L) ERBAA
Mr. Yu Xubo (Note 5) Beneficial Owner - 636,000 871,364 0.02%
FER 54 (FEES) ERBAA
Interest of Spouse 235,364
[
Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 100 - 100 0.00%
TESLE ERBAA
Mr. Wang Zhiying Beneficial Owner 39,000 583,000 622,000 0.01%
IBEE ERBEAA
Notes: PEE -
1. Long positions in the shares of China Agri, other than equity derivatives 1. FERE BRI 2B (RAPTET AMEE
such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. ARAE - RARAERE SR AT IRMRE BRI o
2. Long positions in the underlying shares of China Agri under share options 2. RIER B R ER T EIMESRENE
granted to Directors pursuant to a share option scheme of China Agri. A&AETE R BUEMABRAIR (D 2 0F &
3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares of 3. AP TYIREF B H MR 20154 12 A 31
China Agri in issue as at 31 December 2015, i.e., 5,249,880,788 shares. A2 B #1728 (BN5,249,880,788 %
B ) 5T HE o
4, Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as a non-executive director of the Company 4. B hERERR R RFEEHIENT
and China Agri with effect from 15 February 2016 and 16 February 2016, £ HAlE201642 A15H K 20164
respectively. 2R 16 BRBAER °
5. Mr. Yu Xubo resigned as non-executive director of the Company, with 5. TR EEFEARNGENITES - B
effect from 15 February 2016. 201642 A 15 HAEARR -
Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2015, none of the B ARERE PRI EE SN 0 20154 12 A 31

Directors nor their associates had any other Discloseable Interests.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests of the
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, were as
follows:

Aggregate Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FTERREEMALTREKRSGKAE
ERD 2 EERAR

M2015F 12 A31 H » RigZEH LS D
EXVEE2REIDEMMAEGARA + iR
ReE 57 R EE IR0 5% 336 IRACEN AR R
FEZERELMA  FTERRNAR AR
0 MARRAR D Z s SOR BTN T

RAXTRDRABRG 2FRRAH

Number of shares held (Note 1)

FrisRaee (1)
Approximate
Through percentage of
Name of Directly controlled issued shares
substantial shareholder beneficially owned corporations Total HERTRS
TERRER HEERES BBTEEE e MBABE S
(Note 2)
(F5E2)
COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited 2,072,688,331 - 2,072,688,331 74.10%
(Note 3)
(Fft3E3)
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
HEE (58) BRAH (Nofe 4
(FEE4)
COFCO Corporation - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FRREBFRAR (Note 5)
(HizE5)
Notes: Fff3E
1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity derivatives such 1. RARRG 2T R (RATTETAMERE - R
as share options, warrants or convertible bonds. A AERE S AT AR B H BRI ) ©
2. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of shares of the 2. AOLLBEAARN2015F 12 A31 B2 B3

Company in issue as at 31 December 2015, i.e. 2,797,223,396 shares.

3. COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited (“COFCO (BVI) 108”) changed its name to China
Foods (Holdings) Limited with effect from 4 January 2016.

4, COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)") was deemed to be interested in
2,072,688,331 shares held by COFCO (BVI) 108 which was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of COFCO (HK).

5. COFCO Corporation was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331 shares held
by COFCO (BVI) 108 and COFCO (HK) which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of
COFCO Corporation.

1Tk D 482 (BN 2,797,223,396 Bk (7)1 & ©

3. COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited ([COFCO (BVI)
108) #EHEABATBERR (JER) BRAR
H2016F 1 B4 B4R -

4. TREE (B ARAR ([HREE ) FRARN
COFCO (BVI) 108 (R EEBNEAMNBAR)
P 2,072,688, 331 A0 Hh B 1 o

5. i LB AR DRI /7 COFCO (BVI) 108 &
TREEBATREBEAERATNZEMEA
B FiFs& #£2,072,688,331 ik fn h A Has

PR ERAERAE 201548

-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERIE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors
were not aware of substantial shareholders and other persons who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES - BANKING
FACILITY WITH COVENANT RELATING

TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the Directors report the following loan facilities which entered
during the year and up to the date of this report and included
a condition relating to specific performance of the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

1. On 11 September 2013, the Company, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement (the “A Facility Agreement”) with two
financial institutions as mandated lead arrangers and lenders
(the “Lenders”) and one of the financial institutions as agent
(the “Agent”). Pursuant to the A Facility Agreement, a term
loan facility in an aggregate sum of HK$1,100,000,000 (the “A
Facility”) is made available by the Lenders to the Company on
the terms and conditions contained therein. The final maturity
date of the A Facility shall be thirty-six months after the date of
the A Facility Agreement.

Pursuant to the A Facility Agreement, it will be an event of
default, inter alia, if (i) the Company is not or ceases to be a
direct or indirect subsidiary of COFCO; or COFCO is not or
ceases to be the single largest and controlling shareholder of
the Company or does not or ceases to hold the majority voting
rights in the Company; or (ii) COFCO is not or ceases to be
wholly-owned (direct or indirect) by or controlled (directly or
indirectly) by the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERIE

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES - BANKING
FACILITY WITH COVENANT RELATING

TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (continued)

LHRAE+ =B FEEE -
BARERBRREBTRESELZ
RITRHERY (&)

On and at any time after an event of default has occurred and
is continuing the Agent may, and shall if so directed by the
Lenders whose aggregate participations in the A Facility then
outstanding are 66-2/3% or more of such A Facility, by notice
to the Company: (i) cancel the total commitments or any
part of any commitment under the A Facility Agreement; (ii)
declare that the all or part of the loans made under the A Facility
together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued
or outstanding under the A Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable; and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loans
made under the A Facility be payable on demand.

On 17 March 2014, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “B Facility Agreement”) relating to a term
loan facility in an aggregate sum of HK$700,000,000 (or its
US$ equivalent) (the “B Facility”) to be made available to the
Company, as borrower. The maturity date of the B Facility shall
be thirty-six months after the date of the B Facility Agreement.

Pursuant to the B Facility Agreement, it will be an event of
default, inter alia, if (i) COFCO is not or ceases to be the single
largest and ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
or does not or ceases to own directly or indirectly at least 51%
of the issued share capital of the Company; or (ii) COFCO is
not or ceases to be a company under the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China.

On and at any time after an event of default has occurred and
is continuing Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as the agent
may, and shall if so directed by a lender or lenders whose
aggregate participations in the loans made under the B Facility
(the “Loans”) then outstanding aggregate are more than 66-
2/3% of such Loans, by notice to the Company: (i) cancel all or
any part of the commitments under the B Facility Agreement;
(ii) declare that the all or part of the Loans together with accrued
interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under
the B Facility Agreement be immediately due and payable;
and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the Loans be payable on
demand.

A 3R IR 4 F B R BRI R
BRER  REA(WEEZAREE
Ry 1) AR (B R AR FE H9 66-2/3% S LA HHY
ERARER) ATAARR R A
(VBUHSARE i ] [y 2 B0k X
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BB EFER B L
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AR TEIRHER -

R2014F3A178  ARBERRE
RARFBRRARRRERELSE
# 700,000,000 7T (k& E%E7T) ([ BRE
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B A e A HIR AERT 36 B A -

REBEE M HHR(HEHEHE)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERIE

DIVIDEND RESTRICTION IN BANKING FACILITY

The B Facility Agreement contains a financial covenant (the
“Financial Covenant”) that no more than 20% of the Company’s
distributable profits in each financial year shall be paid by way of
dividend during the term of the B Facility. Such Financial Covenant was
deleted from the B Facility Agreement with effect from 25 August 2015.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group, in the ordinary and usual course of
business, conducted various transactions with certain connected
persons of the Company including COFCO, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, and its subsidiaries (for the purpose of
this section, excluding the Group, collectively the “COFCO Group”)
and associates of COFCO.

I. CONNECTED TRANSACTION
1.  DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTERESTS AND ASSIGNMENT

OF DEBT OF PRIZED DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into
an equity transfer and debt assignment agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Tops Properties. Pursuant to
the Agreement, the Company will transfer its equity
interests and shareholder’s loan, each relating to the
Prized Developments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, to Tops Properties for a total consideration of
RMB611,000,000, subject to potential adjustments as
disclosed in the Agreement.

Tops Properties is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO
Property (Group) Co., Ltd., which is 45.67% owned by
COFCO, hence, a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

It is expected that a special general meeting of the
Company will be convened for the independent
shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, approve the
Agreement and the transaction. Details of the Agreement
and the transactions contemplated therein were
disclosed in announcements of the Company dated 31
December 2015, 26 January 2016 and 10 March 2016.
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II. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

2014 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION OF PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and COFCO
entered into a mutual provision of products and services
agreement for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017
(the “2014 COFCO Mutual Provision of Products and
Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014 COFCO
Mutual Provision of Products and Services Agreement,
the COFCO Group and COFCQ'’s associates shall supply
certain raw materials, consumer products, packaging
materials and other products owned, manufactured, or
resold by the COFCO Group and COFCOQO’s associates and
provide property leasing and other services to the Group
while the Group shall supply certain consumer products
and other products owned, manufactured, or resold by
the Group and provide information technology services
and other services to the COFCO Group and COFCQO’s
associates. Details of the 2014 COFCO Mutual Provision
of Products and Services Agreement were disclosed in
an announcement of the Company dated 8 December
2014 (the “2014 Announcement”) and a circular of the
Company dated 10 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, (a) the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to the COFCO Group
and COFCOQ'’s associates for the purchase of products,
raw materials, packaging materials, services and others
was approximately RMB8,977 million; and (b) the total
amount paid/payable by COFCO Group and COFCO’s
associates to the Group for the purchase of consumer
products, services and others was approximately
RMB302 million.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FERIE

Il. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

2.

2014 BEVERAGE BASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
On 8 December 2014, the Company and Tianjin Jin
Mei entered into a beverage base purchase agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the “2014
Beverage Base Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the
2014 Beverage Base Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from Tianjin Jin
Mei shall purchase beverage bases from Tianjin Jin Mei
at prices determined by Coca-Cola (Shanghai). Details
of the 2014 Beverage Base Purchase Agreement were
disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to Tianjin Jin Mei
for the purchase of beverage bases was approximately
RMB16.32 million.

2014 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Coca-
Cola (Shanghai) entered into a concentrate purchase
agreement for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the
“2014 Concentrate Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to
the 2014 Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates from Coca-
Cola (Shanghai) at prices determined by Coca-Cola
(Shanghai). Details of the 2014 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to Coca-Cola (Shanghai)
for the purchase of concentrates was approximately
RMB1,295 million.
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Il. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

4.

2014 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
On 8 December 2014, the Company and Coca-Cola
Bottlers Management Service (Shanghai) Limited
(“Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai)”), a connected person
of the Company, entered into a still beverages purchase
agreement for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the
“2014 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant
to the 2014 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement, certain
members of the Group shall purchase still beverages
from the Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) for distribution
and resale within designated areas in the PRC. Details
of the 2014 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement were
disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola Bottlers
(Shanghai) for the purchase of still beverages was
approximately RMB1,602 million.

2014 ZIJIANG PROVISION OF PACKAGING
MATERIALS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, Tianjin Bottler and Zijiang entered
into a provision of packaging materials and services
agreement for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017
(the “2014 Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials
and Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014
Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials and Services
Agreement, Zijiang shall supply packaging materials and
provide conversion services and other services to Tianjin
Bottler. Details of the 2014 Zijiang Provision of Packaging
Materials and Services Agreement were disclosed in the
2014 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total amount
paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to Zijiang for the
purchase of packaging materials and conversion services
was approximately RMB45.48 million.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FERIE

Il. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

6.

China Foods Limited

NEW FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 29 January 2015, the Company and COFCO
Finance Corporation Limited (“COFCO Finance”)
entered into a financial services agreement for a term
commencing from 29 January 2015 and expiring on
31 December 2015 (the “New Financial Services
Agreement”). Pursuant to which, COFCO Finance shall
provide the Group (i) depository services; and (ii) fund
transfer services. Details of the New Financial Services
Agreement were disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 29 January 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the maximum
daily deposit amount (including accrued interests)
placed by the Group with COFCO Finance was
approximately HK$253 million.

2015 FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 11 December 2015, the Company, COFCO Foods
Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd. (“Sales & Distribution
Company”) and COFCO Finance entered into a financial
services agreement for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31 December 2018
(the “2015 Financial Services Agreement”). Pursuant
to which, COFCO Finance shall provide the Group
depository services, fund transfer services, entrustment
loan services and the other financial services. Details of
the 2015 Financial Services Agreement were disclosed in
an announcement of the Company dated 11 December
2015. The annual caps in respect of the maximum daily
deposit amount (including the corresponding interest
accrued thereon) placed by the Group with COFCO
Finance for the years ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018 will be RMB400 million, RMB400 million, and
RMB400 million, respectively.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions numbered 1 to 6 disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 6 for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and the report of the Company’s auditors,
and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were:

1.  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors are considered to have interests in any
business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of
the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FERIE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 68 to 87 of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB2.53 million.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditors of the Company
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including the review of the accounting
practices and principles adopted by the Group.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young shall retire and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment at the forth coming annual general meeting, a resolution
for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
MA lJianping
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

P
EY

To the shareholders of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Foods Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 111 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
B BN ()

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central

Hong Kong

22 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
n _\éﬁéﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

2015 2014
20154 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FAT
(Restated)
(E%))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
REVENUE A 5 27,842,170 26,238,668
Cost of sales SHER A (21,497,933) (20,125,020)
Gross profit EA 6,344,237 6,113,648
Other income and gains EH U A R s 5 423,136 413,018
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DT H (5,266,204) (5,334,439)
Administrative expenses T (744,116) (724,431)
Other expenses and losses HAbsz i R EHE (58,471) (77,637)
Finance costs BhE RN 7 (64,822) (69,844)
Share of profits of associates JE(RERE R E) T 71,872 93,816
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM SIEREEK
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Z BB AR R 6 705,632 414,131
Income tax expense i 10 (285,622) (223,829)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM SIERE ]
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ZEERF 420,010 190,302
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRI
Loss for the year from a discontinued IR TS 2
operation FEEE 11 (98,523) (163,095)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEFN 321,487 27,207
Attributable to: FEMRTT -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIL PPN 13 79,153 (224,688)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 242,334 251,895
321,487 27,207
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE B RAREERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BEEAEGEER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BR(&EE) 13
Basic HAR
— For the profit/(loss) for the year —FEuHMN(ER) HK2.83 cents &l  (HKS.03 cents/5ill)
— For the profit/(loss) from continuing —FHEKEEK
operations wmAl (E18) HK6.35 cents &l (HK2.20 cents5ll)
Diluted e
— For the profit/(loss) for the year —FEEHM(EER) HK2.83 cents &l  (HKS.03 cents/5ill)
— For the profit/(loss) from continuing —FHEKEEK
operations wmAl (E18) HK6.35 cents &l (HK2.20 cents 751ll)

Y
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2015 2014
20154 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERRN 321,487 27,207
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hih2HEER
Other comprehensive loss to be 1SR AT AR E 37
reclassified to profit or loss in DEEBTZ
subsequent periods: Hm2EEE :
Exchange differences on BEGINETS
translation of foreign operations 2[R =R (545,010) (51,694)
Share of other comprehensive FEMR—MEHEE A F]
income of an associate H2EBA 682 657
Net other comprehensive loss to B AR EAR E ST 48
be reclassified to profit or loss EESCZEMERE
in subsequent periods EiEF5E (544,328) (51,037)
Other comprehensive income not B R AR B E ST
to be reclassified to profit or loss DEEERCEM
in subsequent periods: ZHEUBA
Gains on property revaluation S ES L G
(note 14) (Kt7E14) 5,586 7,299
Income tax effect FTiSfis & (1,397) (1,825)
Net other comprehensive income 1SR E R AR BRE =R
not to be reclassified to profit or pay X Enpaaiu]
loss in subsequent periods Z2HERAFEE 4,189 5,474
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEHMEEERER
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (BHRFE) (540,139) (45,563)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FE2HEEE
FOR THE YEAR B (218,652) (18,356)
Attributable to: FEMRTT -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIETY-PN (373,801) (262,494)
Non-controlling interests eI 155,149 244,138
(218,652) (18,356)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
et FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WERRE 14 4,501,734 4,700,272
Investment properties WEME 15 34,735 98,331
Prepaid land premiums A Lt E 16 459,851 424,026
Deposits for purchase of items of BEWE BWERX
property, plant and equipment REEE S 15,500 14,286
Goodwill SRS 17 1,684,061 1,742,224
Other intangible assets Hibfmp EE 18 15,610 27,370
Investments in associates REZENF2IKE 19 780,759 758,932
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 20 209,637 214,106
Deferred tax assets FRIEFRIAE = 28 182,837 184,521
Biological assets EYEE 21 198,172 200,806
Total non-current assets IEREEELE 8,082,896 8,364,874
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 75 22 4,038,615 4.301,418
Accounts and bills receivables JEUBR T N =ik 23 1,376,410 1,771,192
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - ek
other receivables H b e U I8 1,372,867 1,186,912
Due from fellow subsidiaries BESNIENEIVER 37 351,977 578,278
Due from the ultimate holding company — SARIERY A IR K 37 14,157 15,202
Due from an intermediate holding F AR A ]
company KR 37 162 171
Due from non-controlling shareholders KB A &) 2 FEFEEHL
of subsidiaries e 37 15,394 37,711
Due from associates NI 19 10,496 16,273
Prepaid tax TE@RIA 42,703 41,225
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE 20 = 399,305
Equity investments at fair value ZAHEYABZE
through profit or loss ZERKNE 24 - 14,728
Restricted bank balances SRR FIERTTAE SR 25 6,974 -
Pledged deposits TR 25 64,980 162,947
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeE@EAR 25 899,170 1,356,458
8,193,905 9,881,820
Assets of a disposal group classified DERFEHEZ
as held for sale HEREEE 11 375,131 -
Total current assets MEVBEMLE 8,569,036 9,881,820
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
AR R (B)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2015 2014
20154 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FHET FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accounts and bills payables FERBRR R EE 26 1,300,096 1,372,106
Other payables and H A JE T 5RIE
accruals EETEaE 3,246,483 3,368,978
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNGES NENGIE- ¢ 37 1,270,244 1,253,117
Due to the ultimate holding company IR BRI N BB 37 25,467 27,915
Due to related companies REBE N FIFIA 37 9,817 88,765
Due to non-controlling shareholders RWBRAT 2 IEER
of subsidiaries % B 7108 37 553,991 48,103
Due to associates NN EE] 19 176,405 154,453
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRITER K
other borrowings EMER 27 1,647,650 1,360,994
Tax payable FESTRE IR 48,536 96,784
8,278,689 7,771,215
Liabilities directly associated with HEEDERFE
the assets of a disposal group HEZHEHRESE
classified as held for sale BEEEHECZAE 11 101,694 -
Total current liabilities mENBEEE 8,380,383 7,771,215
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 188,653 2,110,605
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABRABERS 8,271,549 10,475,479

: =
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
IRE SRR ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2015 2014
2015 20144
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bat FExT FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTRIRITER 27 1,000,000 2,100,000
Due to non-controlling shareholders RHIBARZ
of subsidiaries JEIRRR IR R IR 37 = 28,446
Deferred income TEIEUTA 155,888 160,613
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIBAE 28 39,487 63,873
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 1,195,375 2,352,932
Net assets BEFE 7,076,174 8,122,547
EQUITY &N
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 B H A EIERA
Issued capital BEEITRAR 29 279,722 279,722
Other reserves HAibfEE 31 5,236,595 5,607,927
5,516,317 5,887,649
Non-controlling interests IR 1,559,857 2,234,898
Total equity A 4aE 7,076,174 8,122,547
Jiang Guojin Wu Wenting
TS RN
Director Director
-1 2=

-
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e HRK

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BAARRARE

Employee
Share  share-hased Exchange Reset
Issued ~ premium compensation ~ Capital ~ Reseme fluctuation  revaluation  Retained
capital -~ account resene resene funds — resene  resene’ profits Total
f8
iyt E 4
BRARE RMEEE EMBE  EARR BB  MERE  ERR RO Lh
Note HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity

FERER  RSE
HKS000  HK$'000

#z TET TET TR TEmL TR T TERL TR AL TEm TR
(note 29) (note31)  (note 31)
(k&) (330 (W)

At 1 January 2015 ROBEIRLA 722 3T 20807 3246809 250813 113139 12384 899528 5887649 2234898 8122547
Proft for e ear EREA - - - - - - - 915 7o M 31487
(thercomprehensie (3200 Y

ncomellos) forreyear, (B8

(s on property VEEIYE

revaluaion, et ot (BHgiE) - - - - - -4 ALY - 418
Bichange diferences on

tnsatonoffoegn  BEENERE,

operaons EizE - - - - - (457586) - - (457586)  (87424)  (45000)
Shere of oher

omprerensieincone EE-EREAT

of an associee Ef2ERA - - - “ - - - - 3 yE] 682
Tt compefesie EERhy/

comellos ortheveer  (EfE) 4% - - - 443 - W) 4180 79153 (3730 15549 (218652)
Eouityseted sere FhGEERE

apton arrangements e Rl - - 2,469 - - - - - 2469 - 2,469
Transfer of employee

share-dased compensetion - RERE RSB 58

eseneupon e foreture. EREERARE

oepyoseeoins  HHEE - SR V) - - - -1 - - -
Trnser fom etaned pofts. - SREHER - - - - 101,208 - - (101,206) - - -
Contribution rom a

non<ontoling - BRI

shaehoderofasubsidy  REER - - - - - - - - B K/ X
Dividends attributzble o

non-<ontoling sheeholders HIBAFEERER

of subsidries ol - - - - - - - - - (839,564)  (839,564)
431 December 2015 ROBEAIIA T2 3er 30n4r 324733 3019 673593 16573 878677* 5516317 1559857 7,076,174
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
FERRNEEmE (B)

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

Afrbutable to owners of the parent

BOTEEARL
Employee
Share  share-based Bichange Aset Non-
Issied  premium - compensation ol Resene  flchuton ~ revalugtion ~ Retained controling Totel
cptd oot reseneresene finds — resene resene’ profis Tolal  inferests equity
[E8
finis Ef AR
EEARE ROEEE  EEERE  ERER BBt MEERE  EAE  RIM B il ook
ote HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSDOD  HKSOOD  HHSOO  HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOQO
3 TR TR TR TEL TAm TAm TEL TR TR TEL TEn
(note 29 (note3D)  [note31)
() (30 (h3)
At 1 lanuary 2014 ROUEIRIR nn 31307 408 34622 29307 117076 0910  LI0M6 614097 200 819825
Poftloss fortheyer ~ EERR/(BB) - - - - - v ST V- W
Ot compreenshe ERERRENN:
income for the year:
(e on popery, VEETLE
revaluation net oftx (BABRE) - - - T - hm - R
Bichange diferences on
tanseinolfoelgn ~ AEENERE,
operaions EizE - - - B - - B ) L
Shareof oher
ompefensieincone EA-TEERT
of an assocee Ef2EkA - 67 - - - - 657 &7
Tt comprefensie Ezamp/
comellos ortheyeer (B8 657 - BS) S (4e% (0M%4 1B (183%0)
fuipsetfed sharecptin. A6
anangements gz ki 4168 - - - - - 1168
Transfer o employee
share-ased HERER)
omensineserne SO
upon e forfetue o B
ooiyofshaeoptions - BEEREE - (15 - - - - b5 - - -
Transer from reained pofts.~ ERZRHIER - - - 1506 - - (1he) - - -
Dividends paid o
noncontling FHELTHERRR
Shareholdersof subsidares  XfHE - - - - - - - Bl (pLAs)
A3 Demncember 2014 ROUE12R31E N 3 Bl 32680 200813 L1310 1B 8908 A8TEM9 22388 812
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * BEFER A BRRE B AR A
HK$5,236,595,000 (2014: HK$5,607,927,000) in the consolidated & A it (# 1# 5,236,5695,000,% 7T (2014 F -

statement of financial position.

The asset revaluation reserve arose from changes in use from owner-

5,607,927,000;87T) °

Y HAMEBESREVFELNEEER

occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair value. B BT FESE -

-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K THER T
(Restated)
(E51)
CASH FLOWS FROM ReExBoRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRELATEF], (B518) -
From continuing operations RERECEER 705,632 414,131
From a discontinued operation RER TR 11 (98,470) (163,323)
Adjustments for: FLTFIEE fELAR
Finance costs AR 7 64,822 69,844
Share of profits of associates N (71,872) (93,816)
Interest income FIBWA (27,924) (28,453)
Dividend income from AHHEREC
available-for-sale investments % BUA 5 (46,862) (37,033)
Dividend income from equity investments BATEFABR
at fair value through profit or loss ZHERFEZBRBIA 5 - (499)
Fair value gains on equity investments BATEIABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BRBE 2 ATERE 5 - (856)
Gain on disposal of equity investments HERATEIABR
at fair value through profit or loss ZIEmRE 7 W 5 (4,466) -
Fair value gains on biological assets, net EMEEL A TERZFE 6 (10,223) (3,105)
Impairment of receivables, net W FIBRE TR 49,525 31,251
Equity-settled share option expense WAL EERERY 6 2,469 4,168
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hip B 6 9,794 11,487
Depreciation nE 14 510,668 498,572
Fair value gains on investment properties BEWME 2 NFENE 15 (2,004) (305)
Loss on disposal/iwrite-off of items of HE/WENE - BER
property, plant and equipment REBEE BB 4,526 4,141
Loss on disposal of biological assets EYMBEREBRX 6 20 -
Impairment of available-for-sale AfHHERE
investments ZRME 6 3,477 -
Impairment of items of property, ME - BEREE
plant and equipment BE ZRE 14 5,104 47,813
Recognition of prepaid land premiums REMTIE 6 11,359 11,357
Provision against inventories FERE 54,966 56,042
Government grants BSH B (168,054) (227,359)
Gain on bargain purchase EEWERE 5 - (211)
992,487 593,846

L3
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
FeEReRER(B)

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
(Restated)
(E£71)
Decrease in inventories FERD 118,794 1,510,178
Decrease/(increase) in accounts L E e
and bills receivables /() 325,196 (103,529)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRHE  Ze Rk
deposits and other receivables Hip a3 m) (229,412) 391,749
Decrease in amounts due from BESNEINGIVES
fellow subsidiaries B 201,461 126,690
Decrease in an amount due from SERERARRZR
the ultimate holding company w 1,045 23,161
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due R D RIR R
from an intermediate holding company wL/ () 9 2
Decrease/(increase) in amounts KB AR
due from non-controlling FEERR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries REED/($h0) 22,317 (10,891)
Decrease in amounts due from associates BEDRRFORAD 5,777 5,480
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and R ER R EE
bills payables #,/CRd) (33,896) 179,370
Decrease in other payables and accruals H b fERRUE K BT A ER D (71,877) (255,897)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due UNEEY )= PNGIE R
to fellow subsidiaries #m,/ () 19,020 (1,090,456)
Decrease in an amount due to the YN S 2 UNCIEQ
ultimate holding company b (2,448) (39,112)
Decrease in amounts due to related REGENFIFIR
companies B (78,886) (710,464)
Decrease in amounts due to U EENE]
non-controlling shareholders FEERR AR R F0A
of subsidiaries e (66,852) (8,284)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due RE &N RIF0R
to associates #0,/CRd) 21,952 (93,916)
Effect of foreign exchange rate (e E
changes, net FEE (92,885) 10,463
Cash generated from operations REEBMBZRS 1,131,802 528,386
Interest received BUHE 27,924 28,453
Interest paid BT (64,822) (69,844)
Mainland China income tax paid BB AREMSEH (352,145) (249,254)
Elsewhere profits tax refunded H b F{EHEE - 948
Net cash flows from operating activities MEEBEE RSN T 742,759 238,689
R ERAERAE 201544



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
MEReTRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i0t23 TR T
(Restated)
(£7))
CASH FLOWS FROM REZBZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in restricted SZIRHIRITHEE
bank balances B/ (Em) (6,974) 165
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EREZR D,/ (35m) 97,967 (29,292)
Dividends received from associates EH&ZH@’#%’D\ RS 50,727 49,320
Dividends received from BT #HHERE
available-for-sale investments 2B 46,862 37,033
Dividends received from equity BUEAFE A B
investments at fair value through Zﬁé?&?ﬁiﬁ
profit or loss ZRE - 499
Proceeds from disposal of items E’*%% B R EREEE
of property, plant and equipment FT{S3UE 22,193 30,579
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEFIA TﬁlﬁﬁZTE SR E
investment though profit or loss LA 19,194 -
Additional investment in associates REE DB 2 BBIMEE - (8,945)
Purchases of items of property, EENE  BE
plant and equipment e 14 (783,135) (438,285)
Additions to prepaid land premiums B e m 16 (75,126) (42,597)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits for EENE  BEX
purchase of items of property, FHBEE 2
plant and equipment BERD,/ () (1,214) 9,601
Proceeds from disposal of biological assets HEEWEE 2 FTISTUR 1,016 -
Additions to biological assets EYEEEN 21 (3,590) (12,203)
Receipt of government grants S endisg1 186,501 213,211
Proceeds from redemption of BEAHHERE
available-for sale investments ZFT85E 387,297 -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments EEUHNERE - (399,305)
Acquisition of a subsidiary g it nEENG 32 - 1,405
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZHAZRE TR (58,282) (588,314)
CASH FLOWS FROM METBH RERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings HBRITER 618,985 1,368,050
New other borrowings L EMER 3,376 24,579
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER (1,415,145) (2,035,162)
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER - (33,225)
Contribution from a non-controlling D ENGIER e
shareholder of a subsidiary % 9,374 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling ELNENEEA
shareholders of subsidiaries SRR (295,270) (61,490)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEHAZRE N TR (1,078,680) (737,248)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
mEReRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE

2015 2014
20154 2014 F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz TER TET
(Restated)
(&51)
NET DECREASE IN CASH BeRBEEZEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR (394,203) (1,087,373)
Cash and cash equivalents FzBekRe
at beginning of year ZBI1BEH 1,356,458 2,458,011
Effect of foreign exchange [EXEE &
rate changes, net FE (53,785) (14,180)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FURZBEERAS
AT END OF YEAR 4EER 908,470 1,356,458
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BeRBESEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R
Cash and bank balances and cash and BIBRRRATE RS R 899,170 1,356,458
cash equivalents as stated in the statement BITHEHRNRS
of financial position KB eEHEEER
Cash and cash equivalents attributable BRI e EBRANER S
to a discontinued operation MR eEEER 11 9,300 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRERMBHTE
in the statement of cash flows KIR&EMEIER 908,470 1,356,458

Y
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Notes to Financial Statements
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following
principal activities:

e processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling
beverage, and distribution of still beverage;

e production, sale and trading of grape wine and other wine
products;

e distribution of retail packaged cooking oil and seasoning
products;

o production and distribution of chocolate and other related
products; and

e distribution of other consumer food and beverage products
that are not categorised under the aforementioned
activities.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China
Foods (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is COFCO Corporation (“COFCQ”), which is a state-
owned enterprise registered in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATEERR ML ()
31 December 2015 20154 12 31 A

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER (&
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries BEME A Rl 2&E R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RAREEWBARIZFFBENT ¢
follows:
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name SRR/ BRTZER/ AT Principal activities
&R TR EE Y EfRA BRAEA  FEER
China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB180,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape
HERBBEEERAR" M/ REARE AR 180,000,0007 wine and beverage products
EERHEEEERIMER
Yantai Greatwall Wines and Spirits The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Sale of grape wine
Co., Ltd.* /B KE ARH1,000,0007 HERERE
EaRMBEHERRDA
Qinhuangdao Huaxia Greatwall Wines  The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
& Spirits Co., Ltd.* R/ REARE AR#1,000,0007 HEEEE
REEEERMBEERAA"
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Yantai) The PRC/Mainland China RMB146,300,000 100 Production and sale of grape
Co., Ltd.* /AR AR 146,900,000 7 wine
HRERBEEE(ER)BRAR GEREEREE
COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine The PRC/Mainland China RMB?200,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape
Co., Ltd.* HE /B AR 200,000,000 7 wine
HREEERBEEEEBRAR" EEREEEER
COFCO Huaxiahong Wines & The PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 80 Wholesale of grape wine
Spirits (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** E/REARE AR%3,000,0007C HEHEE
PRERLRE (R ERLR
COFCO Junding Vineyard Co., Ltd.**  The PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 55 Production and sale of grape
PEEBBHEARAR e/ HEAR ARH 140,000,007 wine
GEREEHERE
COFCO & Arrive Vine Plant (Yantai) The PRC/Mainland China EUR500,000 58.38 Plantation of vine and
R&D Co., Ltd.* mE /R AR 500,000 Ef 7T production of related
mERREHEEEA(ESR) products
REERRA BREAEREERTER
COFCO Wines & Spirits Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB11,760,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
PREZERAR /B KR AR 11,760,000 HEREE
COFCO Foods Penglai Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
HRERmERERLR R HEIARE AR 1,000,0007C BEEED

-
PEESARAT 20154 @



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FATs R M o ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEESR (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB AR ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRR ETEMBRARIZFBHOT
follows: (continued) (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name Ralizaye BRTEER/ AAFEL  Principal activities
L IMREEY BRI REBA TEEK
Shandong COFCO Junding Wines The PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 55 Sale and distribution and
Spirits Co., Ltd.** e/ AR AEH#10,000,0007C storage of grape wine, spirits,
WRPEETRBEBR AR and other related products
BEE  JUERHMEEE
mEHE - PERER
COFCO Shaoxing Winery Co., Ltd.* The PRC/Mainland China RMB68,670,000 100 Production and sale of Chinese
hRAREERAR /R AR AR68,670,0007C yellow rice wine
EREERBIERD
Huailai Greatwall Vine Base The PRC/Mainland China RMB6,860,000 75 Plantation of vine
Development Co., Ltd.** mE /B AR AE#6,860,0007T E e
BRERBEEEMEYE
BRAF
COFCO Greatwall Sungod Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape
(Huailai) Co., Ltd.* FE/REARE ARE1,000,0007C wine
RERHZTBH (ER)BRAF GERHEEEEE
COFCO Greatwall Wines (Zhuolu) Co.,  The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wine processing and bottling,
Ltd.* /R EARE AR 1,000,0007T sale and distribution of wine
HERNAEE (AR ERAF products
EERNIRER #ER
PIHEEER
COFCO Greatwall Wine (Ningxia) Co.,  The PRC/Mainland China US$16,080,000 100 Import and export of grape
Ltd.* B/ HEARE 16,080,0005% T wine and related materials
HRERAEEE(ZE)BRAR EHNEEERAESRHN
Shenzhen Le Conté Marketing The PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 Distribution of chocolate
Services Co., Ltd.** hE/REARE AR 15,000,000 7 products
AImeTEHEERAR PETRNER
COFCO Le Conté Food (Shenzhen) The PRC/Mainland China US$24,994,370 100 Production and distribution of
Co., Ltd.* R/ REARE 24,994 370570 chacolate products
Elﬂi’*%%ﬁu”u (RINBEBRAR YERAENRNER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2,524,855,402 65 Investment holding
HiEa] AR SR AR AT ) 2,524,855,402 /57T REER

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
WIS RRMIFE (8)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEEER (HF)

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB AR ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARG ETENBRARAIZHEBOT
follows: (continued) (%8)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name HEmRL CRTLER/ ADFEME  Principal activities
£R EMRSEHY FRUTE RABD TEER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) ~ The PRC/Mainland China 1S$30,000,000 65 Investment holding
Investment Ltd.* RE /B 30,000,000%7T RERR
RIER ORISR (FE) R E
BRAR
Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$15,500,000 325" Beverage bottling production,
Co., Ltd.** FE/REARE 15,500,000 % 7T sale and distribution
REAOTLREERAT PRERAE - HERRE
Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/Mainland China US$11,700,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited* BB 11,700,000 7T sale and distribution
BERETOTLERBRAR FHEREE - HERRX
Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/Mainland China 1S$8,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Company Limited* RE L REIARE 8,000,003 7T sale and distribution
AER R OTERHARAA FHEMEE - HEREX
Zhanjiang COFCO Coca-Cola The PRC/Mainland China RMB23,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Beverages Limited* e/ REARE AR 23,000,000 7T sale and distribution
EIPRTOALERERAR" FREMAE - BERERX
Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages ~ The PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited* e YN 5,000,000%7T sale and distribution
HEPREITOTLRRERA FRENAE - BERRE
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 52 Beverage bottling production,
(Xinjiang) Limited** R E/ REARE AEH60,000,0007C sale and distribution
IR D RTEHK (318) BRAR FHEMERE - HEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
(Jiangxi) Limited* R/ HEARE AR 40,000,0007C sale and distribution
g AR EHK OIA) BRAR FREMAE - BEREX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$12,500,000 48.75"  Beverage bottling production,
(Shandong) Limited** REREARE 12,500,000 7T sale and distribution
PIEA O AR (LR ) BIR AR * FEEREE - HEREK
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 4875 Beverage bottling production,
(Jinan) Limited** mE /B ARE 5,000,000 7T sale and distribution

FRAOTEHE (BE) BRAT
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FATs R M o ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEESR (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB AR ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRR ETEMBRARIZFBHOT
follows: (continued) (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name Rl A BRTEZER/ AARPEL  Principal activities
e IMREEY TRA RAE A FEEK
Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.**  The PRC/Mainland China US$19,500,000 4875 Beverage bottling production,
LR DA SRR AT mE /R AR 19,500,000% T sale and distribution
FEEREE - HERER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000 43.55"  Beverage bottling production,
(Inner Mongolia) Limited** HRE/REARE AE48,000,0007T sale and distribution
PIER O EEE (RFRE) FREMAE  BERRR
BRAF
COFCO Coca-Cola Huabei Beverage The PRC/Mainland China RMB?78,000,000 585 Beverage bottling production
Limited** PE/REARE AR 78,000,000 7T FHEREE
PRTOTRELSRERAT
COFCO Coca-Cola Huazhong Beverage  The PRC/Mainland China RMB?78,000,000 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited* e/ EARRE AEH78,000,0007T sale and distribution
HigE A EER SR BRAR FHEMEE - HEREX
COFCO Food Sales & Distribution The PRC/Mainland China RMB370,000,000 100 Distribution of consumer
Co., Ltd.* REREIARE AR # 370,000,000 70 pack edible oils and other
HERREHERAR consumer food products
DENERRABREAM
HERM
COFCO Foods Management Co., Ltd.*  The PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 100 Research and development in
PRAREEARA" /B R 10,000,000%7¢ food, wine and beverage,
management and consulting
services
HRRFAERM  BR
B ERRBARE
Vina Santa Andrea Limitada Chile CLP7,750,000,000 100 Exploitation and operation of
B 7,750,000,000 vineyards, Production and
BRLE sale of grape wine
RERELEEE  £ER
HEHER
COFCO Wines & Spirits (Huailai) The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Sale of grape wine, brandy and
Co., Ltd.* B/ HEARE AR 1,000,000 beverage

EFE/E%(\ R HERRAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR AR ML ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. XRARKEEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBATEZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRR EEMBRARIZFBOT
follows: (continued) (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name SR BRITLER/ AT Principal activities
e MRS 2 EREN RAEDL IEER
COFCO (Ningxia) Vine Plantation The PRC/Mainland China US$7,040,000 100 Plantation and sale of vines,
Co., Ltd.* hE/HEARE 7,040,000% 7T production and sale of grape
HIE(ER) FBERERAR" BEREEDEER
FERBEERD
Jinan Junding Hua Yue Hotel The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,890,000 55 Hospitality and conference
Management Co., Ltd.** i,/ B R ARH#2,890,0007 service
EEAEENEEEEERAF BEREERE
Beijing Junding Hua Yue Hotel The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,890,000 55 Hospitality and conference
Management Co., Ltd.** REREAR AR%2,890,0007 service
IRERENEEERER LR BERSERE
COFCO Coca-Cola Supply Chain The PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 63.5 Retails of bulk foods and
(Tianjin) Limited** RE/REARE AR#10,000,0007C relevant materials,
g O A A pEsE (%) information consulting and
BRAA management
“&%ﬁ%&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁ
l:l ! 11:1 TR nﬂ&
Top Glory Wines & Spirits Europe SAS ~ France EUR4,150,000 100 Investment holding
HE 4,150,000E7¢ REER
Société Du Chateau de Viaud SAS France EUR3,920,000 100 Exploitation and operation of
HE 3,920,000 EfC vineyards, production and
sale of grape wine
RERLEEEE  £ER
HEHED
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Hebei) ~ The PRC/Mainland China RMB83,000,000 32.5*  Beverage bottling production,
Limited** RE/REARE AR 83,000,000 sale and distribution
mig A AR &8 (b)) BR DA FEEREE - HERER
Tibet COFCO Coca-Cola Commerce &  The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 65 Beverage sale and distribution
Trade Limited* e E YN AR 2,000,0007C FEHEERDH
FERENOTLEEERAR
Jinan Junding Hua Yue Wine The PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 55 Wholesale and retail of
Co, Ltd.** /R AR AR 100,0007C packaged foods
EEEREHBEARAT HERTERORAS
WE A RAE 2015



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

W TR At (48)
31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEESR (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMB AT ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRR TFTEMB AR ZERBWOT :
follows: (continued) (5)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Name Ralzaye BRTEER/ AAFEE  Principal activities
G TMREEY BRI REBA FTEEK
Beijing Junding Chateau Wine Sales The PRC/Mainland China RMB8&00,000 55 Sales of wines
Co., Ltd.** e/ AR ARH800,0007T HERXEM
FREBEETERHEERAR
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Xinjiang) The PRC/Mainland China RMB38,900,000 100 Production and sale of grape
Co., Ltd.* /B K AR 38,900,000 wine
TREBEEE (B BRAF EEREEREE
COFCO Greatwall Huaxia Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Production and sale of grape
(Changli) Co., Ltd.* e/ HEAR AR 1,000,007 wine
HERNZEEBI(BR)ARAA" GEREEHEE
Beijing Cheng Xiang Foods Co., Ltd.**  The PRC/Mainland China RMB58,211,932 4875 Wholesale of packaged foods
L REHARMBRAE B/ REARE ARE58211,9327T HEEBERR
Changli Huaxia Travel Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000 100 Tourism and catering
Co., Ltd.* /B KR ARH300,0007 MR AR
ERGESHRREERAA"
* Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises Y ITTEELRS

** Sino-foreign equity joint ventures
# These are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Accordingly, they are accounted for as subsidiaries by
virtue of the Company’s control over them.

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

Except for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, Top Glory
Wines & Spirits Europe SAS and Société Du Chéateau de Viaud
SAS, the statutory audits of the above subsidiaries were not
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the board of director (the “Board”) of the
Company, principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Board,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, biological assets and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, which have
been measured at fair value. Disposal group held for sale is
stated at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less
cost to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affects those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group asset and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

"
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee
service, for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number
of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise
such contributions as a reduction of service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not have defined benefit plans.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are
effective for the current year are as follows:

e HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria in
HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments also clarify
that reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is
only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.

e HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and HKAS
38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply the revaluation model for the measure of
these assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

HKAS 24 Related party Disclosures: Clarifies a
management entity (i.e, an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity
is required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The details of the transaction
have been disclosed in note 37 to the financial
statements. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not receive any
management services from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Details of amendments that are
effective for the current year are as follows:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope exception applies
only to the accounting in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is
applied prospectively. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form any joint
arrangement during the year.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be
applied not only to financial assets and the financial
liabilities, but also to other contracts within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable.
The amendment is applied prospectively from the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 13
was initially applied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not apply
the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BT BERBEE 2 EE (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(c) (continued) () (&)
e HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that HKFRS o FBHEEHEABIORKE
3, instead of the description of ancillary services in Y% EEAFERESNG
HKAS 40 which differentiates between investment MELEBEIRUNBER S
property and owner-occupied property, is used to REEEENEREH M
determine if the transaction is a purchase of an IEFEABIEEYELRSRY
asset or a business combination. The amendment is EMARYEBEEHE]
applied prospectively for acquisitions of investment FA0RH L ERSH RIS
properties. The amendment has had no impact JE © ZAEFT AR OR BRfE FE AR
on the Group as the Group did not acquire any RUEEIREME - RN AS
investment properties during the year. BN F AN SR EERIRE

ME - WRERTHAREL
BEMFE -

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to AN RRAFER AT BFERANE
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock BERPIBEMNE A IER
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) issued NAFSF LmRAN( ETRE]) F2
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited relating to the RREABRREDI(FE6228 ) FTER BT
disclosure of financial information with reference to the Hong B BERNBE]  EXEFEUH
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current WEPETEMNZ2MEHEE -

financial year. The main impact of the financial statements is
on the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.

3
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CHAMERRERMZE B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LA
7 B R P 22 B TS R 2 v e P A
TE BB MRk 5 E] RIS ET
EEBI TSRS R -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 2 BAENBREEREIR PHTA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BB RS REZHRBES 7]
and HKAS 28 (2011) investor and its Associate or Joint F105 LA BEER HAEPEZEC

Venture * F 285 (20115F) 2 83T BELEgTE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the EAMBREREE0% .  KETE: EAGA
HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception ! BAYBREENE 12 AEZ O ER
HKAS 28 (2011) REBSHEL
F 285 (2011F) 2B4]
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in BB RE LS WEAEERER
Joint Operations ! FUFET 255
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts ® BRNBREENE 145 EEREEA®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ? EAMBREENE 15F EPAIMN "
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative ! BRGHEAE 1R 2] HEHE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BB ENE 165K EITEREHZ
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amotisation ! B EEBHR HEZRE!
i1
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants BALHENZ 69K B AEREN
and HKAS 41 BReENE 4T
T
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial BB ERE 27 BUHEREZ
(2011) Statements ! (2011F) 23] Emz!
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs! 12EZ 20145154 ETERHBAS
2012-2014 Cycle ZEEN#E BB
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 1 R2016F 1 A1 He X & FI1E2 F1Z
BT ARG
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 R20I8FI1AI1HEKERMEZ FE
HRTER
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 3 EAR2016F 1 A1 HLKEREE

KRB BRI LR BB F
BRI - B TR AL
181 R EETE 5 14 43X B B 18 AT (AR A

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for 4
adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in
a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when
the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2016.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA issued an
amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral of the
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements
in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements. The amendments clarify:

(i)  the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(ii) that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those items that will or
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarified the requirements that
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement
of financial position and the statement of profits or loss. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

The HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendments change the
accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological
assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will be within
the scope of HKAS16 instead of HKAS 41. After initial
recognition, bearer plants will be measured under HKAS 16
at accumulated cost before maturity. After the bearer plants
mature, they will be measured either using the cost model
or revaluation model in accordance with HKAS 16. The
amendments also require that produce growing on the bearer
plants will remain in the scope of HKAS 41 and is measured
at fair value less cost to sell. Government grants relating to
bearer plants will now be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
the Government Assistance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016 and in currently assessing
the impact of these changes.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATEERR ML ()
31 December 2015 20154 12 31 A

23 EEMERREMZEBYHE
HE2

28 (%)

BESTERE 16 N EE S ER
3B IEFTERREGERE 16
SR EE G ERE IR 2R - B
Wat R EEEES (REERSE
) EEXZEENEMIBEBEREE
HREZ BNz 2R o B - e
ETRRARFTEME « BB MEE
BEAFEARZBRT A BRE#H
BIVEE - 2 FEFIKBELEEM -
HIZZERTN 20165 1 A 1 BERNIZ S
TeuAsB s PBRANEARBESE
ERFE - REQAEEILAREHK
DA EEERPEEZNE

R ERE 165 MNE B G LR
FAL5E (ERTA) Bif A £EEEYE
ENEMEENGTREEIFLE
F o REBEZFER GREEMNED
EENEMEESBRESGER
£ 165k MIFE B G ERISE 41 57A0E0
c MIIFHERR - EEEEMAR
EERBEERE 16 RN ARIZR
ARG E - REEMEYRIL
BB LS ERIZE 165 £ A AR
DA BHEERLAE - ZFER T
MRE - FEMEYNRERMRER
HEEAERFEALRNBEANLIZ A
FEBHEEKRANTE - BRALEEE
MBS IR ER B S ERIE
205 Bh Y & 5 TA R R B &Y
WA - NEEFEMKE 201691
A1 BERANZFER] KR IEHEZSE
B TE -

2.4 TEESTHTHRUE

REBE QR 2 RE
BEARIRASERAERES B
—REB DR 20% B AR I 4
HABBEATE N Z QA - EXY
BNESEREHRUYBE R EERE
ZRES - BEPRE BT H R A F
I -

F. .
PR RARATF 2015440 g



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRMITE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, biological
assets and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRMITE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, biological assets, financial
assets, investment properties and a disposed group classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

)
(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is @ member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when if it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant position of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings 2% to 18%
Plant, machinery and equipment 6% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction or machinery not yet put into operation is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and machinery
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If
a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and the disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must
be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale
regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and the disposal group (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of three to eight years.

Water rights

Water rights are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of forty years.

Biological assets

The fair value of the grape vines is estimated by reference
to independent professional valuations using the discounted
cash flows of the underlying biological assets. The expected
cash flows from the whole life cycle of the grape vines are
determined using the market price of the estimated yield of
the agricultural produce, being grapes, net of maintenance
and harvesting costs and any costs required to bring grape
vines to maturity. The estimated yield of the grape vines is
affected by the age of the grape vines, the location, soil type
and infrastructure. The market price of the grapes is largely
dependent on the prevailing market price of the processed
products after harvest, being crude grape wine.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEBE (H)

POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases, net of
any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
or available-for-sale financial investments. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as other
expenses and losses in the statement of profit or loss. These
net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in other expenses and losses in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income and gains, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the statement of profit or loss in other expenses and losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively, and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments and
financial products cannot be reliably measured because (a)
the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses and
losses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, other than the agricultural products which are
measured in accordance with the accounting policy for
“Biological assets” above, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.4 TESTTBRHBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets,
the grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary
assets and released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, in the period in which the
services are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial option pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Services and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also services and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest, because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings or loss
per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

Retirement benefits are provided to certain staff employed by
the Group. In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, the Group’s Hong Kong employees enjoy
retirement benefits under either the Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSQ") Scheme, or the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under which employer contributions have to be made. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to both schemes are at a maximum of 10% of the
monthly salaries of the employees. When an employee leaves
employment prior to his or her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing ORSO Scheme
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme. However, in respect of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, only the employer voluntary
contribution amounts are refundable to the Group when the
members leave employment prior to their contributions vesting
fully. The Group’s mandatory contributions vest fully with the
employees when the employees leave employment.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the relevant authorities of the provinces or
the local municipal governments in Mainland China in which
the Group’s subsidiaries are located. The Group contributes
to this scheme in respect of its employees in Mainland China
and such costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior
years, final dividends proposed by the directors were classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Following the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time
the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTEEME (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2015 was
HK$1,684,061,000 (2014: HK$1,742,224,000). More details
are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, investment
properties are revalued at the end of the reporting period on an
income capitalisation approach by independent professional
valuers. These valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgement, information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties is
considered and assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period are used.
The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties
including the investment properties classified as held for
sale at 31 December 2015 was HK$115,066,000 (2014:
HK$98,331,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2015 was HK$45,153,000 (2014: HK$56,200,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses including those attributable
to the discontinued operation at 31 December 2015 was
HK$3,154,777,000 (2014: HK$2,500,771,000). Further
details are contained in note 28 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. The Group also recognises unlisted equity investments
and financial products as available for sale which are stated
at cost less any impairment losses. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments should be recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The carrying amount of available-for-
sale investments at 31 December 2015 was HK$209,637,000
(2014: HK$613,411,000).

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on an assessment
of the recoverability of accounts and other receivables and the
timing of their recovery. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires management judgement and estimation.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact on the
carrying value of the accounts and other receivables and the
amount of impairment/write-back of impairment in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed. Net impairment
of the Group’s receivables, including those classified as held
for sale, of HK$49,525,000 (2014: HK$31,251,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year. The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
accounts and bills receivables, and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, including those classified as held for
sale at 31 December 2015, was HK$2,786,050,000 (2014
HK$2,958,104,000).

Estimation of fair value of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are stated at fair values less
point-of-sale costs. This requires an independent valuer’s
assessment of the fair value of the biological assets. Changes
in conditions of the biological assets could impact the fair value
of the assets. The carrying amount of the Group’s biological
assets at 31 December 2015 was HK$198,172,000 (2014:
HK$200,806,000). More details are given in note 21 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has five reportable
segments as follows:

(a) the beverage segment is engaged in the processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage products
and the distribution of still beverage products;

(b) the wine segment is engaged in the production, sale and
trading of grape wine and other wine products;

(c) the kitchen food segment is engaged in the distribution of
retail packaged cooking oil and seasoning products;

(d) the confectionery segment is engaged in the production
and distribution of chocolate and other related products
(discontinued operation (note 11)); and

(e) the “others” segment is engaged in the distribution of
other consumer food and beverage products that are not
categorised under the aforementioned segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
except that interest income, dividend income, finance costs,
share of profits of associates, as well as unallocated head
office and corporate results are all excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid tax,
restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale investments, equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, investments in associates
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATEERR ML (B8)
31 December 2015 20154 12 31 A

(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2015 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Others Total
BZ20155 12831 BLLEE gl ERE BERR Hitr I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TEn TiEn TiEn
Segment revenue: Ak
Sales to external customers HETFIRRP 12,334,997 2,295,403 12,851,913 359,857 27,842,170
Other revenue Eftiz 173,046 57,457 42,037 75,864 348,404
Revenue from continuing operations BECAERIE 12,508,043 2,352,860 12,893,950 435,721 28,190,574
Segment results THEE 695,227 124,541 117,070 11,668 948,506
Reconciliation: -
Interest income FEMA 27,870
Dividend income BEMA 46,862
Finance costs BEKA (64,822)
Share of profits of associates e E DR R 71,872
Corporate and other unallocated AERER
expenses ROEX (324,656)
Profit before tax from continuing BECEER
operations Cpag 705,632
Segment assets PEHEE 6,174,395 4,875,841 2,768,845 243919 14,063,000
Reconciliation: i
Investments in assaciates N A UNGIE 780,759
Corporate and other unallocated assets A RIREMADEEE 1,433,042
Assets related to a discontinued BT EEBER L
operation BE 375,131
Total assets BERE 16,651,932
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REDHER (F)
(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2015 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Others Total
HZ2015F12A31ALEE B BmE BERM Hfth At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn FiEn TR TR

Segment liabilities AHER 3,537,542 772,429 2,426,477 680 6,737,128
Reconciliation: H -
Corporate and other unallocated ARAREMAAE

liabilities afE 2,736,936
Liabilities related to a discontinued BEHSEEBERL

operation L 101,694
Total liabilttes ffgeE 9,575,758
Other segment information: At HEH -
Net impairment losses recognised MERTEER L

in the statement of profit or loss RETER 4,742 27,139 22,889 = 54,770
Provision against/(write-back of FERE/

provision against) inventories (BERE) 10,921 36,314 (10,425) - 36,810
Fair value gains on biological assets, net £ #&E 7 A AR = 10,223 = = 10,223
Losses/(gains) on disposaliwrite-off of % /HisEWE - Hi=

items of property, plant and REEEZ

equipment BB/ () 6,138 1,137 (3,574) - 3,701
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 351,234 144,243 11,778 = 507,255
Unallocated amounts RAEERE 8,265

515,520

Capital expenditure EARY 726,887 123,904 2,380 - 853,171

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARGEL CIEREYF  BERRE &
equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid land premiums. HAEEEER A T o

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR IAR ML ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REHIER (F)
(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2014 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Others Total
BENUEDRA3NAILEE /G itk FER® Ed =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
(Restated)
(&)

Segment revenue: AHlE
Sales to external customers HETIARRP 12,485,850 2152366 11,230,509 369,943 26,238,668
Other revenue Hfohiz 181,942 75,225 58,032 31,041 346,240
Revenue from continuing operations SERARE WS 12667792 2227591 11,288,541 400984 26,584,908
Segment results LR 616,633 (115,526) 29,305 9,097 539,509
Reconciliation: i
Interest income FIEWA 28,390
Dividend income BREMA 37532
Finance costs BAMA (69,844)
Share of profits of associates BB E A FIRF 93,816
Corporate and other unallocated ARRERRAE

expenses it (215,272)
Profit before tax from continuing BERLER 7 BRI

operations pagil 414,131
Segment assets PHEE 6,023,145 5,238,102 3,007,841 392,677 14,661,765
Reconciliation: -
Investments in assaciates NG UNIA 758932
Corporate and other unallocated assets A RIREMADEEE 2,430,124
Assets related to a discontinued B T 2R

operation BE 395,873
Total assets BELE 18,246,694

-
WE A RAE 20155 @



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4. KETHER ()

(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2014 Beverage Wine  Kitchen food Others Total
BENUEDRA3NAILEFE L pitings FERM Ed =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
(Restated)
(&)
Segment liabilities AHEE 3,355,346 716457 2,354,381 718 6426962
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMARAE
liabilities B 3,623,391
Liabilities related to a discontinued B HEEEBARN
operation ElE 73,79
Total liabilities BEA 10,124,147
Other segment information: At .
Net impairment losses recognised MERRERER L
in the statement of profit or loss REFESR 44,757 23,480 5,897 - 74,134
Provision against/(write-back of GERE/
provision against) inventories (BERED) 18469 30,830 (15,269) - 34,080
Fair value gains on biological assets, net £ #&E 7 A FERMNE - 3,105 - - 3,105
Losses/(gains) on disposaliwrite-off of & /HSEWE « = Rk
items of property, plant and BEZER/
equipment (W) 2,798 (286) 1,156 - 3,668
Unallocated amounts RAERER (165)
3,503
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 330,896 143,739 17447 - 492,082
Unallocated amounts RAEEE 12291
504,373
Capital expenditure ERRR 284,941 172,651 10,217 - 467,809

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid land premiums.

Geographical information

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
operating in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group’s non-
current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
tax assets, are situated in Mainland China.

Information about a major customer

During the year, there was no single customer from which the
revenue derived has accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue (2014: Nil).

: =
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
WIS RRMIFE (8)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA >~ HbR A R ks

WATHHERAEENRERERE ST
HRMEEHERBEZFE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold
during the year, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts.

FBKEEEBHEMARA Rz DT
s

An analysis of other income and gains from continuing
operations is as follows:

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FExT FAET
(Restated)
(E25)
Other income Habg A
Gross rental income WALz 3,060 5,548
Bank interest income ERITH B HA 22,168 20,939
Interest income from TRERZ
financial products FEWA 5,702 7,451
Dividend income from
available-for-sale AHHERE
investments Z B BUMA 46,862 37,033
Dividend income from equity BAFBEIABERZ
investments at fair value EmgE 2
through profit or loss BB UA - 499
Government grants * BB * 167,668 227,209
Compensation income fAEWA 18,191 5,644
Sale of by-products and scrap items & &2l &5 MR TE B 35,045 23,339
Commission income SN 115,220 83,296
Others Hih 4,139 866
418,055 411,824
Gains g
Fair value gains on equity BAHES A B 2 Eiwm
investments at fair value "EZRAVE
through profit or loss e - 856
Gain on disposal of equity HEZRQAFETA
investments at fair value B EmRE
through profit or loss 2 Wz 4,466 -
Fair value gains on investment "EWEZ
properties N EWRE 615 127
Gain on bargain purchase EHEWE R 33 = 211
5,081 1,194
423,136 413,018

-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(continued)

* Various government grants were granted for investments in
certain provinces in Mainland China in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate. Government grants for which related
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in
deferred income (non-current portion) and other payables and
accruals (current portion) in the statement of financial position,
respectively. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is
arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5. WA~ EfplR AR Wz ()

Y REEEERZERTHE - AER
BA R AT FIAE & P2 B
WETED o BTG A A
B 2 BB R R A AR
WA (FEwBEflr ) REMENT R
RIgetBE(RBE D) A - ZEH
B LR TEZ IR T EFE
o

6. BRBIADEF

AERE 2 Fr B & R RR I AR TS
kR GHA) TEIBA -

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 %
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FHET FiBT
(Restated)
(E5)
Cost of inventories sold EHFEKA 21,471,326 20,094,045
Provision against inventories FERE 36,810 34,080
Loss on disposal of biological assets HE&E4YEE ~ 18 20 -
Fair value gains on biological EYEEATE
assets, net Fl (10,223) (3,105)
Cost of sales $HE A 21,497,933 20,125,020
Auditors’ remuneration A GIE A 3,227 3,223
Depreciation e 494,367 481,529
Amortisation of other intangible Hinfmp & E
assets | 18 9,794 11,487
Recognition of prepaid land RIS
premiums Tine 16 11,359 11,357
Minimum lease payments under KEHENRIE
operating leases: HEFIAE 213,631 223,631
Employee benefit expense EEEFFX
(including directors’ and chief (BIEESK
executive’s remuneration TR B EL T TN
(note 8)): (fF5E8)) -
Wages and salaries TERF® 1,685,553 1,544,399
Equity-settled share option LA 4EE
expense I s e I S 2,469 4,168
Pension schemes contributions * RIRFHEIE SR 181,176 165,546
1,869,198 1,714,113

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIFE (B)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRTADER (4E)

2015 2014
20154 2014 F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HizF TER FET
(Restated)
(E51)
Foreign exchange differences, net [N Z%E - F5 14,935 20,057
Other expenses and losses Eb s REREeE
include the following: A& IR -
Losses on disposal/write-off of mE  BEREEEE
items of property, plant ZHEEBE/
and equipment ik 3,701 3,503
Impairment of available-for-sale AHHERE
investments LA 3,477 -
Impairment of items of property, I E =B
plant and equipment JHE ZRE 4,350 45,853
Impairment of accounts receivable EUERTRE 23 46,738 24.303
Impairment of other receivables Hith N IERE 205 3978
* At 31 December 2015, the Group had no forfeited contributions * R2015F 12A31H - FEFEHEE
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in SR AT X A5 B R R A B 2]
future years (2014: Nil). BRI HEF (2014 F - #E) -
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BEHRA
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as BELEEFNRMEKESITAT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
&)
Interest on: FE
Bank loans wholly repayable AFAZHER
within five years ZIRITER 61,062 65,959
Loans from a non-controlling shareholder ~ — 2B A 7 FEHE A%
of subsidiaries (note 37) f& R 2 Bk (F1sE37) 2,590 2,204
Others Ef 1,170 1,681
64,822 69,844
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 381(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

8. EERITHARME

AEFEERTHRARMSRIE LT
HAI BB AR &G F381(1)(a)
(b) ~ (@) J(f) MARI(HBEERMEE
FHROIE 2 BT

Group
REE
2015 2014
20154 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Fees: e
Executive directors HITES - -
Non-executive directors EHITES - -
Independent non-executive directors B IEHITES 1,275 1,260
1,275 1,260
Other emoluments: EMie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EEYA R 3,927 3,537
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 3,430 -
Equity-settled share option expense RAEE B ER 330 695
Pension scheme contributions RIREHEIE SR 501 209
8,188 4,441
9,463 5,701

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options of
the Company, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The
fair value of these options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included
in the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

=
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
WIS RRMIFE (8)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

8. EERITHBAREME (&)

(@) BYEHITES

FRARBYIFATEE 21

during the year were as follows: T :
2015 2014
2015 % 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark W BEAE 320 315
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI E 320 315
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred e 315 315
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RAAEE 320 315
1,275 1,260

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2014: Nil).

FN - UEABIIFRTEES

FHEADE S (2014 4F - &) o

Y
B AT 20154 4 @



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHARME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) BITES > kHTESRITH
the chief executive B
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme
inkind Discretionary expense  contributions Total

Fees %é .28 bonuses ~ RALE  EMGrE remuneration
e RENNE  BBERA4  BRERX #3 ams
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEx FET FBx T#Ex T#x

2015 20155
Executive directors: BiTES:
Mr. Jiang Guojin* TESRE" - 1,965 1,863 - 261 4,089
Ms. Wu Wenting RXBRL - 1,233 896 78 137 2,344
Mr. Lu Xiaohu! BIEBEE! - 729 671 - 103 1,503
- 3,927 3,430 78 501 7,936
Non-executive directors: FRIES:
Mr. Ma Jianping SRTRE - - - 78 - 78
Mr. Yu Xubo? TR a2 - - - - - -
Mr. Ning Gaoning? BERBEA? - - - 9% - 9%
Ms. Liu Ding T &t - - - 78 - 78
Mr. Wang Zhiying T7BRHE - - - - - -
- o - 252 - 252
- 3,927 3,430 330 501 8,188
* Mr. Jiang Guojin is also the chief executive of the ! )Iﬁjfibmﬁzrﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Company. e
! Mr. Lu Xiaohui resigned as an executive director of ! BRERELERAIRRABTE
the Company with effect from 26 August 2015 (The ;% ’H520‘75f'}t_8ﬁ265 Ve it
remuneration in his tenure as executive director was ﬂ%(”‘ﬁgﬁfgﬂfjggwmyé‘ﬁ
HK$1,212,000). 1,212,0007) °
‘ na resi : FHREREBEALBIE
2 Mr. Yu Xubo and Mr. Ning Gaoning resigned as non- gugs T A
executive directors of the Company with effect from 15 AL BT ﬁlqﬁ ¥ 5201672
February 2016. 715 AL -

L
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR IAR ML ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

8. EERITHARME (F)

(b) BITES - FHTESRITH

wmE (R’

Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
inkind expense  contributions Total
Fees H&- 28  BRAKEE  BIGEHEl remuneration
e  LEWNE  BERERX i3 ams
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FEL FEL TEL
2014 2014 %
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Jiang Guojin* TR - 1,957 - 121 2,078
Ms. Wu Wenting! Ry t! - 812 106 38 956
Mr. Lu Xiaohui BB - 768 - 50 818
- 3,537 106 209 3,852
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Ms. Wu Wenting! Ryprt! - - 21 - 21
Mr. Yu Xubo FrEREE - - - - -
Mr. Ning Gaoning ERELE - - 157 - 157
Ms. Liu Ding MT 2t - - 127 - 127
Mr. Ma Jianping BRFEE - - 127 - 127
Mr. Wang Zhiying? T Bk - - - - -
Mr. Chi Jingtao® ERETE? - - 157 - 157
- - 589 - 589
- 3,037 695 209 4441

Mr. Jiang Guojin is also the chief executive of the
Company.

Ms. Wu Wenting was re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director with effect from 10 March
2014.

Mr. Wang Zhiying was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 10 November
2014.

Mr. Chi Jingtao resigned as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 10 November 2014 (The
remuneration in his tenure as non-executive director was
HK$135,000).

IT B % 55 4 TR /3 7K 2 Bl 7T AR
2o

RXBL 1 H B 7TEFHA T
RYITEE  H52014F3 410
HEERY -

FCEAERES(FRAN A}
HiTEE  H2014F11A10H
FEAERL o

BB L GHEAR L AIFERTT
FFE - H2014F11 HI10HEE
(B EEFNTEEN T3
135,000,%7T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year. In 2014, two non-executive
directors agreed to waive their entitlements to directors’
fees totalling HK$40,000.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2014: one) director who is also the chief executive, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2014: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company for the year are as follows:

EERITHARME (&)

(b) BITES - kHTESRITH
(&)

REABEE Z R TRARSNE
KABRETAMEA LT - R
20144  MAFNTEFAE
MEEARZENESHSEH
40,0008 7T °

TEBREHN 2 ES

FRALERRFMZER  BE—%
E5(2014%F - —3) (AT RTHRAE
) HMSFRBEEN EXKES - F
A - EERINE (20145 : U5 ) &= %
M2 ERRBEFTRITHAEHEE Z
FEMHINWT

2015 2014

20154 2014 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYA 6,613 8,175
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 5,284 1,320
Equity-settled share option expense AR EE B ER S 369 455
Pension scheme contributions RIRFFEMEE R 574 614
12,840 10,564
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 9.

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

PATEERR ML (B8)
31 December 2015 20154 12 31 A

TEBEHN2ES (&)

REHEE GFEZERITHRMAE) 2%
AR TR Z ABIT

Number of employees

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

1,500,001 7L & 2,000,0008 7T
2,500,001 /7T % 3,000,000 /& 7T
3,000,001 /7T % 3,500,000 /& 7T
3,500,001 /& 7T % 4,000,000 /& 7T

EE=E
2015 2014
2015 20144
- 1
1
2 _
]_ _
4 4

In prior years, the non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees were granted share options of the Company in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value
of these options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’

remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE FEERITRRERS
B E B 5L 18 5 H AN 5 R (A0 IR 75
WETARROBIRE  BRAFBEH
R BEHMERME30 - ZSHERED
RNHECRRE RN B ERRAE
R R A HEE AR ARFE R
RPTBEENSBRCBREN LMFES
RITBBHEESFHHERNMNE N E
A o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profit arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2014: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the approvals issued by the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC in 2013, the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprises
(collectively the “CREs”) and relevant enterprise income tax
policies of the PRC are applicable to the CREs commencing
from 1 January 2013.

10. FRAB %

FAREEY BEMREBELNE
ARBUE A - B EEE BRI L&
(20144 : M%) - HAiblE 7 FER
A Z HIBDRBEAKEE L2 BA
R 2 BITHEE -

RIB2013FHBEBE KA G # B E L
U AR RETHE R ARG
RPEEREEX(SEIPEERDE
X)) PEMEBEEEMSHBKA
0I3F1A1IHBERARTEER®
o,

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
(Restated)
(E%1))
Current — Mainland China BVER — AR B K e
Charge for the year RAFEE IR 290,746 272,740
Underprovision in prior years BEFENEEE 10,167 422
Current — Elsewhere BNER— E At [
Overprovision in prior years B FE B - (3,895)
Deferred IRAE (15,291) (45,438)
Total tax charge for the year FEBTN 285,622 223,829

"
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATEERR ML (B8)
31 December 2015 20154 12 31 A

10. FriS®i (&)

UTRFBARE - EAEBMHHEAR
BIEEMAE RDER X ER K EM
ERRBANEN S (ER) 2 BIAX
- BB EGAE 2 HHER
AR ERB R (ALAER R ) BE M

rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: R AHIEE ¢
2015 20154
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
o BN HtHE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén %  THL % Thn % Thn %

Profit(loss) before tax Bagdl/ (58 (29,878) 753,198 (17,688) 705,632
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEHEHE  HE (4930) 165 188,299 250 (3794 214 179,575 254
Lower tax rate for specific provinces [l g7 B EsIEs

or enacted by a local authority* fERZ: - - (764) (0.1) - - (8 (0D
Profits aftributable to associates BEDFEERT - - (17,968) (2.4) = - (17,968) (2.5)
Income not subject to tax BERTZIA (4432) 148 (5503 (07 - - (993%) (14
Expenses not deductible for tax A S 9763  (326) 18825 25 2693 (152 31,281 45
Adjustments in respect of B SRR

current tax of previous periods L - - 10,167 14 - - 10,167 1.4
Adjustments inrespect of deferred tax  BAHETHE

of previous periods LB - - 23507 31 - - 23507 33
Tax losses utiised from previous periods ~ BIFEAHR 278 (401) 13 (2,015 (03) - - 24180 (03)
Tax losses not recognised R - - 68381 91 379 (214 72175 10.2
Tax charge at the Group's FEEENHENEL

effective rate RETH - - 282,929 37.6 2,693 (15.2) 285,622 40.5

-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMITE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FriS# (&)
2014 (Restated) 2014 4 (&%)
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
& HEDN: At it
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
Tk % TEn % TEn % TEr %
Proftoss) before tax RangR|/ (58) (11,527) 447846 (22,188) 414131
Tax at the statutory tax rates REEREE N (1902) 165 11192 B0 (469) 212 105367 254
Lower tax rate for specific provinces [ERl g EsIED
or enacted by a local authority* SERE: - - (06) - - 07
Profits attributable to associates NGy - - (23450) (52) - - (23450) (57)
Income not subject to tax BERTHA (6418) 57 (628) (01 - - (7,046) (17)
Expenses not deductible for tax 1w 8679 (153 15702 35 - - U3l 59
Adjustments in respect of egedzail k]
current tax of previous periods LEE - - 01 01 (38%) 176 (B474) (08
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax A SRIELFIE
of previous periods LEE - - (5,808) (13) 3937 (7.7 (1871) (05)
Tax losses utlised from previous periods ~ BIFEAHRE 2718 (622) 54 (274) (01 - - (896) 02)
Tax losses not recognised KT 263 (23 128593 87 4693 (21.2) 133549 23
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate. ~ REBBMREHE FEL Y - - 203787 500 iy 01) 22389 540
* Under the PRC income tax laws, enterprises are subject to * RIEFE AR L DEBEIZEI5%
corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a rate of 25%. However, certain BT F AN ZEATER ([ 1D E A2
of the Group’s subsidiaries are operating in specific development ) o AR REEE TFHEL TS
zones in Mainland China, and a relevant authority has granted a TR B A BE ) 1 ) 35 JE [ AT =
subsidiary a preferential CIT rate of 15%. % BEEECETHERNTG15% 8
EBERILEIEHE -
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to Bt N B B {5 FR TE 3 24,623,000 78 7T
HK$24,623,000 (2014: HK$35,689,000) is included in “Share (2014 £ 1 35,689 000,%71:) ThEt A
of profits of associates” in the consolidated statement of profit LA E fmiﬁ%zz [ FE(LBEE N B A
or loss. A o
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Prized Developments Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Target Group”) are engaged in the production of the Group’s
chocolate and other confectionery products, which are sold
and distributed via COFCO Foods Sales & Distribution Co.,
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Together
these two components comprise the Group’s confectionery
segment (the “Discontinued Segment”).

On 31 December 2015, the Company announced the decision
of the Board to dispose of the Target Group by entering into
an equity transfer and debt assignment agreement with Tops
Properties Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO
Property (Group) Co., Ltd. which is a Shenzhen-listed company
owned as to 45.67% by COFCO, for a total consideration of
RMB611,000,000 (subject to certain potential adjustments).
The Company has decided to exit the Discontinued Segment
because it plans to focus its resources on its other businesses.
The disposal is due to be completed on within one year.

As a result, the Discontinued Segment was classified as a
disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued operation.
With the Discontinued Segment being classified as a
discontinued operation, it is no longer included in the note for
operating segment information.

The results of the Discontinued Segment for the year are
presented below:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

WM ()
31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

11, RIERE X

Prized Developments Limited K E K&
REl (B EREERDREEERSE
EMHR I EMKERRER - %
LEMBBASEN—RZ2EWER
APREREHARAREITEE R
D5 o EMEMD KB A EBAIK
BRMDED ([ ILEEEEHE]) -

M2015%12H31H - KARIEMHEE
FERTE - BRRTEHME(KE)K
MARAR (=R LM AR - @HH
REBERFA567%) N2 ENB LA
ESBEXERARGFUREREHE
ZHHHERREE  BREA/AR
# 611,000,000 7T (A ETTH T /&£
B) - REARRERRAEMBER D
7 ARBERERHESFSEE
RILREEB DR - ZALERR —
FATTHK

Bt - 4 AHAE R T 5 WD I A
HE Y HEAA RKIHEEEE - &
RIR L@ 25 B AR G
i MATEREELLESHER
HiEER -

RIETBEXBDMRAFENFER
FIgn

2015 2014
2015 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Revenue A 388,907 503,495
Cost of sales THEK A (232,682) (312,480)
Other income and gains E U A e 9,581 8,477
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MO (246,553) (330,039)
Administrative expenses THX (13,562) (27,208)
Other expenses and losses Emhsr R EE (4,161) (5,568)
Loss before tax from the IR 2

discontinued operation BRI EE (98,470) (163,323)
Income tax credit/(expense) BERTAIEE 2

related to pre-tax loss: FTS R e,/ (i) (53) 228
Loss for the year from the BRI BT 2

discontinued operation FEEIE (98,523) (163,095)

R ERAERAE 201544 é?)



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11. R IEREXER (18)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Discontinued
Segment classified as held for sale as at 31 December are as

K12 A31 AN EAREHEMNK EE
LEBOMMNEERBBENTED

follows: N
2015 2014
20154 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FiET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 133,338 -
Investment properties "EME 80,331 -
Inventories VeS¢ 89,043 -
Accounts and bills receivables RUBR A N 21 21,112 -
Prepayments, deposits and TENFEIE - 2k
other receivables H il FE 15,661 -
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEINIENGIVE 24,840 -
Prepaid tax BT IE 1,506 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 9,300 -
Assets of a disposal group DEABEHEZ
classified as held for sale HEHSEE 375,131 -
Liabilities a&
Accounts and bills payables BRI R B (38,114) -
Other payables and accruals E S RIARERTBE (46,379) -
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNGE = INGIE ¢ (1,893) -
Due to related companies U VNGRS (62) -
Deferred tax liabilities (note 28) RIET A B & (FFE 28) (15,246) -
Liabilities directly associated with BEERHESEARBIELEZ
the assets of a disposal group HEHEEEEH
classified as held for sale MAafE (101,694) -
Net assets directly associated with the EREME RS
Discontinued Segment HEMMNEETE 273,437 -
Assets revaluation reserve of the 1 BB TS D BB Y
Discontinued Segment BEEHEFHE 6,910 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
WIS RRMIFE (8)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11. R IERE T ()
The net cash flows incurred by the Discontinued Segment are BRI EEBRDBEENRESREF
as follows: T
2015 2014
2015 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Operating activities LEES) 3,450 13,339
Investing activities EES (3,683) (12,700)
Net cash flow inflow/(outflow) BERERA Rt FE (233) 639
Loss per share: BRERE :
Basic, from the discontinued operation AR R R HK$3.52 cents B4l HK$5.83 centsi#{l
Diluted, from the discontinued operation BE - R ERRETS HK$3.52 cents B4l HK$5.83 centsi#{l

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the

AERIEEERBNEREARET

discontinued operation are based on: EEHER -
2015 2014
2015 20144
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders (SYNCIE S Gl g Eas s
of the parent from the B AR
discontinued operation ¥W%EE HK$98,523,0008 % HK$163,095,000787T
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREARNEE
shares in issue during the year used BIEFRANFERADET
in the basic and diluted loss per TBAT hAEF 8K
share calculation (note 13) (f3E13) 2,797,223,396  2,797,223,396
12. DIVIDEND 12. K&
2015 2014
2015 % 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Interim — Nil (2014: Nil) FHA— 4 (2014 4F © %) - -
Proposed final — HK1.0 cent (2014: Nil) BEAM-SREER
per ordinary share 1.0l (2014 4F « 4) 27,972 -

The Board declared the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent per share for the year to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of the members on 16
June 2016.

EEgEMME20165F6 A 16 HE5
R AR 4 i B AR A B BRI 3 AR
FREARER S G108 -

2 )
OB AR R AT 2015484 T @



CHINA FOODS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share (2014: loss
per share) amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,797,223,396
(2014: 2,797,223,396) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 in respect of a dilution because the impact of
the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts presented.

The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share are based
on:

. BRAEERESEE ARG
BREF,(E8)

FIREARF (20144F - BRER) &
VR AR LRI E A ARG
NEZHMN(EBR)  URANFED 3
1TINHE T 15 % ML BB 2,797,223,396
A% (20144 : 2,797,223,396 % )51 & -

2D ﬁﬂifﬂiﬁﬁﬂxf“*ﬁﬁfﬂtﬂx%
$BJ7T' S(EBR) BT RREE

2 T%Zi2015¢&2014¢
12A31ALFEMEIERENR
M/ (BB SRIEL A BEEH R -

AHTESREREN,(E1R) THER

2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Earnings 22X
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity ~ BFA R E@EEREES
holders of the parent, used in the basic AT, (E518)
earnings/(loss) per share calculation: BARFTEESRER
aH,/ (&8)
From continuing operations SIBREE 177,676 (61,593)
From a discontinued operation AR TS (98,523) (163,095)
79,153 (224,688)
Shares [ioqviy
Weighted average number of ordinary ARFTESRER R EE
shares in issue during the year used &F /(B8 MFR
in the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) BETE BT I
per share calculation T8 2,797,223,396 2,797,223,396
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR AR M oL ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

14. Y% - BERRE

Plant,
machinery
Freehold and
land equipment  Construction
KAER Buildings BE"  inprogress Total
1 BT BERRE EBIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
31 December 2015 M2015F12F31H
At 31 December 2014 and M2014F12A318K
at 1 January 2015: 201581818
Cost AR 88,318 2,779,733 5,119,203 412,494 8,399,748
Accumulated depreciation ZEE
and impairment SoRE - (857,086) (2,842,390) - (3,699,476)
Net carrying amount REFE 88,318 1,922,647 2,276,813 412,494 4,700,272
At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated ~ FA2015F1A1H -
depreciation and impairment Mk 2EHTE A 88,318 1,922,647 2,276,813 412,494 4,700,272
Additions NE - 60,312 466,418 256,405 783,135
Assets included in the discontinued SARHEEER
operation (note 11) BE (f3E11) - (58,390) (72,377) (2,571) (133,338)
Disposalsfurite-off HE /s - (124) (26,595) - (26,719)
Depreciation provided during the year — FRITER(E - (112,327)  (398,341) - (510,668)
Surplus on revaluation EfzBH% - 5,586 - - 5,586
Impairment pERE - - (5,104) - (5,104)
Transfers to investment BETRENE
properties (note 15) (PizE15) - (24,344) - - (24,344)
Transfer from investment BREETENE
properties (note 15) (HE15) = 3,197 = = 3,197
Transfers from construction in progress ~ EREERTR = 201,797 171,741  (373,538) =
Exchange realignment ER AR (11,581)  (117,200)  (140,898) (20,604)  (290,283)
At 31 December 2015, R2015%12A318
net of accumulated depreciation MR EFTER
and impairment AE 76,737 1,881,154 2,271,657 272,186 4,501,734
At 31 December 2015; 2015%12A31H
Cost AR 76,737 2,745,756 4,946,268 272,186 8,040,947
Accumulated depreciation ZETER
and impairment HE - (864,602) (2,674,611) - (3,539,213)
Net carrying amount FEFE 76,737 1,881,154 2,271,657 272,186 4,501,734
PR RAERAT 2015440



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y03 ~ BB K=& (&)

(continued)
Plant,
machinery
Freghold and
land equipment  Construction
KAEE Buildings BE - inprogress Total
it BF  ERLLE EEIR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
31 December 2014 M2014%€12F31H
At 31 December 2013 and at R2013F12A318 R
1 January 2014: 01451718
Cost AR 101,100 2,614,255 5,054,593 498 738 8,268,680
Accumulated depreciation 25
and impairment KoRE - (740,679)  (2,646,689) - (3,387.368)
Net carrying amount FEFE 101,100 1873576 2,407,904 498738 4881318
At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated 120141818 -
depreciation and impairment %2 ERAE 101,100 1873576 2407904 498738 43831318
Additions RE - 13,735 228,074 196,476 438 285
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) WeiE —RINB 2 A (i 33) - - 128 - 128
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (4,853) (26,298) (3,569) (34,720)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERIF &R/ - (101,771)  (396,801) - (498,572)
Surplus on revaluation EEpa - 7,299 - - 7299
Impairment HiE - (21,174) (26,639) - (47 813)
Transfers to investment ERERENE
properties (note 15) (KiE15) - (7,746) - - (7,746)
Transfers from construction in progress ~ EREERTIR - 174,830 102,523 (277,353) -
Exchange realignment EHAR (12,782) (11,249) (12,078) (1,798) (37,907)
At 31 December 2014, net of R2014%F12A318
accumulated depreciation MBEFNER
and impairment i 88,318 1,922,647 2,276.813 412,494 4700,272
At 31 December 2014; R2014E12A318
Cost AR 88,318 2,779,733 5,119,203 412 494 8,399,748
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
and impairment oRE - (857,086)  (2,842,390) - (3,699.476)
Net carrying amount REFE 88318 1922647 2276813 412494 4700272

L
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

An impairment of HK$5,104,000 (2014: HK$47,813,000)
was recognised for certain property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$29,197,000 (2014:
HK$91,180,000) (before deducting the impairment loss)
during the year because those property, plant and equipment
had been dormant and/or obsolete.

The recoverable amounts of the certain property, plant and
equipment in the beverage segment as at 31 December
2015 have been determined as nil because these property,
plant and equipment will be written off within one year at nil
consideration.

The aggregate recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment in other segments were determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal and were determined based on
valuations performed by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers,
at HK$24,093,000 (2014: HK$40,680,000), using the cost
approach or market approach.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s machinery and equipment for which
an impairment loss has been recognised based on fair value
less costs of disposal:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

WM ()
31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

14. 1% - BEK&RE (&)

RAAFERNETYE BEMREBEDE
BEM SEE WEAEATA
29,197,000 7T (2014 4 : 91,180,000
HBTT) (FORRREIBLRAT) HE L%
BE & 2R #FERR 5,104,000 % 7T (2014
£ 1 47 813,000 7T) BIRIE ©

MN20155F12A31H » T BE

RENAEWESEEEEAT R
RAEZEWE BERREBR—F
RIASREME -

Hib o mE - BERRENTE
W4 5E4a 5B IR 1R A AR &R A=
. UREBYEESERGEMSE
—ARFRBEHEEREEBEERA
RIETHMEE S FRAANES TS
Yk & 7 424,093,000 7T (2014 4F ¢
40,680,0005&7T) °

DVFERER
TRFIFIR D AR H &R AHER
R R B R A SR B MR ER A
BFFERER :

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using
R20155 12 A31 RRA TSI AKX ENAFE

Quoted
prices in  Significant  Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERR FEW  EERT
TSR E B2y B2y
(%6—18) (8=/8) (E5=F) st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHx A FH

Recurring fair value BTIIEE LT

measurement for: HAFERE
Cost approach AR ASE - = 16,624 16,624
Market approach i - = 7,469 7,469

_ - 24,093 24,093
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

DNFERR (&)

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 using

720145 12 A 31 RERA MR A ENATHE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

T R FEA FEAT

mH®E B2 R
(F—E) (E=BE) E==) FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET

Recurring fair value BTIEE MK S
measurement for: AT ERE

Cost approach AL - - 22,000 22,000
Market approach A - - 18,680 18,680
- - 40,680 40,680

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

The cost approach, in particular, the depreciated replacement
cost method, considers the cost to reproduce or replace in
new condition the assets appraised in accordance with current
market prices for similar assets including costs of transport,
installation, commissioning and consultancy fees. Adjustment
is then made for accrued depreciation, which encompasses
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, functional and economic
obsolescence.

The market approach, in particular, the direct comparison
approach, measures the fair value of assets by referring to
comparable sale transactions as available in the market and
the consideration of due adjustments for differences between
the subject asset and the comparable ones.

! =
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
WIS RRMIRE (8)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

key assumptions to the valuation of the Group’s machinery and PR AN T 5RO (B 85 18 A B A B2 58 1 B 1

equipment for which an impairment loss has been recognised

base on fair value less costs of disposal:

Valuation techniques

fhER %

Key assumptions

FEREBR

NHEER (R)
LAT?E&;TZKE IE*EFEH?TE)DM%
Eﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ HEFERFEFEREZOMN
;t
Description
B

Cost approach Replacement cost

FRAE EERA

Rate of newness

BEES

Market approach Market value

REENZS miE

The replacement cost is determined by reference to and
indexing of historical cost information and by discussion
with original suppliers regarding current costs for
comparable assets. Allowances have also been made for
freight, installation and commissioning, finance charges,
taxes, tariff, duties and other fees.
BBERATERERL KRB AL BIERFT - WHR
HERNmABAI LR EENRITRANRETE o Tt
BE LREBELAT MBER BX BB BAHRK
Hith & RIEL R -

The rate of newness is determined by inspecting the site,
perusing records, conducting interviews with experts
and accounting staff, obtaining and reviewing detailed
drawings and specifications relating to the assets.
BTETEREMARE - FHFEHZE  FRERRE
FTAE - BERMUREREEEME AR R RBEMmE
e

Market value is determined by conducting inquires and
making contacts with suppliers, second-hand machinery
dealers and other relevant parties regarding the cost of
comparable used equipment in operative condition in the
second-hand market, and based on the assumption that
the assets will continue in their present existing use in the
business of the Group.

mfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬁ TR 5 E M EMARAL
PR = FiIBENEERRZ B LB EAREZK
TETERARBE  WREEEREEN N EEEBH
HFEERIRE AR BRMETE -

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s buildings
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$171,461,000 (2014: HK$182,092,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note 27).

At 31 December 2015, certificates of ownership in respect
of certain buildings of the Group in Mainland China with an
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$140,960,000 (2014:
HK$10,913,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.

MN2015%F 12 A31H » AEBE@mA
=R E 49 A 171,461,0007% 7T (2014
% 182,092,000 7C) Z1BF - Ty5t
ZKEIZ%HE B P RT (0
$27)

MR2015F 128318 REBERTEH
ﬂ;‘eﬁﬁﬁmﬁm/\mweoooo/%m
(2014 £ : 10,913,000 7T ) B & T1&
FiRAEFER P R E L TR

R ERAERAE 201544



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWZ

2015 2014
20154 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZEEE 98,331 90,597
Transfer from owner-occupied EREETFHAME
properties (note 14) (K7t 14) 24,344 7,746
Transfer to owner-occupied EREETFaAME
properties (note 14) (HMisE14) (3,197) -
Net gain from a fair value AR EREmMESE
adjustment Wz F 58 2,004 305
Exchange realignment bE H (6,416) (317)
115,066 98,331
Less: Assets included in the discontinued  J& @ FFAAR [FAS & 275
operation (note 11) ZEE(MFE1D) (80,331) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R12 A31BZ2EmE 34,735 98,331

The Group’s investment properties consist of three commercial
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties are
commercial properties based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2015 based on valuations
performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$34,735,000 (2014: HK$98,331,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

"
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

PR AR M oL ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

15. REW* (&)

DNFERR
TRIAREEREMEN R FER

EEA

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using

R2015%512 A31 HEAT AR BN AFE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ER FET FERT

TIEHRE BE2E BE2E
(5—FE) (E2=FE) (%=8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT FET FEx

Recurring fair value FTFEE EITEE
measurement for: NFEFE :

Commercial properties SIEEES - = 34,735 34,735

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 using

R2014F 12 A 31 BERA ML A EBNATE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

g FEA FEAA

MiSHRE BR2% BR2y
(B—E) (=) (3=8) wmEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIL FAL FEL FAEL

Recurring fair value BNFIIEEETER
measurement for: NHERTE -

Commercial properties [l EIES - - 98,331 98,331

§ ,
O T AR T 201564 @
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

15. REYW* (&)

RER > AFEHEEF—BHE—
BB EEITEAE NEEFE
EITEASE Y (20144F - £) o

TNERBAEH R EYRETHEERPT
RAMKETEREE2H

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
HERE TERTBRZY EERMEFY
2015 2014
2015 20144
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value HK$21 to HK$22 to
cash flow method (per sq.m and per month) HK$218 HK$198
[EliikIES BREASREE fhETHEERE 21 8R%E WELE
(BFAREEAH) 2187t 19887
Rent growth (p.a.) 0%-5% 0%-5%
HeHRE(§F)
Long term vacancy rate 0%-20% 0%-20%
REEEX
Discount rate 2.5%-7% 3%-6%
BT

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,

BRUBBRDRESL A FETIRA
ERBEEFHAMBENNmNAE
MBRR (BERERLEENREER E
1TfhET » ZIEB R EE RN —
BERBSREBNTER o TIHITLENEL
BERERANTENRERE A E M E
BEABNRARRNERE -

Ren e aRE MR ABMR L
mOARKEHES R - BOSE
HRERERE EZXBHFEMNR
E o BENREREXMISTR(BY
BRI E - TR RER
P EGREE - TAIEKER - K
fRIBR - HERE) #EER  RI2

maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income is then discounted.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation
would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair
value of the investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate
in isolation would result in a significant decrease/(increase)
in the fair value of the investment properties. Generally, a
change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value
is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long term vacancy rate.
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16. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR AR ML ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

16. Bttt &

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BZEEE 435,351 405,520
Additions nNE 75,126 42 597
Recognised during the year FRTER (11,359) (11,357)
Exchange realignment PE 5 5% (27,276) (1,409)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12 A31 B Z8RmEE 471,842 435,351
Current portion included in BRENERIA
prepayments, deposits e R HALEUHIR
and other receivables Z BERER 1 (11,991) (11,325)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER (R 459,851 424,026

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Groups land use rights
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,416,000 (2014: HK$17,434,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note 27).

At 31 December 2015, certificates of land use rights in
respect of certain land of the Group in Mainland China with
an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$89,780,000 (2014-
HK$48,826,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.

MN20154 12 A31H - REFEEES
HFEL 516,416,000 7T (2014 4
17,434,000 7T ) %5 T T {5 A #EIR
HFIRT  LIERE FAEEMIRT

B (ffEE27) ©

20155 12 A31H « REERKAH
RBERRENHFE & $ /389,780,000 7T
(20144 : 48,826,000 7T) & T+
Mo HOREARBI P BB R B

BRAY - {5 PR RE

-
PEESARAT 20154 @



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

17. GOODWILL 17. B&
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January: R1A1H:
Cost R AR 1,753,834 1,758,042
Accumulated impairment Z2:HRE (11,610) (11,610)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,742,224 1,746,432
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated R1A1IHZRKAK
impairment Mk 2FHRE 1,742,224 1,746,432
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (58,163) (4,208)
Cost at 31 December, net of MN12A31 82K
accumulated impairment Ik 2EHRIE 1,684,061 1,742,224
At 31 December: M12A8318 :
Cost B AR 1,684,061 1,753,834
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE - (11,610)
Net carrying amount BEmEFE 1,684,061 1,742,224

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units, which are reportable
segments, for impairment testing:

° Beverage cash-generating unit
e Wine cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of each of the above cash-generating
units has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections ranged
from 12% to 13% (2014: 12% to 13%) and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%
(2014: 3%).

=
& CHINA FOODS LIMITED  Annual Report 2015

BREBAUMEB2EE  2old
EUTHEEEEM (A T2HNE)
AVERERIE -

o HRREELAEQ
s HERmEHSELREM

i ZIR e E B 2 AW R
TIREERAEEEE - FAEBELE
BefEEEIEREAFRTR
BETERBEESREREFE -BHE
MEEEMERZMBEENTRI2%
Z13%(2014%F : 12%&E13%) ' A
FHIM 2 N IR 2K Ty 3% (2014
&F 1 3%) ZERF AR -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. & (&)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- NRESReELABEN  HEREE
generating units are as follows: RN

2015 2014
2015 % 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Beverage 7R 1,190,583 1,221,090
Wine R 493,478 521,134
1,684,061 1,742,224
Impairment testing of goodwill BB 2R ERIR
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of 2015 12 A31 B & 201412 A31
the cash-generating units for 31 December 2015 and 31 B #HiEReELSNZFEREE
December 2014. The following describes each key assumption B ODEAETERE - ATEMEE
on which management has based its cash flow projections to EBREREREMVEMKIE 2T
undertake impairment testing of goodwill: BERE - LUETTEERERR ¢
Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the HEEFE - BIEETEEENERR
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average ETBECEE  AEEEEFER
gross margins achieved in the years immediately before the ATFERFZFHEFRE - WHETE
budget year, increased for expected market development. A5 Rm o
Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and BHEE—-FERMRERTERIE
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units. B - WRMAABEENFTS N 2 TR

B -

2 ,
OB AR B AT 2015484 T @



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EttEFEE

Computer
software Water rights Total
EREMS K a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TEn THET
31 December 2015 2015%12A31H
At 31 December 2014 and R2014512A31B R
at 1 January 2015: 20151718
Cost AR 80,109 8,654 88,763
Accumulated amortisation REE (60,297) (1,096) (61,393)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,812 7,558 27,370
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of R2015F1A1BZHKA
accumulated amortisation ks Rt 19,812 7,558 27,370
Amortisation provided during FREH
the year B (9,568) (226) (9,794)
Exchange realignment [ 5 % (878) (1,088) (1,966)
Cost at 31 December 2015, netof ~ FA2015F 12 A31HZ
accumulated amortisation PR - 0k RETE 9,366 6,244 15,610
At 31 December 2015: R2015F12A318 :
Cost A 75,433 7,389 82,822
Accumulated amortisation BEHEE (66,067) (1,145) (67,212)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,366 6,244 15,610
31 December 2014 2014%12A318
At 31 December 2013 and R2013%512A31B R
1 January 2014 014F1A18:
Cost B 80,377 9,974 90,351
Accumulated amortisation BT (49,567) (646) (50,213)
Net carrying amount REFE 30,810 9,328 40,138
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of R2014F1 1B ZMA -
accumulated amortisation B Rt 30,810 9,328 40,138
Amortisation provided during FREH
the year B (10914) (573) (11,487)
Exchange realignment [E 5% (84) (1,197) (1,281)
Cost at 31 December 2014, netof R 201412 A31 8 -
accumulated amortisation MR RT3 19,812 7,558 27,370
At 31 December 2014: M2014%12 A318 :
Cost A 80,109 8,654 88,763
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (60,297) (1,096) (61,393)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,812 7,558 27,370

! L
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATEERR ML ()
31 December 2015 20154 12 31 A

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEENT 2 RE
2015 2014
2015 2014 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 780,759 758,932

The amounts due from and to associates included in
current assets and current liabilities of HK$10,496,000
(2014: HK$16,273,000) and HK$176,405,000 (2014:
HK$154,453,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31
December 2015 are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

AARBEEMRBABZHER
AR R REEERBRED R R
10,496,000 7T(2014 4 : 16,273,000
7 7T ) % 176,405,000 7T (2014 £ :
154,453,000/ 7T ) » HAEEM - 2
BRREREER -

REEN2015512 A31 B 2 X E8 &
RAHFHBEEN IS RAM L3S -

TRINBAEEL T EFEAH 2

information of the Group’s associates that are not individually NRKEBIHIEER
material:
2015 2014
2015 % 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Share of the associates’ profit for the year (G N B F E % K 71,872 93,816
Share of the associates’ other ity sd=t/NGEIE o)
comprehensive income H2ERA 682 657
Share of the associates’ total ity d=t/NGIlE o)
comprehensive income 2HEUWA LB 72,554 94,473
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ ANEBE KBS A )
investments in the associates ZIEMERmES 780,759 758,932

PEESARAT 20154

20



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20. At HHERE

2015 2014
2015 2014 £
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FHT FHET

Non-current JEENEA
Unlisted equity investments FELEMEREE (i) 209,637 214,106

Current BN A
Financial products & RE M (i) = 399,305
Notes: Bisr

(i) The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

(ii)  The financial products were issued by certain banks in Mainland
China and had original maturity of less than one year when
acquired.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s available-for-sale
investments were stated at cost less impairment because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot
be measured reliably. During the year, an impairment of
HK$3,477,000 (2014: Nil) was recognised for an available-for-
sale investment in the wine segment with a carrying amount
of HK$12,676,000 (before deducting the impairment loss),
because there are objective evidences indicating that such
investment was impaired.

! L
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 21. EYEE

2015 2014
2015 F 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
At 1 January W1A1H 200,806 190,798
Decrease due to harvest YR (43,899) (39,014)
Additions during the year FARE 3,590 12,203
Disposal during the year FARE (1,036) -

Unrealised gains arising from changes in fair HE & & &< A FEHH
value attributable to physical changes FETE 2 RER K 54,122 42,119
Exchange realignment P& 7 o2 (15,411) (5,300)
At 31 December W12 A31H 198,172 200,806

During the year, the Group harvested approximately 8,045,000
kilograms (2014: 7,063,000 kilograms) of grapes, which had a
fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of HK$43,899,000
(2014: HK$39,014,000). The fair value of grapes was
determined with reference to their market prices. The
unrealised gains arising from changes in fair value attributable
to physical changes are included in the statement of profit or
loss.

The Group’s biological assets are grape vines and were
individually revalued on 31 December 2015 based on
valuations performed by independent professionally qualified
valuers, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited and
Transsa Consultores Inmobiliarios, at an aggregate amount of
HK$198,172,000 (2014: HK$200,806,000).

Significant assumptions made in determining the fair values of
the biological assets based on discounted cash flow projections
are as follows:

(i)  the grape vines will continue to be competently managed
and remain free from irremediable diseases in the
remaining estimated useful lives; and

(i)  the expected prices of grapes are based on the historical
average district prices.

RAFE NEBEHE WKL
804500027 (20144F : 7,063 0008/T)
EAFERGAHEERKXNA A
43,899,0007% 7T (20144 : 39,014,000
BIL) c BRAZATENEMEME
F o ABEEHSAFERBESM
%iZﬂiﬁiﬁuﬁzﬁéE@%mﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ

M2015F12A31H » AEEEYEESR
EAEEERE - WHET HEAS BTG
RIS — K FELESEENFEEBRER
A7 K Transsa Consultores Inmobiliarios
ETENEHGHE At EAR
198,172,000/ 7T (20144F : 200,806,000
BIT) e

ERNMBRREREZEEENEEL
RFERERZ E2REWT

RS R ELEE - %
TZE A ABRANRT 2
=R

£2S

(M)

a2 AR R EES
T (R -

(ii)

R ERAERAE 201544



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s biological assets:

21. £MEE (&)

DNFERER
TRIAREEEMEEN R FER

EER :

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using

R2015%12 A31 HERATNHA X BN AFE

Quoted
prices in  Significant  Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
pEdiEs FET FERT
TSR E B2y B2y st
(%6—18) (%=/E) (=)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value BTIIEE KT
measurement for: MATERE -
Grape vines BER = = 198,172 198,172

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 using

20145 12 A 31 RERA T A X ENQTHE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

JE IR FZ0] FEAA]
mSMmE HR2Y Bmay HEt

(5—F8) (5=E) (B=E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FAT FAT

Recurring fair value BLTAIIE B B R
measurement for: HEAEERE

Grape vines Ba - - 200,806 200,806

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

RERN - RFEFEESE - EHE—
BRI EETHEE  TERE=E

into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).
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21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of biological assets:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
WIS RRMIFE (8)

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

21. £EE (&)

DNHERER (&)
TERERESEYEELETHERA
RENGBETNERTIEZH

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Range or weighted average

HER* TERTRESE EE = MET
2015 2014
2015 F 20144
Grape vines Discounted Estimated grape price (HK$ per kilogram) 2.1-12.7 2.3-15.0
BER cash flow method  EEHEAEBR (BATHET)
RIS REE Grape price growth per annum 0%-12% 1%-10%
BEEHBERR
Estimated production volume (kilogram/mu) 35-1,207 98-961
fEEtEE (DT /8)
Discount rate 8%-16% 8%-14%
BEHK
Age of vine (year) 2-60 5-40
TEEER (%)
Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated BRABRESRESL  AFENEA

using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life. This method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A
market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected cash
flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as life of
vines. The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour
that is a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less rental expenses,
labour costs, utilities and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income is then
discounted.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated grape
price, grape price growth rate per annum and the estimated
production volume in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the biological assets.
A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount rate in
isolation would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in
the fair value of the biological assets. Generally, a change
in the assumption made for the estimated grape price is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the grape
price growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the estimated production volume.

FREEFHAMARNNEMNEE
MR - LIRS M ER SN —
BERESREBNTAA - TIHITEMR
WEFANTARR  REIAEREL R
BEABNKRARIRIIRE -

REm B ERR MR AR L
HOABRR T ABEHFRESM
RE - BEHFBEREXTISTR(R
MERRNEL)ZE - EMRERE
AW RTBEEER  ATRA -
NHEBRBERAMEMEENEIEEM
mE - Z—EREHMEERA TR
MAETTRASRBRIE

MErAEER ARERFEREXR
At EEEBARIENMORd) BE
BAEMEEN R FEREE MO/
4) o BAIR R EBAMRIE N, ORl ) 1%
BHEYEENRTERERD(F
m) e —KimE - SEETEEERED
MR H) Sl S B & B RIS
EEAREHBERES REHEE
HERAES -
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22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2015 2014
2015 2014 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials R 1,927,016 2,227,415
Work in progress T2 9,290 12,612
Finished goods IR 2,102,309 2,061,391
4,038,615 4,301,418

23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

23. BUERR KR RE

2015 2014

2015 2014 F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Accounts and bills receivables RUBR AN B2 1,481,028 1,843,059
Impairment TRE (104,618) (71,867)
1,376,410 1,771,192

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally for one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its account and bill receivables
balances. Accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

! L
(| é.i! CHINA FOODS LIMITED  Annual Report 2015

BEEPIN AEBEBRER 2B 51
R EBREERNL  —RAEHE
PHEAMNK - EEH KRN F—=E=
B{A SREFHIBEERLR-
AEBSKGERERIEFEREER
WA KRB EESIEL - BRBE
ERBBERE BREEECHE
BB ER o BN bl - ARAEE
WERETRER 2 BIERR - &)I5
ERBRcETREYTERE - A5%H
I EL W BR AR S RIB B SR B (T
a3 el H b (S IR AR - FE IR K
REBRTER -



23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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23. BWRR KR EE (F)

RS IR 2 AR R N RIE AR 1R
BHEAMAMHREREINDT

2015 2014

20154 2014 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 3 months 3MEAR 1,298,638 1,486,684
3to 12 months 3EAZ12EARN 55,587 227,432
1to 2 years 1FEE2FR 13,309 26,930
Over 2 years Hid2F 8,876 30,146
1,376,410 1,771,192

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

FEMBR BB B BB T

2015 2014
2015 & 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
At 1 January M1A1H 71,867 46,290
Impairment losses recognised BREZREEE 48,474 27,269
Amount written off as uncollectible Yl BIEER M SE ~ 2R (1,674) (1,495)
Exchange realignment b R (5,561) (197)
113,106 71,867

Less: Amounts included in the discontinued 7 : 5T AR L&
operation Enjea:cl (8,488) -
At 31 December W12 A31 H 104,618 71,867

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is a provision for individually impaired accounts
receivable of HK$104,618,000 (2014: HK$71,867,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$138,211,000 (2014
HK$296,026,000).

The individually impaired accounts receivable relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

3t i AR FORVE R B 1R E B RUE
JiE W BR 3% 2 B 45 49 104,618,000 3 7T
(20144 : 71,867,000/87T) » %5 EW
AR B R 2 BRE{E4) 5 138,211,000
7T (2014 4F : 296,026,000 7T) ©

E B IR (8 2 JE A BR 50 TY ERLBE 70 B X
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23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

23. BWRR KR ZEE (&)

FEME R 3K KRR E BB Z FE AR R K
SBRZEREDITNT

2015 2014

2015 % 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Neither past due nor impaired REEATNARE 1,333,882 1,530,857
Within 1 year past due BE1FAR 8,935 16,176
1,342,817 1,547,033

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of HK$12,247,000
(2014: HK$5,759,000) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by
the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse was HK$12,247,000 (2014: HK$5,759,000) as at 31
December 2015.
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23.

24.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety
At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) with a carrying amount in aggregate
of HK$45,823,000 (2014: HK$32,697,000) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to these
suppliers. The Derecognised Bills had a maturity from one to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss
on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has been
made evenly throughout the year.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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W R R RE (&)

E2HEERACEREE
R2015%12A31H » AEEREET
HERRBRBEARERITEMANSE T
FEMRIE (TBUBMERFIR]) - USE
RSZEREANENEZRER - K
B #8758 /545,823,000 7T (2014 4F -
32,697,000/7T) « REREHR - BUH
EREENERANTF—Z= @A -
IRIR R B SRIBOX - ik S5 o B KRR IR

TR - BUBERZ BB AHARE
IT?EEL%EE”(Hiﬁ}bF&J) EER
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BYA BB L B R o FH it - HRE
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SENAITRR S M EH RS E
BRBASNEE@RE EFR
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BEXTEKX -

FR - AREYENEZIOHERSR
B2 AREREMIRLE - AEEWEH
HESRIERFANRHER - BE
ERFRG S FRET -

BAVPEIARE ZERRE

2015 2014

20154 20144

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Listed equity securities at fair value ETRE - ZATFE - 14,728

The above investments at 31 December 2014 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCE AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

25. BERBFEEEHER - ZRF
RITHEBRREE MR

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTT4E % 899,170 1,356,458
Time deposits TE BT 71,954 162,947
971,124 1,519,405
Less: Restricted bank balances * B SZBRFIERTTAERRY (6,974) -
Pledged time deposits: EEBERTH
Pledged for bank loans FERTTEM
(note 27) R (BT 27) - (116,273)
Pledged for bills payable PR R m K E
(note 26) (fi7E26) (64,980) (46,674)
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEEE 899,170 1,356,458
# The amounts were restricted solely for the purpose of the t ZEDHERRAEYE(FEECD K

payment of refurbishment costs to a former landlord of a property
in which the Group has moved out.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$834,802,000 (2014: HK$1,246,865,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of within one year depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances,
restricted bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the
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26. BN ERRREE
RIERZ BABRALRERER

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BEABSWOT
follows:

2015 2014
20154 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 3 months 3MEAR 1,173,579 1,304,299
3 to 12 months 3EAE12EAN 107,137 50,266
1to 2 years 1EE2FR 11,615 10,667
Over 2 years HBiE2F 7,765 6,874
1,300,096 1,372,106

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled in one to three months and one to six
months, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to HK$64,980,000
(2014: HK$46,674,000).

ENERARZBERTEE - —RON
RSB R—E=EAR—=/EA -

AEEBETENEBUNEES
64,980,000 7T (2014 4F : 46,674,000
BTL) 2 AEBRITIFR T IAELR -

go
R AR AT 20154 &



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B IRRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

27. STERITERKEMER

BORROWINGS
2015 2014
2015% 20145
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBFIE (%) F#A T ERAE%) pall-il= TEn
Current BE
Bank loans - secured BTEN-BHE 5,34 2016 167,108  0.686.00 2015 293221
2016 20155
Bank loans - unsecured BITE - BEE 1.55-5.66 2016 1442971 109672 20150ron 1,031,353
2016 F demand
20155
Byl
Other loans - unsecured Hip &5 - af i 5.60 2016 37,571 560 2015 36,420
2016 2015%F
1,647,650 1,360,994
Non-current FEH
Bank loans - unsecured BB -aEE 0.92-2.12 2017 1,000,000 094-214  2016-2017 2,100,000
2017 016F2
20174
1,000,000 2,100,000
2,647,650 3,460,994
Analysed into: i
Bank loans repayable: FEERTER:
Within one year —E R4 1,610,079 1,324,574
In the second year F_F 1,000,000 1,400,000
In the third to fifth years, F-FZERF
inclusive (BEBEME) - 700,000
2,610,079 3,424 574
Other loans repayable: BREZEMEN
Within one year —EREH 37,571 36,420
37,571 36,420
2,647,650 3,460,994
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’s buildings, which
had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$171,461,000 (2014: HK$182,092,000) (note 14); and

(if)  mortgages over certain of the Group’s land use rights,
which had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,416,000 (2014: HK$17,434,000) (note 16).

In addition, certain of the Group’s bank loans at 31 December
2014 were secured by the pledge of certain of the Group’s time
deposits amounting to HK$116,273,000 (note 25).

(b) Except for bank loans of HK$263,167,000 (2014:
HK$239,242,000) denominated in RMB as at 31 December
2015, all other borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. In addition, bank loans of HK$271,752,000 were
denominated in United States dollars as at 31 December 2014.

The other loans represented loans from a non-controlling
shareholder of the subsidiaries of the Group. These balances
are unsecured and bear interest at the rate of 5.6% (2014:
5.6%) per annum.
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27. AR RITERRAEMER (&)
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28. DEFERRED TAX

28. IEHEBLTH

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the AEENRELEHEABNREEZED

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

mT
RS &

Fair value adjustments arising from
investment properties, biological assets
and acquisition of subsidiaries

KEWE - EMEERWEEHE DA

EEZATHERZE
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2014 MH2014%F1A1H 59,031
Deferred tax charged to the statement of PARFE R RAIR
profit or loss during the year ZIRIETIA 5310
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive ~ AARFE £ 2 EUWA R
income during the year bR ZEERIIE 1,825
Exchange realignment B 3, 2 (2,293)
At 31 December 2014 and MN2014F 12 A31H K
at 1 January 2015 2015F1A1H 63,873
Deferred tax charged to the statement of RAFERBEREAHGRZ
profit or loss during the year EAERIIR 3,750
Deferred tax charged to other
comprehensive income RAFEAMEEHRA
during the year W 2 IEEF A 1,397
Exchange realignment b 5 SR (4,473)
Gross deferred tax liabilities M2015F 1243182
at 31 December 2015 REFIEB EE5E 64,547
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. IEEHE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEBHIBEEE
Losses
available
Provision for offsetting

against ~ Impairment  against future

Unrealised ~ Deferred

inventories  of receivables taxable profits ~ Accruals profits income Others Total
TRRES
FRERH
FERE BUSERE WRNEE ERER AERE ERMA it aif
HES'000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSOOD  HKS0O0  HK$O00
T  TEnr  TEm TR TETL  TEn T TEn
At 1 January 2014 MO4ELRLE 1,249 7419 23810 3316 8147 2103 14733 134770
Defered ta creditedi(charged) o the REERERRAMIA/
statement o profit orlogs during the year (1) ZBRERE 80l 08 R4 A3 (6A0) 3406 (638) %031
Exchange realigment EjiE% ) ) (1) (169) 59 (76) (182 (628)
At 31 December 2014 ROUERRIER
andat 1 January 2015 NHEIAIA 2,04 6428 56,200 59984 21586 24 306 13913 184921
Defered tax credied(charged) othe Setement ~— WEEERRBAREHA/
of rofitorloss during the year (1m8s)  BiERE (1106) 0 @30 ¥ 749 (14 (B0 1898
Exchange realignment EidE @87 (3712 2731) (4603) (878) (1,380) (801) (10,858
Gross defered tax assels at MNBE12A3NEL
31 December 2015 ELH LRSS 8l 5%!1 45153 93,004 13305 AR 12782 192651
For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and BIER2VIZH  ATEEFBEEER
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position. ﬁ{fEE’\Hﬁ‘%HﬁREE}EE% BEIERT TS
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the ERA NEBRREFIALE G D
Group for the financial reporting purposes: TEZZDT :
2015 2014
2015 % 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERA BTSN R R
consolidated statement of financial position BEEHBEEESE 182,837 184,521
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERA BTSN R R
consolidated statement of financial position ELERIEE BT (39,487) (63,873)
Net deferred tax liabilities included in the FEAB E R E TR
discontinued operation (note 11) EEHEAEFE(HE11) (15,246) -
128,104 120,648
* i)
PR RAERAE 2015 FFEH @
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$3,124,278,000 (2014: HK$2,467,686,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits to a
maximum period of five years of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in France
and Chile of HK$30,499,000 (2014: HK$33,085,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the company in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China or offshore incorporated enterprises which
are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprise (“CRE"). The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China or offshore
incorporated enterprises which are regarded as CRE in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the approvals received by the Company from the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company
and most of its subsidiaries are regarded as CRE and relevant
enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to the
Company and these subsidiaries starting from 1 January 2013.
As a result, the Company and these subsidiaries are therefore
no longer liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by their subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of retained earnings generated from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2012. No deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries or associates established in Mainland China at 31
December 2015.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR
Shares B 15
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Authorised: ETE
SREEC.1I0BTZ
I3 M 4,000,000,000 f%
4,000,000,000 (2014 4,000,000,000) (2014 % : 4,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each %) 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
BREEO0.IOETLZ
LM 2,797,223,396 [
2,797,223,396 (2014: 2,797,223,396) (20144 : 2,797,223,396
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ) 279,722 279,722
Share options BRE
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share RN BB R EARE T &I TT
options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to BIREARE S IB N B SRR MIEE 30 ©
the financial statements.
30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. B EERT &
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 November RIER2006F 11 H21 BiBR e —18E
2006, the Company conditionally adopted a share option BRRE - NRRBIEMFRN—IARE
scheme (the “Scheme”). The Scheme became effective on 21 Rzt &l ([3zatEl D) - sZaH 817 2006
November 2006 (the “Effective Date”) and unless otherwise F11RA21B(TEMBEDER - BR3E
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from SITEUHSERT - B B2 AR g
that date. BHI0F -
The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate ZETEIE LRS- BB RBEARQF
senior management personnel and key employees of the SREEBABLRETERE  EAE
Company, and provide eligible participants with an opportunity B2 EEFEIEAR D REAEARE
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to @ HEEEARSEERNINRALRR
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing AIREREERFSRAAAGRE
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the f&{n 2 B1E °
Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The maximum number of unexercised share options currently BZATEI BRI A B T RTTE 2 BB
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount BERTERAIREZ AR FIRD&ES
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the issued shares FRREE > HERANRFREWNZT
of the Company at the date of the adoption of the Scheme. BERDETRMND 210% - RIEM
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options + @A ERE - BIEZATERFEM
granted to each eligible participant pursuant to the Scheme BERZEE ZBIRETETRMNDZ
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of SEHAERNEESBEEREATE
the Company in issue at the relevant time. Any further grant of BITRR D 2 1% o FRMIE PR B8 2 (E 13
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ — SR EREALEBRENIR

approval in a general meeting. RAESHAE -

F .
BhRERAERATF 201544 &
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. B ERTEI(48)

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of its
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the relevant time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer. The exercise periods of the
share options granted commence subject to the applicable
vesting schedule and in any event end on a date which is not
later than seven years from the date of acceptance of the share
options, subject to early termination thereof as provided in the
Scheme.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
the offer; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; or (c) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 29 March 2011, a total of 30,880,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group in respect of their services to the
Group (the “2011 Options”). The exercise price of the 2011
Options is HK$4.91. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.80 per share.

-
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Bl INvd-fre: Vobteskhvae 2o ko)
EEHE - WA NEM+—EAH
BA - EFPARE T ZBRRGEAEM
Brge A 2 TR AE - WA A A A
PAERER R 2 B ITAD 2 0.1% » 3iZ
ARAREH ARz RO RHETE
B4 (B85 5,000,000/8 7T - BIZESE A
PBERMBR KRG HLE

B N E B BERE 288 Wik
9 - DR MBERERNTTER (AR HR
BANREBY) BRI NMSHEBEN
FBIHE B EEETEF - A& E
PELA B Te P42 LE RV IRSCE BRSO ©

TEEREFSET  WEARNKT=
R&mE () RENEREBHA
RHABRAR ([HBRFPT]) FHRE
R ETHE (b)) RBEEZRENH
HpAES X ABIME B MERMN
ﬁ%ﬁZ?i’:ﬂﬂlﬁﬂE » 8k (c) B 2|
8 o

BRCEY & TR A AWEUA RS
FIRBRARGRR 2R -

M201143 29 » RARIFALQT]
ETEERAEERETEEMAEE
IR AR M % A 30,880,000 17 B
[ (2011 FEEARHE]) - 2011 F R
ERITEBE4OLB T - BREKEE
faiE BHRI AR R mEAS
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. B RERTEI(48)

The following 2011 Options were outstanding under the FR - RIEZETEI TS 2011 F BRI

Scheme during the year: HARITE -
2015 2014
20154 20144

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
hn¥E IR piliL::3 BB AR
FHITEE BB THTRE A

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share '000
BTER T4 BT Tt
At 1 January M1A1H 4910 25,700 4910 26,900
Lapsed during the year FRERK 4.910 (620) 4910 (1,200)
At 31 December ®12H31H 4910 25,080 4910 25,700

The exercise price and exercise periods of the 2011 Options

R E HIR M R TTE2 2011 B ARHE

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZITEEBRITEHNT -
2015 2015 %
Number of options granted to
RitBRERR
Directors Employees Total Vesting period Exercise price* Exercise period
Bz &g Bt BEH TEE" TEH
'000 '000 '000 HK$ per share
T4 T4 T4 BTER
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2013 4910 29-3-2013 to £ 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2014 4910 29-3-2014 to £ 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2015 4910 29-3-2015 to £ 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2016 4910 29-3-2016 to £ 28-3-2018
508 4,508 5,016 29-3-2011 to £ 28-3-2017 4910 29-3-2017 to £ 28-3-2018
2,540 22,540 25,080

MR ERERAT 2015 FEH 2 O
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

30. B AERTEI (&)

2014 2014 F
Number of options granted to
KtEREER

Directors Employees Total Vesting period Exercise price* Exercise period
ZF E& At w4 TPE* By
'000 ‘000 ‘000 HK$ per share
T T T BLER
508 4728 5,236 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2013 4910 29-3-2013 to £ 28-3-2018
508 4728 5,236 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2014 4910 29-3-2014 to 2 28-3-2018
508 4,568 5,076 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2015 4910 29-3-2015 t0 2 28-3-2018
508 4568 5,076 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2016 4910 29-3-2016 t0 2 28-3-2018
508 4568 5,076 29-3-2011 to & 28-3-2017 4910 29-3-2017 to 2 28-3-2018

2,540 23,160 25,700

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the 2011 Options was HK$47,124,000
(approximately HK$1.526 each), of which the Company
recognised a share option expense of HK$2,469,000 (2014:
HK$4,168,000) during the year.

The fair value of the 2011 options was estimated as at the date
of grant, using a binomial option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Y MARFETRR - BITATR AR
A BAENMIGEE) - RIfEIRIEZTT
(EIER THE

2011 FREIHE 2 2T {E /47,124,000
BIT(BHA1.526/87T) « EFRARF]
RERHER IR IR S 7% 2,469,000 78
TL (20144 : 4,168,000/ 7T) °

2011 FREBEZ A FETIRE TR
BEAA—EAREEBEAELG
it WEE B R B 2 R S 1
e PRINMZER 2B ABE

Date of grant

Dividend yield (%)

BB

BB (%)

Expected volatility (%) TE AR 1@ (%)
Historical volatility (%) BEKE (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) R R A (%)
Expected life of options (year) BIETRET ()

Weighted average share price (HK$)

hnggFHR B GBT)

29 March 2011
201143 A29H
2.109

33.716

33.716

2.40

7

4910
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The expected life of the options is determined with reference to
the vesting term and original contractual term of the Scheme
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that
the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, a total of 25,080,000
(2014: 25,700,000) share options remained outstanding
under the Scheme. The 2011 Options outstanding at 31
December 2015 had remaining contractual lives 2.25 years
(2014: 3.25 years). The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 25,080,000 (2014:
25,700,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately HK$2,508,000 (2014
approximately HK$2,570,000) and additional share premium
of approximately HK$120,635,000 (2014: HK$123,617,000)
(before issue expenses).

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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30. Bl pERT &I (&)

BREEAFHN2ELAEZRE
HIR R RE A AGRRMEETE - RU56E
BRTEBEENERN - KRR
BR 38 18 08 P R AR R B S RO RAR
HERRBERVRERAER -

AL E B AR 0 B 5 A2
FEHHEYS -

RFEHR FEETHERTED
B % & ££25,080,00017 (2014 £ -
25,700,00017) ° 2011 B RAER 2015
F12 A31 HERTENBRER S
LIHAPR £ 2.254F (2014 4F : 3.254F ) »
EARRRENEAGEET2EITE
) A 77 {50 O B PR S S U N R B T
25,080,000 f% (2014 £E : 25,700,000
%) FB YN RS N BB MR AR 492,508,000
BT (20144 + 492,570,000/ 7T) &8
HNIRAD Y (B 49 120,635,000 7% 7T (2014
F 1 #9123,617,000587T0) (HG3E17H
A e

F. .
PR RAERAT 2015440 3



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRMITE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 116 to
117 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to
use.

The Group’s capital reserve includes:

(1) the differences between the consideration and the book
value of the share of net assets acquired/disposed of
when there is a change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control;

(2) share of other comprehensive income of an associate;
and

(3) the contributed surplus which represents:

(i) the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor under the group reorganisation
in 1991, less the goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries and associates which remains
eliminated against the capital reserve; and

(ii) the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor under the reorganisation as
completed during the year ended 31 December
2006.

On 15 April 2008, the Board passed a resolution in relation
to a share premium cancellation pursuant to Section 46 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which was approved
by shareholders on a special resolution on 19 May 2008, and
was later approved by the registrar of companies of Bermuda
on 3 June 2008. Accordingly, the share premium accounting
for approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was transferred to the
contributed surplus during the year ended 31 December 2008.
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() FEREARKIZEHROBERT - b
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Details of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a subsidiary of
the Group, which has material non-controlling interests are set

WM ()
31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

2. BFEEAFEREZ ZFEE

B B 2 B

AEBEREEAGFERERZMEBL
BB R O R ERB AR QR ZFHIB

out below: HymT -
2015 2014
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Percentage of equity interest held by IR E
non-controlling interests ZIRER DL 35% 35%
Profit for the year allocated to AR R RS
non-controlling interests ZARFE G 272,789 290,482
Dividends attributable to non-controlling FRE AT O A 24
interests of COFCO Coca-Cola BR AR IEEAE
Beverages Limited BB 839,564 61,490
Accumulated balances of non-controlling ~ FEIRARFEZS AR 4 B &
interests at the reporting date Z 2R 1,696,147 2,348,413

i
WO R RA T 201544 @
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32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
(continued)

2. BEEAFERERZIFEE
BB~ =) (%)

TRIRFIER] O AT LR B R QA
MEEMBERE - FIRESER

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverage Limited.

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

HERER A RREHER -

eliminations:
2015 2014
20154 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Revenue WA 12,334,997 12,485,850
Total expenses FElE R (11,732,707) (11,859,805)
Profit for the year FERF 602,290 626,045
Total comprehensive income for the year — FEZ2EUWALLEE 387,357 607,396
Current assets mEEE 2,800,250 4,780,735
Non-current assets EREEE 5,638,698 5,844,176
Current liabilities MEBE (3,501,546) (4,047,235)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (77,194) (104,933)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBEL RS RFHE 349,868 1,435,235
Net cash flows from/(used in) WEESEL,(FTR) 2
investing activities REMFRE 1,477,066 (503,780)
Net cash flows used in financing activities ~ F & EEFTA 2B &/ F48 (2,165,270) (761,490)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and W& MRS ESEYEMm,
cash equivalents CRA) #5E (338,336) 169,965

L
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Business combination in 2014

In August 2014, COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired a 100%
interest in Changli Huaxia Chateau Travel Co., Ltd. (“Huaxia
Travel”) from independent third parties at nil consideration (the
“Acquisition”). The principal activity of Huaxia Travel is the

provision of travelling and catering services.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Huaxia

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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33. X5A 0

2014 FEMGA G

MR2014%F8H » RRAIZE2EWER
AP EEERMRFEEER AR EE
VEZAUSREKBERZESH
Bk AR AR ([FEE KRS ]) 2 100%
(TR - ZEERE T2 XK

AR IR K B R RS o

RUEE B E B R 2 Al BRI EE R

Travel as at the date of the acquisition were as follows: BEZAFEWNT :
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
B/\Hﬁlﬁﬁﬁ-rﬁﬁu 2
NE
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) W - W NEEE (MFE14) 128
Inventories FE 1,433
Accounts receivable FEUBR SR 175
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - e REAERGR 402
Cash and bank balances He RIRTT4s 1,405
Accounts and bills payables ERIRR R EE (1,034)
Other payables and accruals Hib e HRIBEREFTAE (2,298)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAHER 2 TR EE R ERE 211
Gain on bargain purchase recognised in other REREERBRERZ

income and gains in the consolidated E A R aS R RERR

statement of profit or loss (note 5) BB E (HFES) (211)

Consideration

1B

3
R BERAT 201555 @
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Business combination in 2014 (continued)

33 %g%Aﬁ:F (n\ﬁ)
2014 FE£K S 6 (4E)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BREWHEEE RS MRS ZEIEH
respect of the Acquisition is as follows: ZRNFEANAT -

HK$'000

FA&T

Consideration RE -

Cash and bank balances acquired PR & R IRTTAE B8R 1,405

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

JINREESMARERZAE R

included in cash flows used in investing activities ~ IR&ZEER 2 m A H5 1,405
Since the Acquisition, Huaxia Travel contributed BIWESTENUK  EEREANER
HK$3,960,000 to the Group’s revenue and a profit of Z W A & Bt 3,960,000 T R A EL E

HK$784,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2014.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have
significant contingent liabilities.

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one or six years. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

2014F 12 A31 B ILFEZ&FEEME
EA% A 784,000 7T

34. HARERE

RBERR  AEBEAEBEFMERRK
REE-

35. REHANZTHE

(@) ERHBEA
REBERBLEHOLHLEE
TEYZE (FEL5) » KiprmcM
,HEEE j:/\\EIEZ:% °© _ﬁﬁg !
MAOZERTHAERP ZNE
® - WEIRAF E R B E R TR

RBERR - AEBERBEHEME
PRI 2 N HsH R 2 A R IR

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: ZARRREBSETENT ¢

2015 2014

20154 2014 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Within one year —FR 6,393 8,117
In the second to fifth years, F_EZERF

inclusive (BiEERMFE) 21,524 20,204

After five years AFE 4,175 11,584

32,092 39,905

L
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 35. REBHOTHE(F)

(b) As lessee (b) ERFEEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and some AEERBELEMNLHMARE
grape farms under operating lease arrangements. Leases FTHAZEMERBEE 2%
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to MEMNEH R HBHE—FE
forty years. 1 o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RRERR  REBEBE R TH
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HIE AN EN 2 KRR EERS
operating leases falling due as follows: AT
2015 2014
20154 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 91,973 75,637
In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BEEREMF) 59,430 74,457
After five years AHFi% 4,753 57,844
156,156 207,938
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EARAEIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note BRI | SCFTEE 35(b) sF il 2 4% A2 FH 497
35(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments N REFBNREIHARE A TERN
at the end of the reporting period: HRIE
2015 2014
20154 2014 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Contracted but not provided for: EEEREIGE
Property, plant and equipment b e =N Y | 343,702 148,353

.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during
the year:

BEEALRS

(a) BREIFS¥RITEMIM T AAHE 2

SREBEBRIN REBRAFE
WEREATETZERRZ S0
T

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries: ERZEMBATZXS :
Sales of goods™ HEEMm™* 285,201 275,047
Purchases of goods* BEER™ 10,892,498 7,473,474
Service fee income* RIS B A * 75,864 31,314
Rental expenses* ez~ 18,025 32,122
Service fee expenses* RGBS H* 35,513 35,881
Transactions with the ultimate R 4% 7
holding company: RAIZRS
Sales of goods* HEEm* 20 805
Rental expenses* e+ 32,447 15,177
Service fee income* R EUA > 920 -
Service fee expenses* fREEL > 8,394 3,022
Transactions with associates: IS NF 2R
Sales of goods HEEMm 38 -
Purchases of goods* HBEER* 1,970,059 2,279,418
Commission income e WA 66,511 77,630
Transactions with HARgE
related companies*: RNEIZR S
Purchases of goods* HBEER* 50,447 1,018,045

* These related party transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions discloseable in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

# Related companies are companies under significant
influence by the Group’s ultimate holding company.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with

the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties
involved.

"
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company
Pursuant to certain licensing agreements entered into
between the Group and COFCO, the Group was granted
the exclusive rights to use certain trademarks for its
kitchen food business. The licensing fees for the current
year and the prior year were waived by COFCO.

Commitments with related parties

Pursuant to certain lease agreements entered into
between the Group and COFCO Plaza Development
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of COFCO, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments amounted to approximately
HK$30,723,000 (2014: HK$51,901,000) as at 31
December 2015.

Outstanding balances with related parties and
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s
subsidiaries

Except for (1) the loans due to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group’s subsidiaries of
HK$37,571,000 (2014: HK$36,420,000) which are
unsecured, bear interest at the rate of 5.6% (2014:
5.6%) per annum and are repayable within one year;
(2) amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries of the Group of HK$55,778,000 (2014:
HK$30,371,000) which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year; and (3) amounts due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$13,655,000 (2014
HK$14,502,000) which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year, the remaining balances with
the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, associates,
related companies and non-controlling shareholders of
the Group’s subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. In addition, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries of the
Group of HK$28,446,000 were unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within one year as at 31 December
2014.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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37. BEALRF (&)

(b)

©

(d)

BERRERARETZRS
REASEEDBEETIZE
TR - AR BERIBRA
A IREBEERMERER
ETER MAFERBEFE
ZIFRTEERETREER R -

BARRE A+ ZiEEE
BEAEE LT EERE B
NAFIERESEREBRARFGIL
METHERR - K2015F 12 7
31 BAREB AR KRS ZHE
49 /530,723,0003% 7T (2014 £ :
51,901,000 7T) ©

BEALRAEBMHEARFE
ERBRR 2 REBEERE

B ()R —BANEEM B AR
1 RS % 3R B 337,571,000 T
(2014 % : 36,420,000 7T ) A
EIEI - IRFFES6/E (20144 ¢
56F)iFEBERAR—FRNEE
(2) RAEE M E A7) FEE IR AL R
X 18 55,778,000 7T (2014 4F -
30,371,000 7T) BEERRF - &
BEREBER—FRNEE: RORK
B % A B150IE 13,655,00078
JC (2014 4F : 14,502,000 7T) &
EINF - RERAR—FRNEE
G REEWB AR ZZEBRA
A ARMBAR - BEQG -
RAE AT MIEIER R R A a4
S EEE @B EEETEER
B o JL4N - FA2014512831H -
RAE= [ B A7) FE5 A% AL B X
T8 28,446,000 /8 7T A EEH - %
BRTNENR—FANEE -

PEESARAT 20154

12 /



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B RRMIRE ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of

(f)

37. BEALX S (&)
(e) AEBEEETEAS 2R

the Group

2015 2014
20154 20145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Short term employee benefits REEBRET 19,083 10,625
Equity-settled share option expense MR ZANAEEBEIAER X 603 1,142
Pension scheme contributions RIRFFEMER 1,085 536

Total compensation paid to key NTETEEREAE
management personnel 2 RN AR EE 20,771 12,303

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Transactions and balances with other state-owned
enterprises

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other organisations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). During the
year, the Group entered into extensive transactions
covering, but not limited to, sales of goods, purchases of
raw materials, property, plant and equipment and other
assets, receiving of services, and making deposits and
borrowings with certain State-owned Enterprises, other
than COFCO and its affiliates, at terms comparable to
those with non-state-owned enterprises. The directors
consider that transactions with those State-owned
Enterprises were entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, and that dealings of
the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected
by the fact that the Group and those State-owned
Enterprises are ultimately controlled or owned by the
PRC government. The Group has also established pricing
policies for products and services, and such policies do
not depend on whether or not the customers are State-
owned Enterprises.

=
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38. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 38. X EME N ZHEE

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 AEBEFZHE N EN2015F12 A31

December 2015 are as follows: H2#FB0T
Percentage
Place of of ownership
Issued incorporation/ interest
ordinary/registered registration attributable Principal
Name share capital and business to the Group activities
x5E
ERITEER ML, ELRRE
2% AR MRS EEEAL TEER
Swire Coca-Cola Beverages US$19,000,000 The PRC/ 13 Beverages
Jiangsu Ltd. 19,000,000 Mainland China processing
THAST O TLREERAT /S EAR YEIT
Swire Coca-Cola Beverages US$20,000,000 The PRC/ 13 Beverages
Zhejiang Ltd. 20,000,000 T Mainland China processing
LIRS AR ARAF HE B ARE BBt T
CBPC Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 16.3 Procurement of
10,0007 7T ) raw materials
for Coca-Cola
bottlers in
Mainland China
EREAER
BIREE:
R R R
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing HK$2,169,603,029.67 Hong Kong 13.7 Investment
Holdings Limited 2,169,603,029.67 % 1T % holding
REER
In the opinion of the Board, the Group is able to exercise BExeRn BARZEAFICZESS
significant influence over the above companies as the boards FEARSEE  RE  2HEHEESTER
of these companies comprise representatives of the Group, 2 AEENmENE Ll ARIITE
who participate in the policy-making processes. Accordingly, BEARE I It BEWEELRSE
they are accounted for as associates of the Group. Wi l/N|

A LA RS R R B AR BIREERS
o

All of the above associates are indirectly held by the Company.

-
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. ZERE S 2EMT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEEIR S TAENER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
2015 2015
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-
for-sale
financial Loans and
assets receivables Total
AHtHEZ BRR
SREE e #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FH&T
Due from associates i NNCIDSEN = 10,496 10,496
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEINIENEIVEA = 351,977 351,977
Due from the ultimate S S Sl N
holding company KRR - 14,157 14,157
Due from an intermediate el E) /N
holding company KRR - 162 162
Due from non-controlling Oy NS B
shareholders of subsidiaries S = 15,394 15,394
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 209,637 = 209,637
Accounts and bills receivables JEUER TR N 2 = 1,376,410 1,376,410
Financial assets included FFATEN A - B
in prepayments, deposits and R E A EGRIA
other receivables ZEREE - 693,672 693,672
Restricted bank balances ZIRHIRITAE &R = 6,974 6,974
Pledged deposits BIEEER = 64,980 64,980
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEHEER = 899,170 899,170
209,637 3,433,392 3,643,029

; L3
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PR AR ML ()

31 December 2015 2015412 A31 H

39. RERIB S 2T A (&)

2015 2015 %
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
RN
RAFIEZ
SREE
HK$'000
FBx
Due to associates IR H N BIFRIE 176,405
Due to fellow subsidiaries NEESIENGIE S 1,270,244
Due to the ultimate holding company REBEAEIR A FIFRIE 25,467
Due to related companies REAE A EIRIA 9,817
Due to non-controlling shareholders U= INGIE =233

of subsidiaries f& B FRIE 553,991
Accounts and bills payables FERRZR R EE 1,300,096

Financial liabilities included in other STAERMENFIERETAE L
payables and accruals TRAE 2,104,704
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITERREMER 2,647,650
8,088,374

go
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. BERE s Z2EMI A (&)

(continued)

2014 20144
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at fair
Available- value through
for-sale profit or loss
financial Loans and - held for
assets receivables trading Total
wATE
FIANBEZ
AHHEL BER Rk BELE
TREE FEU IR TREE fmEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHL FAT FEHT
Due from associates NIV G - 16,273 - 16,273
Due from fellow subsidiaries A 2P B A RIR R - 578,278 - 578,278
Due from the ultimate holding ~ SARIEATAE)
company R - 15,202 - 15,202
Due from an intermediate TR AR
holding company Rk - 171 - 171
Due from non-controlling [ EPNCIE2 i
shareholders of subsidiaries [ W - 37,711 - 37,711
Equity investments at fair BRATEIIAERZ
value through profit or loss ERRE - - 14,728 14,728
Available-for-sale investments ~ AItHERE 613,411 - - 613,411
Accounts and bills receivables  JEURBEF R 2% - 1,771,191 - 1,771,191
Financial assets included in FTATEMFE  Ze Rk
prepayments, deposits and H AR
other receivables CREE - 772,251 - 772,251
Pledged deposits BHEIFFR - 162,947 - 162,947
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEEBR - 1,356,458 - 1,356,458
613,411 4,710,482 14,728 5,338,621

=
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. ZEHE s zEeMIT A (&)
(continued)
2014 20144
Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FMEZ
SRAE
HK$'000
FAET
Due to associates IRH N BIFRIE 154,453
Due to fellow subsidiaries NEESLIENGIE S 1,253,117
Due to the ultimate holding company R EBEAERR A FIFRIE 27,915
Due to related companies REAE N EIRIA 88,765
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries /% Fff & 2 &) FE42 A% A% 58 71 18 76,549
Accounts and bills payables ER R R EE 1,372,106
Financial liabilities included in other STAEAMENFRIERERTAE
payables and accruals ZEREE 2,131,499
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRRITERREMER 3,460,994
8,565,398

-
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, other than the available-for-
sale investments, of which the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s financial instruments approximated to
their fair values largely due to the short term maturities of the
instruments or they bearing floating interest rates if they have
long term maturities.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

40. %mmz,az

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

AFERATER

RBERR - RAIHLERERAIE
MAFERTHEER EFERRH

RN ENEAIEAEIN  AEEDRE
TAZEMEREQAFERS =2

BMARZET AR MRS K E EAH
Fﬂ?%@&/?iﬁﬂ—.—ﬁr =3

TREENRABZAFEAZTAR
B 577 (MIFREERHE) &
RIS NZAIR SRR

TR2NAKRELRIAZA
SEA

BAFEFEZEE

FEEt

Fair value measurement using

BATAAGEZAYE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
i FE FE
MHSRE  ABR2E TER2Y
() (B=E) (B=E) faEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FEL FEL FHEL
As at 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H
Equity investments at fair BAFEIABRZ
value through profit or loss BB E - - - -
As at 31 December 2014 M2014% 12 A31H
Equity investments at fair BATHENAERZ
value through profit or loss IR 14,728 - - 14,728

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and bank
balances and time deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts payable,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on minimising potential adverse effects of these risks,
with material impact, on the Group’s financial performance.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term and short term
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.
The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the long
term and short term interest-bearing bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings):

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATEERR ML ()
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41. B EREER EREE

AEEZ T 2R T ABEFRRT
ERRHMER - ARBRE RIRTTHE
BRERFR - ZFEMTATER
MIIRARBEZEZBERES - A%
BEEETHMESREERAR  F
an U B R K% A R R (B I R EL 2675
mMES) °

AAEEzeRMITAMELEZEER
RANERE  SNERR - FEERR
ER#ETER AEEBERRE
BErEETNEERDZETRAR (HA
SEHBERBBREATE) 2B
THFE EFTERTREEEX
FRER 2R - B

EIEE
REBAS TSN EEE 2 @R+
BYRAEERFHNEGFE 2 KB
FEHE BRITHEE - AEEZ K
FEHIRT BIRTTRE 2 BB AR &R
R T IRR M 5L 27 R

TREREPTA B R] 2 H R REF
PRGN AR BB AR (Fi8
FEEBEZRE) MR AR
B HRIRE

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
HEBEH BAn=EF
(Tre) i, GRA)
HK$'000
T
2015 20154
Hong Kong dollar BIT 100 (24,000)
Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) 24,000
2014 2014 4
Hong Kong dollar BIT 100 (30,306)
United States dollar eI 100 (2,068)
Hong Kong dollar BIT (100) 30,306
United States dollar ETT (100) 2,068

PR RARATF 2015440
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and Hong
Kong with most of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group has not used
any derivative to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit before tax in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has

41. B EREE B FER K (&)

S LR

AEBTERFREAREREFBE:
MAEEZBAMOELREE - BF
RRXZAEBBIT - ARBRETT
FHE o AEE W E N B ITAITEEm
AR R ELFTE 2 SN LR o

THRIF  EEMEETRNER
T ARE 2 BADEHBER A
ATEH RE B IR S RS

significant exposure at the end of the reporting period with all ERER) 2 BHEEE
other variables held constant:
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
Changes in before tax
exchange rate R AR R
Exzgs #mn CHD)
HK$'000
% FET

2015 20154
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BALHARE

against Renminbi §218 (5) (72,602)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens EBTRARE

against Renminbi Vaniz] 5 72,602
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against ERBITLRET

the United States dollar ipZI=] (5) 1,654
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against &7 7T 4, 37T

the United States dollar HE 5 (1,654)
2014 2014 4
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens AATLAARE

against Renminbi 8218 (5) (27,209)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens ARETTHARE

against Renminbi HE 5 27,209
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against BBTLRET

the United States dollar i) (5) (12,543)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BBTLRET

against the United States dollar HE 5 12,543

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit before tax measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
The carrying amount of the accounts receivable represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policies are to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and to have available funding through bank and
other borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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41. B EREE R ERBXK (&)

EERkE
AEEZEERRY AEF - BUER
RZIREEDASE RS BRE SR
BEZEAEERR - AEECHIE
R HRAEBBZEFEELZE
FER-

AEBEMSHMEENEERRIRE
RBHFHTNELY  FRAREES
RzFTAMKEEE -

AEBZBRIIEREHZRE KB
FHFEER  WEBRTREMEER
MEABESABRNEZEESHR -

RBEHR - AEBERBLHARITH
fRzemaERHBERNT

2015 2015 &
Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
REM 15R 1Z5% &3t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET THET
Due to associates YN YNCIENE] 176,405 = - 176,405
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNEEY ) NGIE R 1,270,244 = = 1,270,244
Due to the ultimate REIEER DT
holding company FUR 11,812 13,655 - 25,467
Due to related companies REBENFIFHIE 9,817 = = 9,817
Due to non-controlling RYTBA R FEER
shareholders of subsidiaries RER B 525,058 28,933 - 553,991
Accounts and hills payables ENRERNEE 100,115 1,195,953 4,028 1,300,096
Financial liabilities included in s AEAERFUER
other payables and accruals EEtEEzemas 2,104,704 = = 2,104,704
Interest-bearing bank and SHERITER
other borrowings REMER - 1,684,159 1,005,789 2,689,948
4,198,155 2,922,700 1,009,817 8,130,672

F. .
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. BB EREE B EREEER (8)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nBESEE (&)
2014 2014 F
Less than 1t05
On demand 1 year years Total
gl 1FR 1E5%F B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL FAEL TAET FAL
Due to associates YN NCTE 154,453 - - 154,453
Due to fellow subsidiaries UNGEY )= VNGIE R 1,253,117 - - 1,253,117
Due to the ultimate holding RE SRR N F
company FUE 13,413 14,502 - 27915
Due to related companies REENRIFHIAR 88,765 - - 88,765
Due to non-controlling ENGIE R
shareholders of subsidiaries EEeE 17,732 30,371 28,446 76,549
Accounts and bills payables EREFRRE 79,991 1,292,115 - 1,372,106
Financial liabilities included in s AEAERFUER
other payables and accruals [EitEE 2B E 2,131,499 - - 2,131,499
Interest-bearing bank and STBIRITERR
other borrowings HuER 506,000 892,978 2,129,891 3,528,869

4,244 970 2,229,966 2,158,337 8,633,273

. -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for capital management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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41. B EREE R ERBXK (&)

BEXER
AEEEREEANEZBRRRER
SEMFELER I REFBRNE
AEE  UXEEEHEREEAL
RREE -

AEBESREEHREZCERLE
ARBAIHEAEHRE - BERHA
EEARE  AKERGHBINT
BORAB SR - REBEATIRIRSK
BATHAR - #E2015% 12 A31H K&
2014F12A31RILFEAN  BEER

during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December BEEMBE  BREBIETETAE
2014. g o
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT THAT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =+83R1TER M HMER
W BekReSEEE

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

2,647,650 3,460,994
(899,170) (1,356,458)

Net borrowing position FHEEMR 1,748,480 2,104,536
Net assets attributable to owners [SYNEIEZZPN

of the parent JE(EFEE 5,516,317 5,887,649
Net gearing ratio FEBLLE 31.7% 35.7%

§ )
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42,

43.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 10 February 2016, the Company made an announcement
to confirm: (i) the entry into a letter of intent by the Company,
The Coca-Cola Company and Swire Beverages Holdings
Limited relating to bottling operations in Mainland China; (ii)
that the letter of intent includes an expression of intent to
negotiate the refranchising of the existing bottling operations
of The Coca-Cola Company to its existing partners, which
include a subsidiary of the Company. No agreements have
been entered into between the relevant parties and there is no
assurance that such agreements will be entered into.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 11 to the financial statements,
due to the discontinuation of the Group’s confectionery
business, the comparative statement of profit or loss has
been re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the
comparative period.

! =
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

44, XA Tz MFIR R R

BRAA R AR IR E MR AN K
MEREIIT -

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014
2015 % 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIEE 4,624,536 2,106,711
Total non-current assets IEMBEELE 4,624,536 2,106,711
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments NG S 10,861 19,537
Due from subsidiaries N EENEIDNE /Y 4,603,231 5,737,433
Due from an intermediate holding company HE#A& A &1 /R X 165 165
Equity investments at fair value through BAFEIABRZ
profit or loss RN E = 9,213
Cash and cash equivalents BekReFEER 30,794 47,251
Total current assets mBEELE 4,645,051 5,813,599
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EfbEFIA K ERTBE 3,116 4,620
Due to subsidiaries NGBS 442,977 150,728
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRTTER 1,400,000 306,000
Tax payable JERTTRIR 11,695 7,154
Total current liabilities mMEBERE 1,857,788 468,502
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 2,787,263 5,345,097
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAEBER
LIABILITIES REEE 7,411,799 7,451,808
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITER 1,000,000 2,100,000
Total non-current liabilities IEREEERE 1,000,000 2,100,000
Net assets EEFE 6,411,799 5,351,808
EQUITY &
Issued capital BEITIR 279,722 279,722
Other reserves H A 6,132,077 5,072,086
Total equity R A 4B1E 6,411,799 5,351,808

F. .
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

44. KRRz BRIk ()

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 22 March 2016.
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Note: irza
A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: AAvFEERZNT
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
RiVAEE  BRERE N REEH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TAL TAT TAT TAL
Balance at 1 January 2014 R014E1 A1 &8 37,367 41185 4,759,898 274725 5113175
Equity-settled share option RALEEERE
arrangements T - 4168 - - 4168
Transfer of share option N R
reserve upon the forfeiture i
or expiry of share options BRERE - (15,546) - 15,546 -
Loss for the year FEER - - - (45,257) (45,257)
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12A31H 37,367 29,807 4,759,898 245,014 5,072,086
Equity-settled share option RAEEERE
arrangements T - 2,469 - - 2,469
Transfer of share option RERIES Mk
reserve upon the forfeiture EllsE
or expiry of share options BIRERE - (1,202 - 1,202 -
Profit for the year EEEH - - - 1057522 1057522
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H 37,367 31,074 4,759,898 1,303,738 6,132,077
45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. iRk 2 it &

M HmERN2016F3 A2 AKESE
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements and restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set out

below:

Five-Year Financial Summary

HFERE

AEBBERFVRFEZRENEE
BEEFTERESHEDREEETEZ
REZEAPHRE  URBIIREES
M BRATEN T

Year ended 31 December

HZEI2A3ALEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
20154 2014 £ 2013 20124 2011 £
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET THL FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E751) (&51) (&31) (&51))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEER
REVENUE WA 27,842,170 26238668 25783418 30,152,731 27,351,312
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM SRR/

OPERATING ACTIVITIES (E#R) 698,582 390,159 (182,330) 844,009 1,274,499
Finance costs BEMA (64,822) (69,844) (98,723) (62,222) (29,229)
Share of profits of associates [EIGHEE D ELRH 71,872 93,816 113917 67,320 65,438
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBAIER/(B58) 705,632 414,131 (167,686) 849,107 1,310,708
Income tax expense FIE#AY (285,622) (223,829) (311,129) (191,133) (339,760)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BELSEER

FROM CONTINUING ZEERR

OPERATIONS (B#8) 420,010 190,302 (478 815) 657,974 970,948
DISCONTINUED OPERATION RIPTEER
Loss for the year from a BIHEeEBE L

discontinued operation FEER (98,523) (163,095) (227,682) (65,816) (103,657)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EERA(BE) 321,487 27,207 (706,497) 592,158 867,291
Attributable to: FEfE 7 -

Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZEPN 79,153 (224,688) (889,634) 381,931 645,609

Non-controlling interests RS 242,334 251,895 183,137 210,227 221,682

321,487 27,207 (706,497) 592,158 867,291
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE -8R

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ JEippigs
TOTAL ASSETS wgE 16,651,932 18246694 20973517 20,212,181 18,329,983
TOTAL LIABILITIES “eR (9,575,758) (10,124,147) (12,775292) (11,514,195)  (9,816,186)
NON-CONTROLLING FEIERR

INTERESTS & (1,559,857) (2,234,898)  (2,052,250)  (1,892,851)  (1,844,174)

5,516,317  5837,649 6145975 6805135 6,669,623
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Corporate Information
NEER

DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Ma Jianping

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Managing Director)
Ms. Wu Wenting (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Ding
Mr. Wang Zhiying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
(Committee Chairman)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells

Mr. Ma Jianping
Mr. Wang Zhiying

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ma Jianping (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Committee Chairman)
Ms. Wu Wenting

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda
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SOLICITORS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

33/F., COFCO Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Progressive Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinafoodsltd.com

Corporate Information
NRER

EEm
Conyers, Dill & Pearman

BB ED
KGRI BTN

FEAERRIT

FREXRITRNERABNFEDIT
BRI AR AT
EIRTT (FE) ARATR
RBIRITRDBR AT
RERITIRMD AR AT
PEIERIRITR M AR AR
ERIRT(BE)BRAT
BARITARAR

PR TERITA AR AR
IS ERTT
ERRITARABDBEITT
=HERRITEENTT
RR=ZUFJRITEEDTT
FB LBESRITARAR

AMNER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

ERENSE

B

W

%:t}]—35262%ﬁ

i AE 3318
?%Hﬁﬁi@}g %%ﬂﬁjﬁ
BB

SEAREE 1835

AL 2218

NGIE )

www.chinafoodsltd.com

-
WE A RAE 2015 @



Financial Calendar
g B

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS

Tuesday, 22 March 2016

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting: Tuesday, 31 May 2016 to Wednesday, 1
June 2016 (both days inclusive)

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final

dividend: Wednesday, 15 June 2016 to Thursday, 16 June 2016
(both days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Wednesday, 1 June 2016
DIVIDENDS
Interim dividend: NIL

Proposed Final Dividend: HK1.0 cent per share (Payable on or after
Thursday, 7 July 2016)
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Chinese Olympic Committee Official Partner

TERAZSEERME

ol % O~ &

33rd Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

HREEE S TT82625% H 18 KE331&

Tel E5E (852) 2833 0388
Fax {E (852) 2833 0380

www.chinafoodslitd.com
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